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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

    This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. Statements that are not
historical or current facts, including statements about beliefs and
expectations, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve
inherent risks and uncertainties, and important factors could cause actual
results to differ materially from those anticipated, including the following, in
addition to those contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in the Company's
other reports on file with the SEC: (i) the Company's investments in its
businesses and in its Internet development could require additional incremental
spending, and might not produce expected deposit and loan growth and anticipated
contributions to Company earnings; (ii) general economic or industry conditions
could be less favorable than expected, resulting in a deterioration in credit
quality, a change in the allowance for credit losses, or a reduced demand for
credit or fee-based products and services; (iii) changes in the domestic
interest rate environment could reduce net interest income and could increase
credit losses; (iv) the conditions of the securities markets could change,
adversely affecting revenues from capital markets businesses, the value or
credit quality of the Company's on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet assets,
or the availability and terms of funding necessary to meet the Company's
liquidity needs; (v) changes in the extensive laws, regulations and policies
governing financial services companies could alter the Company's business
environment or affect operations; (vi) the potential need to adapt to industry
changes in information technology systems, on which the Company is highly
dependent, could present operational issues or require significant capital
spending; (vii) competitive pressures could intensify and affect the Company's
profitability, including as a result of continued industry consolidation, the
increased availability of financial services from non-banks, technological
developments such as the Internet, or bank regulatory reform; and (viii)
acquisitions may not produce revenue enhancements or cost savings at levels or
within time frames originally anticipated, or may result in unforeseen
integration difficulties. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date
they are made, and the Company undertakes no obligation to update them in light
of new information or future events.
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Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402-4302
Telephone: (612) 973-1111

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act (and listed on the
New York Stock Exchange): Common Stock, Par Value $.01. Prior to the merger of
U.S. Bancorp with Firstar Corporation, the par value of U.S. Bancorp common
stock was $1.25.

    Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) of the Act: None.

    As of January 31, 2001, U.S. Bancorp had 752,745,506 shares of common stock
outstanding. The aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates
as of January 31, 2001, was approximately $21,450,000,000.

    U.S. Bancorp (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

    Disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

    The financial information included within this Form 10-K does not reflect
the merger of U.S. Bancorp with Firstar Corporation.
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MANAGEMENT'S  DISCUSSION  AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

SUMMARY OF 2000 RESULTS U.S. Bancorp (the "Company") reported net income of
$1.59 billion in 2000, or $2.13 per diluted share, compared with $1.51 billion,
or $2.06 per diluted share, in 1999. Return on average assets and return on
average common equity were 1.89 percent and 19.9 percent in 2000, compared with
returns of 1.96 percent and 23.0 percent in 1999. The year-over-year increase in
earnings per diluted share reflected a 12 percent growth in total revenue on a
taxable-equivalent basis, partially offset by higher growth rates in noninterest
expense and provision for credit losses. The reduction in the Company's return
on average common equity reflects the impact of recent acquisitions, which were
accounted for using purchase accounting. Net income reflects merger-related
charges of $39.6 million ($61.3 million on a pre-tax basis) in 2000 and $39.2
million ($62.4 million on a pre-tax basis) in 1999. The efficiency ratio (the
ratio of expenses to revenues) was 53.0 percent in 2000 compared with 51.6
percent in 1999.

    The Company had operating earnings (net income excluding merger-related
charges) of $1.63 billion in 2000, up 6 percent from 1999 operating earnings of
$1.55 billion. On a diluted share basis, operating earnings were $2.18 in 2000,
compared with $2.11 in 1999. Operating earnings on a cash basis (calculated by
adding amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets to operating
earnings) were $2.50 per diluted share in 2000, compared with $2.33 per diluted
share in 1999. Return on average assets and return on average common equity,
excluding merger-related charges, were 1.93 percent and 20.4 percent in 2000,
compared with returns of 2.01 percent and 23.6 percent in 1999. Excluding
merger-related charges, the efficiency ratio was 52.1 percent in 2000, compared
with 50.5 percent in 1999. The banking efficiency ratio (the ratio of expenses
to revenues without the impact of investment banking and brokerage activity)
before merger-related charges, was 43.6 percent in 2000, compared with 43.2
percent in 1999. See page 10 for further discussion on merger-related charges.

    The Company analyzes its performance on a net income basis determined in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
as well as on an operating basis before merger-related charges referred to in
this analysis as "operating earnings." Operating earnings and related
discussions are presented as supplementary information in this analysis to
enhance the readers' understanding of, and highlight trends in, the Company's
core financial results excluding the nonrecurring effects of discrete business
acquisitions and restructuring activities. Operating earnings should not be
viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as determined in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
Merger-related charges excluded from net income to derive operating earnings may
be significant and may not be comparable to other companies.
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ACQUISITION AND DIVESTITURE ACTIVITY Operating results for 2000 reflect purchase
and divestiture transactions from or to the date of completion. On October 13,
2000, the Company acquired Scripps Financial Corporation of San Diego, which has
ten branches in San Diego county and total assets of $650 million. On September
28, 2000, the Company acquired Lyon Financial Services, Inc., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the privately held Schwan's Sales Enterprises Inc. in Marshall,
Minnesota. Lyon Financial specializes in small-ticket lease transactions and had
$1.3 billion in assets. On April 7, 2000, the Company acquired Oliver-Allen
Corporation, Inc., a privately held information technology leasing company with
total assets of $280 million. On January 14, 2000, the Company acquired
Peninsula Bank of San Diego, which had 11 branches in San Diego county and total
assets of $491 million. On November 15, 1999, the Company completed the
acquisition of Western Bancorp. Western Bancorp had $2.5 billion in total assets
with 31 branches in southern California in Los Angeles, Orange and San Diego
counties. The purchase price of approximately $932 million was allocated to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair market values at the
date of acquisition. On September 24, 1999, the Company completed the sale of 28
branches in Kansas and Iowa with aggregate deposits of $364 million. On
September 23, 1999, the Company sold $1.8 billion of indirect automobile loans.
On September 13, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of Voyager Fleet
Systems, Inc., which is now part of the Payment Systems business unit. On July
15, 1999, the Company
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     TABLE 1
         SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)                        2000        1999        1998        1997        1996

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)..............    $3,540.8    $3,302.7    $3,111.9    $3,106.0    $3,034.7
Provision for credit losses.................................       670.0       531.0       379.0       460.3       271.2
                                                                --------------------------------------------------------
   Net interest income after provision for credit losses....     2,870.8     2,771.7     2,732.9     2,645.7     2,763.5
Available-for-sale securities gains (losses)................         7.0        (1.3)       12.6         3.6        20.8
Merger-related gains........................................          --          --          --          --       235.8
Other noninterest income....................................     3,251.4     2,760.0     2,244.0     1,611.6     1,526.5
Merger-related charges......................................        61.3        62.4       216.5       511.6       127.7
Other noninterest expense...................................     3,537.1     3,064.5     2,627.8     2,300.7     2,410.4
                                                                --------------------------------------------------------
   Income before income taxes...............................     2,530.8     2,403.5     2,145.2     1,448.6     2,008.5
Taxable-equivalent adjustment...............................        69.5        42.0        51.3        57.9        64.1
Income taxes................................................       869.3       855.0       766.5       552.2       725.7
                                                                --------------------------------------------------------
   Net income...............................................    $1,592.0    $1,506.5    $1,327.4    $  838.5    $1,218.7
                                                                --------------------------------------------------------
FINANCIAL RATIOS
Return on average assets....................................        1.89%       1.96%       1.85%       1.22%       1.81%
Return on average common equity.............................        19.9        23.0        21.9        14.6        21.1
Efficiency ratio............................................        53.0        51.6        53.1        59.6        52.9
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis)..............        4.73        4.83        4.87        5.04        5.04
PER COMMON SHARE
Earnings per share..........................................    $   2.14    $   2.07    $   1.81    $   1.13    $   1.60
Diluted earnings per share..................................        2.13        2.06        1.78        1.11        1.57
Dividends paid*.............................................         .86         .78         .70         .62         .55
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS BEFORE MERGER-RELATED ITEMS
Return on average assets....................................        1.93%       2.01%       2.04%       1.84%       1.73%
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Return on average common equity.............................        20.4        23.6        24.2        22.1        20.2
Efficiency ratio............................................        52.1        50.5        49.1        48.8        52.8
Banking efficiency ratio**..................................        43.6        43.2        44.2        47.8        52.2
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET DATA
Loans.......................................................    $ 66,439    $ 60,578    $ 55,979    $ 53,513    $ 50,855
Earning assets..............................................      74,863      68,392      63,868      61,675      60,201
Assets......................................................      84,438      76,947      71,791      68,771      67,402
Deposits....................................................      50,681      48,099      47,327      47,336      47,252
Long-term debt..............................................      18,571      15,077      11,481       7,527       4,908
Common equity...............................................       8,009       6,540       6,049       5,667       5,679
Total shareholders' equity..................................       8,009       6,540       6,049       5,798       5,919
Average shares outstanding..................................       745.1       727.5       733.9       733.6       749.2
Average diluted shares outstanding..........................       747.9       733.0       744.2       742.9       766.2
YEAR-END BALANCE SHEET DATA
Loans.......................................................    $ 69,091    $ 62,885    $ 59,122    $ 54,708    $ 52,355
Assets......................................................      87,336      81,530      76,438      71,295      69,749
Deposits....................................................      53,257      51,530      50,034      49,027      49,356
Long-term debt..............................................      18,566      16,563      13,781      10,247       5,369
Common equity...............................................       8,640       7,638       5,970       5,890       5,613
Total shareholders' equity..................................       8,640       7,638       5,970       5,890       5,763
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 *Dividends per share have not been restated for the Company's 1997 merger with
  the former U.S. Bancorp ("USBC"). USBC paid common dividends of $139.1 million
  through July of 1997 ($.62 per share) and $168.7 million in 1996 ($1.18 per
  share).

**Without investment banking and brokerage activity.

completed its acquisition of the San Diego-based Bank of Commerce, one of the
nation's largest U.S. Small Business Administration ("SBA") lenders. On June 30,
1999, the Company completed its acquisition of Mellon Network Services'
electronic funds transfer processing unit. On March 16, 1999, the Company
completed its acquisition of Reliance Trust Company's corporate trust business,
which operates offices in Georgia, Florida and Tennessee. On January 4, 1999,
the Company acquired Libra Investments, Inc., an investment banking business
that specializes in underwriting and trading high yield and mezzanine securities
for middle-market companies. These transactions were all accounted for as
purchase acquisitions.

    On October 4, 2000, the Company announced that it had signed a definitive
agreement to be acquired by Firstar Corporation of Milwaukee, Wisconsin in a
tax-free exchange of shares. U.S. Bancorp shareholders received 1.265 shares of
the combined company stock for every share of U.S. Bancorp stock. The
transaction closed on February 27, 2001, and was accounted for as a pooling-
of-interests. Refer to Note C and Note D of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information regarding acquisitions and divestitures.
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     TABLE 2
         LINE OF BUSINESS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

                                                Wholesale Banking                                  Consumer Banking
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                      1999-2000                                         1999-2000
(Dollars in Millions)                2000          1999        1998    % Change          2000        1999        1998    % Change
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---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income
   (taxable-equivalent basis)....  $1,675.0    $1,456.1    $1,369.0        15.0%     $1,364.1    $1,315.1    $1,253.9         3.7%
Provision for credit losses......     126.9       105.4        93.8        20.4         210.1       207.5       136.5         1.3
Noninterest income...............     484.3       428.3       372.7        13.1         517.8       480.7       471.2         7.7
Noninterest expense..............     861.0       754.9       689.9        14.1         881.0       837.2       851.0         5.2
Goodwill and other intangible
   assets expense................      93.9        68.7        59.3        36.7          60.3        45.3        39.9        33.1
                                   --------------------------------                  --------------------------------
Income before taxes..............   1,077.5       955.4       898.7        12.8         730.5       705.8       697.7         3.5
Income taxes and
   taxable-equivalent
   adjustment....................     398.7       353.5       341.5        12.8         270.3       261.2       265.1         3.5
                                   --------------------------------                  --------------------------------
Income before merger-related
   charges.......................  $  678.8    $  601.9    $  557.2        12.8      $  460.2    $  444.6    $  432.6         3.5
                                   --------------------------------                  --------------------------------
Net merger-related charges
   (after-tax)*..................
Net income.......................
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET DATA
Loans............................  $ 41,482    $ 35,432    $ 31,672        17.1      $ 11,150    $ 12,357    $ 11,176        (9.8)
Assets...........................    46,123      39,302      35,181        17.4        13,076      14,010      12,665        (6.7)
Deposits.........................    11,841      10,990      10,767         7.7        31,218      30,163      31,668         3.5
Common equity....................     4,452       3,664       3,034        21.5         1,037       1,109       1,004        (6.5)
                                   --------------------------------                  --------------------------------
Return on average assets.........      1.47%       1.53%       1.58%                     3.52%       3.17%       3.42%
Return on average common
   equity........................      15.2        16.4        18.4                      44.4        40.1        43.1
Efficiency ratio.................      44.1        43.7        43.0                      50.0        49.1        51.6
Efficiency ratio on a cash
   basis**.......................      39.8        40.0        39.6                      46.8        46.6        49.3
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 *Merger-related charges are not allocated to the business lines. All ratios are
  calculated without the effect of merger-related charges.
 **Calculated by excluding the amortization of goodwill and other intangibles.
***Not meaningful.

LINE OF BUSINESS FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating segments are components of the Company about which financial
information is available and is evaluated regularly in deciding how to allocate
resources and assess performance. The Company's operating segments are Wholesale
Banking, Consumer Banking, Payment Systems, and Wealth Management and Capital
Markets. Units providing central support and other corporate activities are
reported as part of Corporate Support and allocated as appropriate.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL PRESENTATION Business line results are derived from the
Company's business unit profitability reporting system by specifically
attributing managed balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and
their related interest income or expense. Funds transfer pricing methodologies
are utilized to allocate a cost for funds used or credit for funds provided to
all business line assets and liabilities using a matched funding concept. The
provision for credit losses recorded by each operating segment is primarily
based on the net charge-offs of each line of business. Based on management's
judgment, the provision may be adjusted to consider expected losses for certain
products that have a longer business cycle and for economic conditions. The
difference between the provision for credit losses determined in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States recognized by the
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Company on a consolidated basis and the provision recorded by the business lines
is recorded in Corporate Support. Noninterest income and expenses directly
related to each business line, including fees, service charges, salaries and
benefits, and other direct expenses are accounted for within each segment's
financial results in a manner similar to the consolidated financial statements.
Also, the business unit is allocated the tax-equivalent benefit of tax-exempt
products. Noninterest expenses incurred by centrally managed operations units
that directly support business lines' operations are charged to the business
lines based on standard unit costs and volume measurements. Income taxes are
assessed to each line of business at a standard tax rate with the residual tax
expense or benefit to arrive at the consolidated effective tax rate included in
Corporate Support. Merger-related charges are not identified by or allocated to
lines of business. Because the Company's decision-making process emphasizes the
creation of shareholder value, capital is allocated to each line of business
based on its inherent risks, including credit, operational and other business
risks. On- and off-balance sheet assets subject to credit risk are assigned risk
factors based upon expected loss experience and volatility taking into
consideration changes in business practices that may introduce more

 4                                                                  U.S. Bancorp
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                                                                                          Wealth Management and
                                                   Payment Systems                          Capital Markets
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                    1999-2000                                   1999-2000
                                           2000     1999     1998    % Change        2000       1999     1998    % Change

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income
   (taxable-equivalent basis).........    $365.4   $354.8   $285.3      3.0%      $  196.7   $  165.4   $150.8     18.9%
Provision for credit losses...........     327.5    300.1    261.7      9.1            5.6        4.5      3.8     24.4
Noninterest income....................     776.9    617.7    603.6     25.8        1,401.8    1,187.5    784.0     18.0
Noninterest expense...................     406.1    333.1    319.6     21.9        1,218.4    1,020.3    667.9     19.4
Goodwill and other intangible
   assets expense.....................      56.0     35.2     31.3     59.1           25.3       16.4     13.2     54.3
                                          ------------------------                ----------------------------
Income before taxes...................     352.7    304.1    276.3     16.0          349.2      311.7    249.9     12.0
Income taxes and taxable-
   equivalent adjustment..............     130.5    112.5    105.0     16.0          129.2      115.3     95.0     12.1
                                          ------------------------                ----------------------------
Income before merger-related
   charges............................    $222.2   $191.6   $171.3     16.0       $  220.0   $  196.4   $154.9     12.0
                                          ------------------------                ----------------------------
Net merger-related charges
   (after-tax)*.......................
Net income............................

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET DATA
Loans.................................    $8,719   $7,968   $7,751      9.4       $  3,008   $  2,361   $1,996     27.4
Assets................................     9,615    8,698    8,417     10.5          7,268      5,836    4,682     24.5
Deposits..............................       120      100       87     20.0          3,815      3,304    2,551     15.5
Common equity.........................       951      742      719     28.2          1,295      1,162      951     11.4
                                          ------------------------                ----------------------------
Return on average assets..............      2.31%    2.20%    2.04%                   3.03%      3.37%    3.31%
Return on average common equity.......      23.4     25.8     23.8                    17.0       16.9     16.3
Efficiency ratio......................      40.5     37.9     39.5                    77.8       76.6     72.9
Efficiency ratio on a cash basis**....      35.6     34.3     36.0                    76.2       75.4     71.4
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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                                            Corporate Support                      Consolidated Company
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                      1999-2000
                                          2000     1999      1998        2000       1999       1998    % Change

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income
   (taxable-equivalent basis).........   $(60.4)  $ 11.3   $  52.9      $3,540.8   $3,302.7   $3,111.9      7.2%
Provision for credit losses...........     (0.1)   (86.5)   (116.8)        670.0      531.0      379.0     26.2
Noninterest income....................     77.6     44.5      25.1       3,258.4    2,758.7    2,256.6     18.1
Noninterest expense...................    (64.9)   (46.6)    (44.3)      3,301.6    2,898.9    2,484.1     13.9
Goodwill and other intangible
   assets expense.....................       --       --        --         235.5      165.6      143.7     42.2
                                         -------------------------      ------------------------------
Income before taxes...................     82.2    188.9     239.1       2,592.1    2,465.9    2,361.7      5.1
Income taxes and taxable-
   equivalent adjustment..............     31.8     77.7      91.3         960.5      920.2      897.9      4.4
                                         -------------------------      ------------------------------
Income before merger-related
   charges............................   $ 50.4   $111.2   $ 147.8       1,631.6    1,545.7    1,463.8      5.6
                                         -------------------------
Net merger-related charges
   (after-tax)*.......................                                     (39.6)     (39.2)    (136.4)     1.0
Net income............................                                  ------------------------------
                                                                        $1,592.0   $1,506.5   $1,327.4      5.7
                                                                        ------------------------------
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET DATA
Loans.................................   $2,080   $2,460   $ 3,384      $ 66,439   $ 60,578   $ 55,979      9.7
Assets................................    8,356    9,101    10,846        84,438     76,947     71,791      9.7
Deposits..............................    3,687    3,542     2,254        50,681     48,099     47,327      5.4
Common equity.........................      274     (137)      341         8,009      6,540      6,049     22.5
                                         -------------------------      ------------------------------
Return on average assets..............                                       1.93%      2.01%      2.04%
Return on average common equity.......                                       20.4       23.6       24.2
Efficiency ratio......................                                       52.1       50.5       49.1
Efficiency ratio on a cash basis**....                                       48.6       47.8       46.4
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

or less risk into the portfolio. Certain lines of business with fee-based
activities, such as Wealth Management and Capital Markets, have no significant
balance sheet components. For these business lines, capital is allocated taking
into consideration fiduciary and operational risk, capital levels of independent
organizations operating similar businesses, and regulatory minimum requirements.
Designations, assignments, and allocations may change from time to time as
management accounting systems are enhanced or product lines change. During 2000,
certain organization and methodology changes were made, and 1999 and 1998
results are presented on a comparable basis.

WHOLESALE BANKING Wholesale Banking includes lending, treasury management,
corporate trust and other financial services to middle-market, large corporate
and public sector clients. Operating earnings increased $76.9 million (13
percent) to $678.8 million in 2000, compared with $601.9 million in 1999 and
$557.2 million in 1998. Return on average assets was 1.47 percent in 2000,
compared with 1.53 percent in 1999 and 1.58 percent in 1998, and return on
average common equity was 15.2 percent in 2000, compared with 16.4 and 18.4
percent in 1999 and 1998, respectively.

    Net interest income increased $218.9 million (15 percent) in 2000 to
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$1,675.0 million compared with $1,456.1 million in 1999 and $1,369.0 million in
1998. In 2000, the increase reflected core growth in average loan and deposit
balances, the margin benefit of deposits in a rising rate environment and the
impact of acquisitions. In 1999, the increase was also due to core growth in
average loan and deposit balances, but was partially offset by margin
compression in the commercial loan and deposit portfolios. During 2000, average
loan balances increased by 17 percent compared with 12 percent in 1999, while
average deposit balances increased 8 percent (2 percent in 1999), increasing net
interest income and loan fees by $140.1 million in 2000 and $125.7 million in
1999. The incremental funding benefit of deposits contributed $51.8 million in
2000.

    The provision for credit losses increased $21.5 million (20 percent) to
$126.9 million in 2000 compared with $105.4 million in 1999 and $93.8 million in
1998. The increase primarily reflects growth in the loan portfolio.

    Noninterest income increased $56.0 million (13 percent) in 2000 to $484.3
million, compared with $428.3 million in 1999 and $372.7 million in 1998. The
increase in 2000 reflects higher noninterest income from leasing acquisitions of
$21.6 million, revenue from sales of SBA loans of $13.8 million and other
commercial banking fees of $11.8 million. The $55.6 million increase in
noninterest income in 1999 as compared with 1998 primarily reflects core fee
growth and $36.5 million of revenue from the acquisition of Libra Investments,
Inc. in January 1999.
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    Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill and other intangible assets expense,
increased $106.1 million (14 percent) in 2000 to $861.0 million, as compared
with $754.9 million in 1999 and $689.9 million in 1998. Goodwill and other
intangible assets expense increased $25.2 million (37 percent) in 2000 to $93.9
million, as compared with $68.7 million in 1999 and $59.3 million in 1998.
Acquisitions represent approximately $71.7 million of the $131.3 million
increase in total non-interest expense. The efficiency ratio for Wholesale
Banking, on a cash basis, was 39.8 percent in 2000 and 40.0 percent in 1999, as
compared with 39.6 percent in 1998.

CONSUMER BANKING Consumer Banking delivers products and services to the broad
consumer market and small businesses through branch offices, telemarketing,
online services, direct mail and automated teller machines ("ATMs"). Operating
earnings were $460.2 million in 2000, compared with $444.6 million in 1999 and
$432.6 million in 1998. Return on average assets increased to 3.52 percent from
3.17 percent in 1999 and 3.42 percent in 1998. Return on average common equity
was 44.4 percent in 2000, compared with 40.1 percent in 1999 and 43.1 percent in
1998.

    Net interest income increased $49.0 million (4 percent) in 2000 as compared
with 1999 primarily reflecting core growth in home equity loans, consumer
deposits, bank acquisitions and the increased value of deposits in a rising rate
environment partially offset by the expected reduction in the indirect
automobile portfolio.

    The provision for credit losses increased a modest 1 percent in 2000 to
$210.1 million, compared with $207.5 million in 1999 and $136.5 million in 1998.
The slight increase in 2000 primarily reflects increasing charge-offs in the
home equity loan portfolio due to growth, partially offset by declining consumer
loan charge offs related to the divestiture of the indirect automobile portfolio
and improved fraud management.

    Noninterest income increased $37.1 million (8 percent) in 2000 to $517.8
million, compared with $480.7 million in 1999 and $471.2 million in 1998,
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primarily reflecting growth in deposit charges and debit card fees of $46.2
million in 2000, partially offset by lower revenues of $13.0 million from the
sale of student loans relative to 1999. Excluding acquisitions the growth rate
of noninterest income in 2000 as compared with 1999 was approximately 6 percent.

    Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill and other intangible asset expense,
increased $43.8 million (5 percent) to $881.0 million in 2000, compared with
$837.2 million in 1999 and $851.0 million in 1998. Goodwill and other intangible
asset expense increased $15.0 million (33 percent) in 2000 to $60.3 million, as
compared with $45.3 million in 1999 and $39.9 million in 1998. The increase in
total noninterest expenses of $58.8 million in 2000 includes the impact of
acquisitions of approximately $37.2 million. Also during 2000, the Company
invested in a number of customer service quality initiatives and technology
enhancements designed to improve the earnings growth of the Consumer Banking
business line. As with any investment, successful achievement of the anticipated
deposit and loan growth and related contribution to earning is subject to a
number of uncertainties. The decrease in noninterest expense in 1999 as compared
with 1998 reflects cost benefits from integration of banking acquisitions. The
efficiency ratio, on a cash basis, remained relatively flat at 46.8 percent in
2000, compared with 46.6 percent in 1999 and declined from 49.3 percent in 1998.

PAYMENT SYSTEMS Payment Systems includes consumer and business credit cards,
corporate and purchasing card services, card-accessed secured and unsecured
lines of credit, ATM processing and merchant processing. Operating earnings
increased $30.6 million (16 percent) to $222.2 million in 2000, compared with
$191.6 million in 1999 and $171.3 million in 1998. Return on average assets was
2.31 percent in 2000, compared with 2.20 percent in 1999 and 2.04 percent in
1998. Return on average common equity was 23.4 percent in 2000, compared with
25.8 percent in 1999 and 23.8 percent in 1998.

    Total revenue increased $169.8 million (17 percent) in 2000 and $83.6
million (9 percent) in 1999, reflecting strong growth in corporate and retail
card product fees and data processing-related revenue. Credit card fees
increased $97.9 million (17 percent) to $667.1 million in 2000 compared with
$569.3 million in 1999 and $553.8 million in 1998. Data processing revenues
increased $27.2 million in 2000, primarily attributed to the acquisition of
Mellon Network Services' electronic funds transfer processing unit in June 1999.
Growth in small business and retail credit card balances increased net interest
income approximately $28.1 million in 2000 while growth in credit card loan fees
added $14.0 million. In 1999, total revenue increased 9 percent from 1998
despite the loss of approximately one-half of the U.S. Government purchasing
card business in late 1998.

    The provision for credit losses increased by $27.4 million (9 percent) in
2000 and by $38.4 million (15 percent) in 1999. The increases were primarily due
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to increased net charge-offs in credit-scored small business loans and credit
cards.

    Noninterest expense, excluding goodwill and other intangible asset expense,
increased $73.0 million (22 percent) in 2000 and $13.5 million (4 percent) in
1999. The increase in 2000 was primarily due to continued growth in key
strategic co-brand partnerships, new products and technology, as well as
transaction volume. The lower growth rate of expenses in 1999 was impacted by
the loss of the U.S. Government purchasing card business. Goodwill and other
intangible asset expense increased $20.8 million (59 percent) in 2000 to $56.0
million from $35.2 million in 1999 and $31.3 million in 1998, primarily
reflecting strategic portfolio acquisitions during 2000 and the acquisition of
Mellon Network Services' electronic funds transfer processing unit in June 1999.
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The efficiency ratio, on a cash basis, increased to 35.6 percent in 2000,
compared with 34.3 percent in 1999 and 36.0 percent in 1998.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MARKETS Wealth Management and Capital Markets
engages in equity and fixed income trading activities, offers investment banking
and underwriting services for corporate and public sector customers and provides
securities, mutual funds, annuities and insurance products to consumers and
regionally based businesses through a network of banking centers and brokerage
offices. It also offers institutional trust, investment management services, and
private banking and personal trust services. The business line contributed
operating earnings of $220.0 million in 2000, compared with $196.4 million in
1999 and $154.9 million in 1998. The return on average common equity improved
slightly to 17.0 percent in 2000, compared with 16.9 percent and 16.3 percent in
1999 and 1998, respectively.

    During 2000, total revenue grew $245.6 million (18 percent) to $1.6 billion
compared with $1.4 billion in 1999 and $934.8 million in 1998, primarily due to
revenue growth in investment banking, trading account profits and commissions,
and trust fees and growth in loans and deposits in private banking. Investment
banking and brokerage revenues increased $197.7 million (25 percent) in 2000
compared with 1999 and $377.5 million (89 percent) in 1999 compared with 1998.
The growth in 1999 reflected the acquisition of Piper Jaffray Companies, Inc. in
May 1998. Trust and investment management fees increased $13.0 million (3
percent) in 2000 and $43.4 million (13 percent) in 1999. Slower growth in 2000
reflected the impact on assets under management of the volatility in the
financial markets experienced in the latter part of the year. During 2000,
average loan balances in private banking increased $567 million (25 percent)
compared with $309 million (16 percent) in 1999, while average deposit balances
increased $400 million (14 percent) in 2000 and $678 million (31 percent) in
1999.

    Offsetting the positive impact of revenue growth, noninterest expense
(including goodwill and other intangible asset expense) increased $207.0 million
(20 percent) in 2000 and $355.6 million (52 percent) in 1999. The increase in
2000 was primarily due to the increase in investment banking and brokerage
activity, office expansion and other growth initiatives. The increase in 1999 is
attributed to the acquisition of Piper Jaffray Companies Inc. effective in May
1998.

CORPORATE SUPPORT Corporate Support includes the net effect of support units
after internal revenue and expense allocations, treasury management and other
corporate activities. Net interest income primarily relates to the Company's
investment and residential mortgage portfolios, and the net effect of transfer
pricing related to loan and deposit balances. The provision for credit losses
represents the residual aggregate of the credit provision allocated to the
reportable business units and the Company's recorded provision which is
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Refer to "Corporate Risk Profile" on pages 15 to 20 for further
discussion on the allowance for credit losses and changes in the provision for
credit losses. Noninterest income and noninterest expenses primarily reflect
certain business activities managed on a corporate basis and the elimination of
intersegment revenue and expense. Noninterest income included $55.0 million of
gains on the disposition of office buildings in Portland, Boise and Minneapolis
during 2000. Provisions for income taxes reflect the difference between the
income tax expense or benefit allocated to the other business units (37 percent
of pretax earnings in 2000, compared with 37 percent and 38 percent of pretax
earnings in 1999 and 1998, respectively) and the effective tax rate on a
consolidated basis. Refer to "Income Tax Expense" on page 10 for discussion of
the effective tax rate on a consolidated basis.
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     TABLE 3
         ANALYSIS OF NET INTEREST INCOME

(Dollars in Millions)                                               2000           1999           1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Net interest income, as reported............................    $3,471.3       $3,260.7       $3,060.6
   Taxable-equivalent adjustment............................        69.5           42.0           51.3
                                                                --------------------------------------
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)..............    $3,540.8       $3,302.7       $3,111.9
                                                                --------------------------------------
Average yields and weighted average rates
 (taxable-equivalent basis)
   Earning assets yield.....................................        9.05%          8.36%          8.55%
   Rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities................        5.45           4.45           4.70
                                                                --------------------------------------
Gross interest margin.......................................        3.60%          3.91%          3.85%
                                                                --------------------------------------
Net interest margin.........................................        4.73%          4.83%          4.87%
                                                                --------------------------------------
Net interest margin without taxable-equivalent increments...        4.64%          4.77%          4.79%
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Average Balances:
   Loans....................................................    $ 66,439       $ 60,578       $ 55,979
   Earning assets...........................................      74,863         68,392         63,868
   Deposits.................................................      50,681         48,099         47,327
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

STATEMENT OF INCOME ANALYSIS

NET INTEREST INCOME Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis was $3.54
billion in 2000, compared with $3.30 billion in 1999 and $3.11 billion in 1998.
The 7 percent increase in 2000 as compared with 1999 was primarily due to growth
in earning assets. The net interest margin declined from 4.83 percent in 1999 to
4.73 percent in 2000, as lagging deposit growth relative to the growth in total
earning assets increased the Company's incremental cost of funding. Average
earning assets increased $6.5 billion (9 percent) in 2000, primarily due to
strong core loan growth and acquisitions partially offset by reductions in
indirect automobile loans, securities and residential mortgages. Average loans
were up $5.9 billion (10 percent) from 1999. Excluding indirect automobile and
residential mortgage loans, average loans in 2000 were higher by $7.9 billion
(14 percent) than 1999, reflecting growth in commercial loans, home equity and
second mortgages and acquisitions (see Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet
and Related Yields and Rates on pages 62 and 63).

     TABLE 4
         NET INTEREST INCOME -- CHANGES DUE TO RATE AND VOLUME

                                                2000 Compared with 1999                          1999 Compared with 1998
                                        -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                   Volume         Yield/Rate          Total         Volume         Yield/Rate          Total

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Increase (decrease) in
   Interest income
      Loans......................       $526.9          $ 425.5           $952.4         $398.3          $(115.8)          $282.5
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      Taxable securities.........        (27.8)             7.6            (20.2)         (39.7)           (13.3)           (53.0)
      Nontaxable securities......         (3.8)            (1.0)            (4.8)          (8.5)            (2.8)           (11.3)
      Federal funds sold and
         resale agreements.......          3.2              5.9              9.1           (6.3)            (5.7)           (12.0)
      Other......................         79.1             42.3            121.4           52.6              1.2             53.8
                                        -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
         Total...................        577.6            480.3           1,057.9         396.4           (136.4)           260.0
   Interest expense
      Savings deposits and time
         deposits less than
         $100,000................         15.8            209.4            225.2          (28.8)          (123.4)          (152.2)
      Time deposits over
       $100,000..................        102.8             48.7            151.5           68.2            (15.8)            52.4
      Short-term borrowings......        (34.2)            53.7             19.5            8.6             (7.2)             1.4
      Long-term debt.............        215.2            208.4            423.6          200.6            (39.9)           160.7
      Mandatorily redeemable
         preferred securities....           --               --               --            6.9               --              6.9
                                        -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
         Total...................        299.6            520.2            819.8          255.5           (186.3)            69.2
                                        -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Increase (decrease) in net
         interest income.........       $278.0          $ (39.9)          $238.1         $140.9          $  49.9           $190.8
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This table shows the components of the change in net interest income by volume
and rate on a taxable-equivalent basis. The effect of changes in rates on volume
changes is allocated based on the percentage relationship of changes in volume
and changes in rate. This table does not take into account the level of
noninterest-bearing funding, nor does it fully reflect changes in the mix of
assets and liabilities.
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    Average available-for-sale securities were $487 million (9 percent) lower in
2000 compared with 1999, reflecting both maturities and sales of securities.

    Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis increased $190.8 million
(6 percent) from 1998 to 1999. Net interest margin remained relatively flat from
4.87 percent in 1998 to 4.83 percent in 1999. Average earning assets increased
$4.5 billion (7 percent) in 1999, primarily due to strong core loan growth and
consumer loan portfolio purchases in late 1998, partially offset by reductions
in securities, the sale of indirect automobile loans and continued runoff of
residential mortgages. Average loans were up $4.6 billion (8 percent) from 1998
to 1999, reflecting the impact of acquisitions and core loan growth offset by
declining residential mortgages and indirect automobile loan balances.

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES The provision for credit losses was $670.0 million
in 2000, compared with $531.0 million in 1999 and $379.0 million in 1998. The
provision for credit losses is recorded to bring the allowance for credit losses
to a level deemed appropriate by management based on factors discussed in
"Analysis and Determination of Allowance for Credit Losses" on pages 19 and 20.

    Refer to "Corporate Risk Profile" for further information on the factors
considered by the Company in assessing the credit quality of the loan portfolio
and establishing the allowance for credit losses.

NONINTEREST INCOME Noninterest income in 2000 was $3.26 billion, compared with
$2.76 billion in 1999 and $2.26 billion in 1998. The increase of $499.7 million
(18 percent) in 2000 as compared with 1999 was primarily driven by a $147.5
million (32 percent) increase in investment banking and trading activity, credit
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card fee revenue growth of $120.1 million (20 percent), increased service
charges on deposit accounts of $34.7 million (8 percent), gains of $55.0 million
on the disposal of the Company's ownership in office buildings in Portland,
Boise and Minneapolis, the impact of acquisitions, revenues associated with
equity investments and other fees, partially offset by a $20.0 million
gain-on-sale of branches in Kansas and Iowa completed in 1999. Excluding the
impact of acquisitions and divestitures, noninterest income for 2000 would have
been approximately 15 percent higher than 1999.

    Noninterest income in 1999 was $2.76 billion, compared with $2.26 billion in
1998, an increase of $502.1 million (22 percent). The increase was driven
primarily by the full year impact and continued growth in fee income generated
by U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray in its investment banking and brokerage
activities. Revenue growth related to investment banking and brokerage
activities for 1999 approximated $414.0 million. Trust and investment management
fees, acquisitions and service charges on deposit accounts also contributed to
the year-over-year growth in noninterest income. Credit card fee revenue
increased by 5 percent from 1998 despite the loss of approximately one-half of
the U.S. Government purchasing card business in late 1998.

NONINTEREST EXPENSE Noninterest expense in 2000 was $3.60 billion compared with
$3.13 billion in 1999 and $2.84 billion in 1998. Excluding merger-related
charges, noninterest expense on an operating basis was $3.54 billion in 2000,
compared with $3.06 billion in 1999 and $2.63 billion in 1998. The increase in
noninterest expenses on an operating basis, of $472.6 million (15 percent) is
primarily attributable to growth in expenses related to investment banking and
brokerage activity of $228.6 million, the impact of acquisitions and
divestitures of $175.9 million and the planned spending on service-quality
technology and other customer initiatives. The full year 2000 also included
approximately $33.0 million of Internet infrastructure-related expense. The
efficiency ratio

     TABLE 5
         NONINTEREST INCOME

(Dollars in Millions)                                             2000             1999           1998

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Credit card fee revenue.....................................    $  723.2       $  603.1       $  574.8
Trust and investment management fees........................       473.9          459.7          413.0
Service charges on deposit accounts.........................       469.3          434.6          406.0
Investment products fees and commissions....................       359.1          347.7          229.7
Investment banking revenue..................................       356.3          245.4          100.4
Trading account profits and commissions.....................       252.5          215.9          118.1
Available-for-sale securities gains (losses)................         7.0           (1.3)          12.6
Other.......................................................       617.1          453.6          402.0
                                                                --------------------------------------
   Total noninterest income.................................    $3,258.4       $2,758.7       $2,256.6
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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     TABLE 6
         NONINTEREST EXPENSE

(Dollars in Millions)                                               2000        1999        1998
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------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Salaries....................................................    $1,677.0    $1,460.9    $1,210.9
Employee benefits...........................................       279.0       248.4       222.3
Net occupancy...............................................       236.9       204.6       187.4
Furniture and equipment.....................................       167.4       160.1       153.4
Professional services.......................................        90.7        74.1        71.3
Telephone...................................................        88.4        75.4        69.7
Advertising and marketing...................................        73.0        64.3        67.2
Other personnel costs.......................................        61.5        63.2        53.0
Goodwill and other intangible assets........................       235.5       165.6       143.7
Other.......................................................       627.7       547.9       448.9
                                                                --------------------------------
   Total operating noninterest expense......................     3,537.1     3,064.5     2,627.8
Merger-related charges......................................        61.3        62.4       216.5
                                                                --------------------------------
   Total noninterest expense................................    $3,598.4    $3,126.9    $2,844.3
                                                                --------------------------------
Efficiency ratio*...........................................        53.0%       51.6%       53.1%
Efficiency ratio before merger-related charges..............        52.1        50.5        49.1
Banking efficiency ratio before merger-related charges**....        43.6        43.2        44.2
Average number of full-time equivalent employees............      28,949      26,891      26,526
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 *Computed as noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income on a
  taxable-equivalent basis and noninterest income excluding available-for-sale
  securities gains and losses.

**Without investment banking and brokerage activity.

before merger-related charges increased slightly to 52.1 percent in 2000
compared with 50.5 percent in 1999 due to investments in Internet technology and
other customer-related initiatives.

    Without the effect of investment banking and brokerage activities,
noninterest expense, on an operating basis, increased by $244.0 million in 2000.
The banking efficiency ratio before merger-related charges was 43.6 percent for
2000, essentially unchanged from 43.2 percent in 1999 and slightly improved from
44.2 percent in 1998. The improved banking efficiency ratio in 1999 compared
with 1998 reflects the results of integrating acquired banking businesses.

    The Company has incurred merger-related charges in each of the last three
years in conjunction with its acquisitions. Noninterest expense included merger-
related charges of $61.3 million in 2000, compared with $62.4 million in 1999
and $216.5 million in 1998. Merger-related charges in 2000, primarily system
conversions and integration costs associated with consolidating redundant
operations, related to the Company's recent acquisitions. Merger-related charges
in 1999 related to the integration of the Company's various acquisitions,
including finalizing the integration of the former U.S. Bancorp ("USBC") after
its 1997 merger with the Company, and ongoing activities related to Piper
Jaffray and nine other acquired entities. During 1998, the Company incurred
$203.8 million of merger-related charges to integrate USBC and $11.7 million
related to the acquisition of Piper Jaffray. In 1998, employee benefit
curtailment gains of $25.6 million were offset against merger-related charges.
Refer to Note D of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on these acquired businesses and merger-related charges.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE The provision for income taxes was $869.3 million in 2000,
compared with $855.0 million in 1999 and $766.5 million in 1998. The Company's
effective tax rate was 35.3 percent in 2000, compared with 36.2 percent in 1999
and 36.6 percent in 1998. The effective rate declined in 2000 as compared with
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1999 and 1998, primarily due to an increase in tax-exempt income, incremental
tax credits and a decrease in the effective rate for state income taxes
resulting from changes in business mix during the year.

    At December 31, 2000, the Company's net deferred tax asset was $13.2
million, compared with $158.4 million at December 31, 1999. In determining that
realization of the deferred tax asset was more likely than not, the Company gave
consideration to a number of factors, including taxable income during carryback
periods, recent earnings history, expectations for earnings in the future and,
where applicable, the expiration dates associated with tax carrybacks and
carryforwards. For further information on income taxes, refer to Note P of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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     TABLE 7
         LOAN PORTFOLIO DISTRIBUTION

                                                   2000                  1999                  1998                  1997
                                            ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                       Percent               Percent               Percent               Percent
At December 31 (Dollars in Millions)        Amount    of Total     Amount   of Total     Amount   of Total     Amount   of Total
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...........................    $29,920       43.3%   $26,491       42.1%   $23,703       40.1%   $21,393       39.1%
   Real estate
      Commercial mortgage...............     10,208       14.8      9,784       15.5      8,193       13.9      8,025       14.7
      Construction......................      4,443        6.4      4,322        6.9      3,069        5.2      2,359        4.3
   Lease financing......................      4,096        5.9      2,372        3.8      2,271        3.8      2,006        3.7
                                            ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
         Total commercial...............     48,667       70.4     42,969       68.3     37,236       63.0     33,783       61.8
CONSUMER
   Home equity and second mortgage......      9,438       13.7      8,681       13.8      7,409       12.5      5,815       10.6
   Credit card..........................      4,499        6.5      4,313        6.9      4,221        7.1      4,200        7.7
   Revolving credit.....................      1,868        2.7      1,815        2.9      1,686        2.9      1,567        2.9
   Installment..........................        896        1.3        999        1.6      1,168        2.0      1,199        2.2
   Automobile...........................        564         .8        884        1.4      3,413        5.8      3,227        5.9
   Student *............................        674        1.0        563         .9        829        1.4        686        1.2
                                            ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Subtotal..........................     17,939       26.0     17,255       27.5     18,726       31.7     16,694       30.5
   Residential mortgage.................      2,485        3.6      2,661        4.2      3,160        5.3      4,231        7.7
                                            ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Total consumer....................     20,424       29.6     19,916       31.7     21,886       37.0     20,925       38.2
                                            ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
         Total loans....................    $69,091      100.0%   $62,885      100.0%   $59,122      100.0%   $54,708      100.0%
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                 1996
                                          ------------------
                                                     Percent
At December 31 (Dollars in Millions)       Amount   of Total
----------------------------------------  ------------------

COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...........................  $19,545       37.3%
   Real estate
      Commercial mortgage...............    8,022       15.3
      Construction......................    2,125        4.1
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   Lease financing......................    1,848        3.5
                                          ------------------
         Total commercial...............   31,540       60.2
CONSUMER
   Home equity and second mortgage......    5,271       10.1
   Credit card..........................    3,632        6.9
   Revolving credit.....................    1,581        3.0
   Installment..........................    1,463        2.8
   Automobile...........................    3,388        6.5
   Student *............................      580        1.1
                                          ------------------
      Subtotal..........................   15,915       30.4
   Residential mortgage.................    4,900        9.4
                                          ------------------
      Total consumer....................   20,815       39.8
                                          ------------------
         Total loans....................  $52,355      100.0%
-----------------------------------------------------------------------

*All or part of the student loan portfolio may be sold when the repayment period
 begins.

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

LOANS The Company's loan portfolio increased $6.2 billion to $69.1 billion at
December 31, 2000, from $62.9 billion at December 31, 1999. Average loans
increased 10 percent to $66.4 billion in 2000 compared with $60.6 billion in
1999. Excluding indirect automobile and residential mortgages, average loans for
2000 were $7.9 billion (14 percent) higher than 1999, reflecting core loan
growth of 10 percent and the impact of acquisitions. The Company's loan
portfolio inherently has credit risk which may ultimately result in loan
charge-offs. The Company manages this risk through stringent, centralized credit
policies and review procedures, as well as diversification along geographic and
customer lines. See "Corporate Risk Profile" for a more detailed discussion of
the management of credit risk including the allowance for credit losses.

COMMERCIAL Commercial loans, including lease financing, totaled $34.0 billion at
December 31, 2000, up $5.2 billion (18 percent) from year-end 1999. The increase
reflects core growth in commercial loans, the impact of bank acquisitions and
approximately $1.4 billion of leases related to the acquisition of Lyon
Financial Services, Inc. and Oliver-Allen Corporation during 2000. At December
31, 1999, commercial loans were $28.9 billion, up $2.9 billion (11 percent) from
year-end 1998.

    The Company offers a broad array of traditional commercial lending products
and specialized products such as asset-based lending, lease financing,
agricultural credit, correspondent banking and energy lending. The Company
monitors and manages the portfolio diversification by industry, customer and
geography. The commercial portfolio reflects the Company's focus of serving
small business customers, middle-market and larger corporate businesses
throughout its 16 state banking region and national customers within certain
niche industry groups.

    The Company also provides financing to enable customers to grow their
businesses through acquisitions of existing businesses, buyouts or other
recapitalizations. Such leveraged financings approximated $3.2 billion at
December 31, 2000, compared with $2.4 billion at December 31, 1999. During a
business cycle with slower economic growth, businesses with leveraged capital
structures may experience insufficient cashflows to service their debt. The
Company manages its exposure to leveraged financing loans by maintaining strong
underwriting standards, portfolio diversification and effectively managing the
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relationship with the customer either directly or through a reputable financial
intermediary. At December 31, 2000, approximately 96 percent of such loans
outstanding were made to existing customers or were sponsored by financial
intermediaries with an established relationship with the Company. These
leveraged financings are diversified among industry groups with no significant
industry concentrations as a percentage of these loans. The Company's
underwriting standards require businesses to maintain acceptable capital levels
and have demonstrated sufficient cash flows to support debt service of the
loans.
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    Table 8 provides a summary of the significant industry groups and geographic
locations of commercial loans outstanding at December 31, 2000, and 1999. This
diverse mix of industries and geographic locations is similar to 1998. Certain
industry segments, including agricultural, paper and forestry and mortgage
banking, continue to experience economic stress. At December 31, 2000, the
Company's agricultural portfolio is diversified with 36 percent of agricultural
loans to livestock producers, 27 percent to crop producers, 24 percent to food
processors and 13 percent to wholesalers of agricultural products. Volatility in
crop and livestock prices in 2000 continued to adversely affect this category of
loans. Food processors and wholesalers have been less negatively affected by
commodity pricing. The paper and forestry sector has been stressed due to excess
capacity and softening domestic demand. This industry represents 2.7 percent of
commercial loans at December 31, 2000. The mortgage banking sector represents
approximately 2.7 percent of commercial loans at December 31, 2000, compared
with 3.5 percent at December 31, 1999. Loans to mortgage banking customers are
primarily warehouse lines which are collateralized with the underlying
mortgages. The Company regularly monitors its collateral position to manage its
risk exposure.

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE The Company's portfolio of commercial real estate
mortgages and construction loans grew to $14.7 billion at December 31, 2000,
compared with $14.1 billion at December 31, 1999. Commercial mortgages
outstanding increased to $10.2 billion at December 31, 2000, compared with $9.8
billion at December 31, 1999. Real estate construction loans at December 31,
2000, totaled $4.5 billion compared with $4.3 billion at year-end 1999. Table 9
provides a summary of real estate exposures by property type and geographic
location. The Company maintains the real estate construction designation until
the project is producing sufficient cash flow to service traditional mortgage
financing, at which time, if retained, the loan is transferred to the commercial
mortgage portfolio. Approximately $242.6 million of construction loans were
transferred to the commercial mortgage portfolio in 2000.

    At year-end 2000, real estate secured $175 million of tax-exempt industrial
development loans and $1.1 billion of standby letters of credit. At year-end
1999, these exposures totaled $161 million and $920 million, respectively. The
Company's commercial real estate mortgages and construction loans had combined
unfunded commitments of $3.27 billion at December 31, 2000, and $3.61 billion at
December 31, 1999.

    The Company also finances the operations of real estate developers and other
entities with operations related to real estate. These loans are not secured
directly by real estate and are subject to terms and conditions similar to
commercial loans. These loans are included in the commercial loan category and
totaled $1.90 billion at December 31, 2000, and $1.85 billion at December 31,
1999.

     TABLE 8
         COMMERCIAL LOAN EXPOSURE BY INDUSTRY GROUP AND GEOGRAPHY
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                                                                   Percentage of Total
                                                                     at December 31
                                                                  ---------------------
INDUSTRY TYPE                                                     2000             1999

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Consumer cyclical products and services.....................       18.0%           17.5%
Capital goods...............................................       11.9            12.6
Financials..................................................       10.2            10.0
Consumer staples............................................        9.7            10.1
Agricultural................................................        8.6             8.8
Transportation..............................................        4.5             4.8
Paper and forest products, mining and basic materials.......        4.4             4.8
Mortgage banking............................................        2.7             3.5
Other.......................................................       30.0            27.9
                                                                  ---------------------
                                                                  100.0%          100.0%
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GEOGRAPHY
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Minnesota...................................................       22.1%           23.2%
Washington..................................................       14.2            16.2
California..................................................        9.9             8.6
Oregon......................................................        8.2             8.7
Other states within banking region..........................       27.5            28.1
                                                                  ---------------------
   Total banking region.....................................       81.9            84.8
Other regions...............................................       18.1            15.2
                                                                  ---------------------
                                                                  100.0%          100.0%
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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     TABLE 9
         COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE EXPOSURE BY PROPERTY TYPE AND GEOGRAPHY

                                                                   Percentage of Total
                                                                   at December 31
                                                                   -------------------
PROPERTY TYPE                                                      2000          1999

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Business owner occupied.....................................        23.7%         25.0%
Multi-family................................................        14.1          13.2
Commercial property -- office...............................        12.2          12.3
Commercial property -- retail...............................        10.2          10.2
Homebuilders................................................         8.2           9.3
Commercial property -- industrial...........................         8.2           6.6
Hotel/motel.................................................         8.1           7.7
Other.......................................................        15.3          15.7
                                                                   -------------------
                                                                   100.0%        100.0%
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GEOGRAPHY
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
California..................................................        23.7%         22.1%
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Washington..................................................        21.4          21.2
Oregon......................................................        11.9          12.6
Minnesota...................................................         7.8           9.1
Other states within banking region..........................        29.0          29.6
                                                                   -------------------
   Total banking region.....................................        93.8          94.6
Other regions...............................................         6.2           5.4
                                                                   -------------------
                                                                   100.0%        100.0%
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CONSUMER Total consumer loan outstandings increased $508 million to $20.4
billion at December 31, 2000, from $19.9 billion at December 31, 1999. Excluding
indirect automobile loans and residential mortgage loans, consumer loans
increased $993 million (6 percent). This increase reflected growth in home
equity and second mortgage loans of $757 million (9 percent), credit card loans
of $186 million (4 percent), revolving credit loans of $53 million (3 percent),
and student loans of $111 million (20 percent) from December 31, 1999, offset by
a decrease in installment loans from December 31, 1999. The decline in
residential mortgages and indirect automobile loans reflects the Company's
objective of exiting these businesses due to their lower returns.

    Of the total consumer loan balances outstanding, approximately 84 percent
are to customers located in the Company's banking region.
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    TABLE 10
         AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES PORTFOLIO AVERAGE MATURITY

At December 31, 2000                                             Average Maturity
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Treasury...............................................     2 years, 1 month
Mortgage-backed.............................................    6 years, 3 months
Other U.S. agencies.........................................    3 years, 6 months
State and political.........................................    5 years, 0 months
Other*......................................................    8 years, 0 months
   Total....................................................    5 years, 6 months
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

* Excludes equity securities that have no stated maturity.

  The average maturity shown above is contractual maturity for all securities
  except for mortgage-backed securities. The average maturity for
  mortgage-backed securities includes expected prepayments reflecting current
  market conditions.

SECURITIES At December 31, 2000, available-for-sale securities totaled $4.3
billion, compared with $4.9 billion at December 31, 1999, primarily reflecting
maturities and prepayments of securities. The relative mix of the type of
available-for-sale securities did not change significantly from the prior year.
The primary objectives of the Company's investment portfolio are to meet
business line collateral needs and reduce overall interest rate risk.

DEPOSITS Total deposits were $53.3 billion at December 31, 2000, up $1.7 billion
(3 percent) from year-end 1999. Noninterest-bearing deposits were $15.7 billion
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at December 31, 2000, compared with $16.1 billion at December 31, 1999.
Interest-bearing deposits totaled $37.6 billion at December 31, 2000, compared
with $35.5 billion at December 31, 1999. The increase in interest-bearing
deposit balances is primarily due to acquisitions.

BORROWINGS The Company utilized both short-term and long-term borrowings to fund
core loan growth in excess of deposit growth. Short-term borrowings, which
include federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase
and other short-term borrowings, were $2.8 billion at December 31, 2000, up from
$2.3 billion at year-end 1999. The increase was primarily due to higher federal
funds purchased balances partially offset by a decline in securities sold under
agreements to repurchase.

    Long-term debt was $18.6 billion at December 31, 2000, up from $16.6 billion
at December 31, 1999. During 2000, the Company issued $5.2 billion of debt with
an average original maturity of 2.2 years under its medium term and bank note
programs. The Company also borrowed $400 million of variable-rate advances from
the Federal Home Loan Bank. These issuances were partially offset by maturities
of $3.3 billion of medium-term and bank notes, $238 million of Federal Home Loan
Bank advances and $250 million of putable asset trust securities.

    Due to lagging deposit growth, the Company continues to utilize long-term
debt to fund core asset growth.

    TABLE 11
         AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES PORTFOLIO AMORTIZED COST, FAIR VALUE AND
         YIELD BY MATURITY DATE

Maturing:                              Within 1 Year                 1-5 Years                   5-10 Years
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                   Amor-                       Amor-                        Amor-
At December 31, 2000               tized    Fair               tized     Fair               tized     Fair
(Dollars in Millions)               Cost   Value   Yield        Cost    Value   Yield        Cost    Value   Yield
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Treasury....................  $ 65    $ 65    5.48%      $ 291    $  294   5.68%      $   2    $    2   6.41%
Mortgage-backed*.................   357     357    6.84       1,013     1,013   6.78         596       594   6.78
Other U.S. agencies..............    35      36    7.55          77        79   7.56          30        30   7.61
State and political**............   151     152    7.34         405       412   7.39         384       393   7.41
Other............................     2       2    8.92           7         7   3.89           5         5   3.42
                                   -------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  Total..........................  $610    $612    6.87%      $1,793   $1,805   6.76%      $1,017   $1,024   7.03%
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Maturing:                              Over 10 Years                    Total
---------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------------
                                   Amor-                        Amor-
At December 31, 2000               tized    Fair                tized     Fair
(Dollars in Millions)               Cost   Value    Yield        Cost    Value    Yield
---------------------------------  ----------------------------------------------------

U.S. Treasury....................  $ --    $ --        --%     $ 358    $  361     5.65%
Mortgage-backed*.................   529     529      6.89      2,495     2,493     6.81
Other U.S. agencies..............     7       7      7.62        149       152     7.57
State and political**............    80      82      7.83      1,020     1,039     7.43
Other............................   222     223     11.13***     236       237     7.15***
                                   ----------------------------------------------------
  Total..........................  $838    $841      7.08%***  $4,258   $4,282     6.89%***
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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 *Variable rate mortgage-backed securities represented 6% of the balance of
  mortgage-backed securities.
 **Yields on state and political obligations that are not subject to federal
   income tax have been adjusted to taxable-equivalent using a 35% tax rate.
***Average yield calculations exclude equity securities that have no stated
yield.
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CORPORATE RISK PROFILE

OVERALL RISK PROFILE Managing risk is an essential part of successfully
operating a financial services company. The most prominent risk exposures are
credit quality, interest rate sensitivity, market and liquidity. Credit quality
risk is the risk of not collecting interest and/or the principal balance of a
loan or investment when it is due. Interest rate risk is the potential reduction
of net interest income as a result of changes in interest rates. Rate movements
can affect the repricing of assets and liabilities differently, as well as their
market value. Market risk arises from fluctuations in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices that may result in changes in the values of
financial instruments, such as trading account securities that are accounted for
on a mark-to-market basis. Liquidity risk is the possible inability to fund
obligations to depositors, investors and borrowers.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT The Company's strategy for credit risk management
includes stringent, centralized credit policies and uniform underwriting
criteria for all loans, including specialized lending categories such as
mortgage banking, real estate construction and consumer credit. The strategy
also emphasizes diversification on both a geographic and customer level, regular
credit examinations, and quarterly management reviews of large loans and loans
experiencing deterioration of credit quality. The Company strives to identify
potential problem loans early, take any necessary charge-offs promptly and
maintain strong reserve levels. Commercial banking operations rely on a strong
credit culture that combines prudent credit policies and individual lender
accountability. In addition, the commercial lenders generally focus on
middle-market companies within their regions. The Company utilizes a credit risk
rating system intended to measure the credit quality of individual commercial
loans. In the Company's retail banking operations, standard credit scoring
systems are used to assess consumer credit risks and to price consumer products
accordingly.

    In evaluating its credit risk, the Company considers changes, if any, in
underwriting activities, the loan portfolio composition (including product mix
and geographic, industry or customer-specific concentrations), trends in loan
performance, the level of allowance coverage, and macroeconomic factors.
Generally, the domestic economy has experienced slower growth in 2000. Corporate
earnings growth rates have slowed and credit quality indicators among certain
industry sectors have deteriorated slightly. Approximately 55 percent of the
Company's loan portfolio consists of credit to businesses and consumers in
Minnesota, Oregon, Washington and California. Although the financial markets
have experienced more volatility in 2000, most economic indicators in the
Company's operating regions are similar to or slightly favorable with national
trends. According to federal and state government agencies, unemployment rates
in Minnesota, Oregon, Washington and California were 3.1 percent, 4.2 percent,
4.9 percent and 4.6 percent, respectively, for the month of December 2000,
compared with the national unemployment rate of 4.0 percent. At September 30,
2000, the national residential foreclosure rate was .84 percent, compared with
 .35 percent in Minnesota, .55 percent in Oregon, .61 percent in Washington and
 .62 percent in California.
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    TABLE 12
         NET CHARGE-OFFS AS A PERCENTAGE OF AVERAGE LOANS OUTSTANDING

                                                                2000    1999    1998    1997    1996

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...............................................     .74%    .50%    .33%    .68%    .15%
   Real estate:
      Commercial mortgage...................................    (.01)    .01    (.20)   (.20)   (.11)
      Construction..........................................     .14     .01     .11     .16     .08
   Lease financing..........................................     .46     .26     .20     .28     .10
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Total commercial......................................     .50     .34     .18     .41     .08
CONSUMER
   Credit card..............................................    4.29    4.23    4.36    4.11    3.88
   Other....................................................    1.93    1.84    1.45    1.28     .85
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Subtotal..............................................    2.50    2.37    2.14    1.93    1.54
   Residential mortgage.....................................     .15     .10     .17     .12     .08
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Total consumer........................................    2.19    2.07    1.79    1.53    1.16
                                                                ------------------------------------
     Total..................................................    1.01%    .94%    .78%    .84%    .51%
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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    The Company also engages in nonlending activities that may give rise to
credit risk, including interest rate swap contracts for balance sheet hedging
purposes, foreign exchange transactions and interest rate swap contracts for
customers, and the processing of credit card transactions for merchants. These
activities are subject to the same credit review, analysis and approval
processes as those applied to commercial loans. For additional information on
interest rate swaps, see "Interest Rate Risk Management."

ANALYSIS OF NET LOAN CHARGE-OFFS Net loan charge-offs increased $102.2 million
to $669.9 million in 2000, compared with $567.7 million in 1999 and $434.2
million in 1998. The ratio of total net charge-offs to average loans was 1.01
percent in 2000, compared with .94 percent in 1999 and .78 percent in 1998.

    Commercial loan net charge-offs for 2000 were $233.0 million, compared with
$133.5 million in 1999 and $65.2 million in 1998. The increase in commercial
loan net charge-offs in 2000 included higher losses on a growing portfolio of
small business products, growth in the corporate card portfolio, credit losses
related to the acquired leasing businesses and lower levels of recoveries
compared with 1999.

    Consumer loan net charge-offs in 2000 were $436.9 million, compared with
$434.2 million in 1999 and $369.0 million in 1998. The ratio of consumer net
charge-offs to average loans in 2000 was 2.19 percent, up from 2.07 percent in
1999 and 1.79 percent in 1998. The $2.7 million increase in consumer loan net
charge-offs in 2000 reflects expected losses associated with consumer portfolio
purchases during late 1998, offset by lower losses related to the indirect
automobile portfolio.

    The increase in consumer loan net charge-offs of $168.8 million in 1999,
relative to 1998, reflects higher overdraft fraud losses in addition to expected
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losses associated with consumer portfolio purchases. During 1999, the Company
modified its charge-off policy to conform with regulatory guidelines for
consumer loans. Without the change in policy, total consumer net charge-offs as
a percent of average loans outstanding would have been 2.09 percent.

ANALYSIS OF NONPERFORMING ASSETS Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans,
restructured loans, other real estate and other nonperforming assets owned by
the Company. Interest payments (currently received on approximately 30 percent
of the Company's nonperforming loans) are typically applied against the
principal balance and not recorded as income.

    TABLE 13
         NONPERFORMING ASSETS*

                                                                                At December 31
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                                            2000       1999      1998      1997      1996

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...............................................    $232.8    $142.5    $154.4    $170.4    $138.4
   Real estate:
      Commercial mortgage...................................      61.3      78.9      35.5      45.4      44.4
      Construction..........................................      27.3      25.3      17.2      14.9      18.8
   Lease financing..........................................      38.1      18.7      11.3       8.7       5.3
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
      Total commercial......................................     359.5     265.4     218.4     239.4     206.9
CONSUMER
   Residential mortgage.....................................      30.3      36.0      46.6      52.1      57.6
   Other....................................................       7.5       8.6      13.9       5.6       4.8
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
      Total consumer........................................      37.8      44.6      60.5      57.7      62.4
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
            Total nonperforming loans.......................     397.3     310.0     278.9     297.1     269.3
OTHER REAL ESTATE...........................................      40.1      20.7      14.3      30.1      43.2
OTHER NONPERFORMING ASSETS..................................      17.5      16.8      11.1      12.3       7.5
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
            Total nonperforming assets......................    $454.9    $347.5    $304.3    $339.5    $320.0
                                                                ----------------------------------------------
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due**...................    $187.1    $125.8    $106.8    $ 93.8    $ 90.6
Nonperforming loans to total loans..........................       .58%      .49%      .47%      .54%      .51%
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real
 estate.....................................................       .66       .55       .51       .62       .61
Net interest lost on nonperforming loans....................    $ 30.9    $ 19.7    $ 14.9    $ 17.1    $ 24.8
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 *Throughout this document, nonperforming assets and related ratios do not
  include accruing loans 90 days or more past due.
**These loans are not included in nonperforming assets and continue to accrue
  interest because they are secured by collateral and/or are in the process of
  collection and are reasonably expected to result in repayment or restoration
  to current status.
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    TABLE 14
         DELINQUENT LOAN RATIOS*
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                                                                           At December 31
                                                                ------------------------------------
90 days or more past due                                        2000    1999    1998    1997    1996

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...............................................     .88%    .57%    .66%    .81%    .74%
   Real estate:
      Commercial mortgage...................................     .62     .84     .44     .57     .55
      Construction..........................................     .61     .59     .56     .67     .91
   Lease financing..........................................     .97     .80     .55     .44     .33
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Total commercial......................................     .81     .65     .60     .72     .68
CONSUMER
   Credit card..............................................    1.24     .96     .74     .69     .88
   Other....................................................     .75     .57     .51     .41     .34
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Subtotal..............................................     .87     .67     .56     .48     .46
   Residential mortgage.....................................    1.44    1.57    1.86    1.58    1.48
                                                                ------------------------------------
      Total consumer........................................     .94     .79     .75     .70     .70
                                                                ------------------------------------
         Total..............................................     .85%    .69%    .65%    .71%    .69%
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Ratios include nonperforming loans and are expressed as a percentage of ending
 loan balances.

    At December 31, 2000, nonperforming assets totaled $454.9 million, compared
with $347.5 million at year-end 1999 and $304.3 million at year-end 1998. The
ratio of nonperforming assets to loans plus other real estate was .66 percent at
December 31, 2000, compared with .55 percent at year-end 1999 and .51 percent at
year-end 1998.

    In 2000, nonperforming commercial loans increased $94.1 million, reflecting
stress in agricultural and paper and forestry portfolios. Nonperforming consumer
loans declined approximately $6.8 million, primarily related to lower levels of
nonperforming residential mortgage loans at year-end. Other real estate
increased $19.4 million, which included an agricultural-related credit that was
transferred to other real estate in the fourth quarter of 2000.

    Accruing loans 90 days or more past due totaled $187.1 million, compared
with $125.8 million at December 31, 1999, and $106.8 million at December 31,
1998. The increase reflected the impact of an acquired small-ticket leasing
portfolio, higher consumer delinquencies and the economic business cycle in the
commercial portfolio. These loans are not included in nonperforming assets and
continue to accrue interest because they are secured by collateral and/or are in
the process of collection and are reasonably expected to result in repayment or
restoration to current status. Consumer loans 30 days or more past due were 2.84
percent of the total consumer portfolio at December 31, 2000, compared with 2.65
percent and 2.39 percent of the total consumer portfolio at December 31, 1999,
and 1998, respectively. Consumer loans 90 days or more past due (including non-
performing loans) totaled .94 percent of the total consumer loan portfolio at
December 31, 2000, compared with .79 percent of the total consumer loan
portfolio at December 31, 1999, and .75 percent at December 31, 1998.
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    TABLE 15
         SUMMARY OF ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

(Dollars in Millions)                                             2000          1999        1998        1997      1996
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance at beginning of year................................    $  995.4    $1,000.9    $1,008.7    $  992.5    $908.0
CHARGE-OFFS
   Commercial
      Commercial............................................       245.8       184.6       129.7       178.1      84.1
      Real estate:
         Commercial mortgage................................         5.6        10.4         7.5        14.3      17.0
         Construction.......................................         8.3         1.1         4.6         4.3       2.3
      Lease financing.......................................        18.5         8.0         4.5         6.3       2.3
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total commercial...................................       278.2       204.1       146.3       203.0     105.7
   Consumer
      Credit card...........................................       193.2       188.5       196.8       172.4     150.4
      Other.................................................       309.8       331.5       241.7       194.3     134.3
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Subtotal...........................................       503.0       520.0       438.5       366.7     284.7
      Residential mortgage..................................         4.8         3.6         7.3         6.7       6.8
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total consumer.....................................       507.8       523.6       445.8       373.4     291.5
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
            Total...........................................       786.0       727.7       592.1       576.4     397.2
RECOVERIES
   Commercial
      Commercial............................................        30.9        58.2        55.1        37.7      55.4
      Real estate:
         Commercial mortgage................................         6.9         9.6        23.8        30.5      25.7
         Construction.......................................         2.1          .6         1.7          .8       1.0
      Lease financing.......................................         5.3         2.2          .5         1.1        .6
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total commercial...................................        45.2        70.6        81.1        70.1      82.7
   Consumer
      Credit card...........................................        14.0        18.2        21.4        20.2      16.6
      Other.................................................        55.9        70.3        54.4        35.1      34.0
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Subtotal...........................................        69.9        88.5        75.8        55.3      50.6
      Residential mortgage..................................         1.0          .9         1.0         1.3       2.4
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total consumer.....................................        70.9        89.4        76.8        56.6      53.0
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
            Total...........................................       116.1       160.0       157.9       126.7     135.7
NET CHARGE-OFFS
   Commercial
      Commercial............................................       214.9       126.4        74.6       140.4      28.7
      Real estate:
         Commercial mortgage................................        (1.3)         .8       (16.3)      (16.2)     (8.7)
         Construction.......................................         6.2          .5         2.9         3.5       1.3
      Lease financing.......................................        13.2         5.8         4.0         5.2       1.7
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total commercial...................................       233.0       133.5        65.2       132.9      23.0
   Consumer
      Credit card...........................................       179.2       170.3       175.4       152.2     133.8
      Other.................................................       253.9       261.2       187.3       159.2     100.3
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Subtotal...........................................       433.1       431.5       362.7       311.4     234.1
      Residential mortgage..................................         3.8         2.7         6.3         5.4       4.4
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                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
         Total consumer.....................................       436.9       434.2       369.0       316.8     238.5
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
            Total...........................................       669.9       567.7       434.2       449.7     261.5
Provision charged to operating expense......................       670.0       531.0       379.0       460.3     271.2
Acquisitions and other changes..............................        71.3        31.2        47.4         5.6      74.8
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
Balance at end of year......................................    $1,066.8    $  995.4    $1,000.9    $1,008.7    $992.5
                                                                ------------------------------------------------------
Allowance as a percentage of:
   Period-end loans.........................................        1.54%       1.58%       1.69%       1.84%     1.90%
   Nonperforming loans......................................         269         321         359         340       369
   Nonperforming assets.....................................         235         286         329         297       310
   Net charge-offs..........................................         159         175         231         224       380
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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ANALYSIS AND DETERMINATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES The allowance for
credit losses provides coverage for probable losses inherent in the Company's
loan portfolio. Management evaluates the allowance each quarter to determine
that it is adequate to cover inherent losses. The evaluation of each element and
the overall allowance is based on continuing assessment of problem loans and
related off-balance sheet items, recent loss experience, and other factors,
including regulatory guidance and economic conditions. Management has determined
that the allowance for credit losses is adequate.

    At December 31, 2000, the allowance was $1.07 billion, or 1.54 percent of
loans. This compares with an allowance of $995.4 million, or 1.58 percent of
loans, at year-end 1999, and $1.00 billion, or 1.69 percent of loans, at
December 31, 1998. The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to nonperforming
loans was 269 percent at December 31, 2000, compared with 321 percent at
year-end 1999 and 359 percent at year-end 1998. The ratio of the allowance for
credit losses to net charge-offs was 159 percent at December 31, 2000, compared
with 175 percent at year-end 1999 and 231 percent at year-end 1998. The Company
considers historical charge-off levels in addition to existing conditions and
other factors when establishing the allowance for credit losses.

    The recent trend of slower economic growth, financial market volatility and
softening of corporate earnings may impact the required level of the allowance
for credit losses.

    Management determines the amount of allowance required for certain loan
categories based on relative risk characteristics of the loan portfolio. Table
16 shows the amount of the allowance for credit losses by loan category. The
allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on a quarterly review of
individual loans outstanding and binding commitments to lend, including standby
letters of credit. The Company's regular risk rating process is an integral
component of the methodology utilized in determining the allowance for credit
losses. An analysis of the migration of commercial loans and actual loss
experience throughout the business cycle is also conducted quarterly to assess
reserves established for credits with similar risk characteristics. An allowance
is established for pools of commercial loans based on the risk ratings assigned.
The amount is supported by the results of the migration analysis that considers
historical loss experience by risk rating, as well as current and historical
economic conditions and industry risk factors. The Company separately analyzes
the carrying value of impaired loans to determine whether the carrying value is
less than or equal to the appraised collateral value or the present value of
expected cash flows. Based on this analysis, an allowance for credit losses may
be specifically established for impaired loans. The allowance established for
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commercial loan portfolios and impaired commercial loans increased $80.8 million
to $431.6 million in 2000. The change reflected growth in the commercial
portfolio during 2000, higher levels of non-performing commercial loans,
increasing sector risk in the health care industry, continued stress in the
paper and forest products sector due to excess capacity and softening domestic
demand and the deterioration in credit risk ratings associated with
participation in Shared National Credits that experienced stress during the
year.

    The allowance recorded for consumer portfolios is based on an analysis of
product mix, credit scoring and risk composition of the portfolio, fraud loss
and bankruptcy experiences, economic conditions and historical and expected
delinquency and charge-off statistics for each homogenous category or group of
loans. Based on this information and analysis, an allowance is established
approximating a rolling twelve-month estimate of net charge-offs. The allowance
recorded for consumer loans declined $4.8 million to $442.2 million in 2000. The
decline primarily reflects changes in the mix of consumer loans including an
increase in home equity loans that experience lower charge-off ratios, the
impact of product mix within co-branded credit card portfolios, lower levels of
installment and automobile loans and the seasoning of consumer loan portfolios
acquired in late 1998.

    Regardless of the extent of the Company's analysis of customer performance,
portfolio evaluations, trends or risk management processes established, certain
inherent but undetected losses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is
due to several factors including inherent delays in obtaining information
regarding a customer's financial condition or changes in their unique business
conditions; the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral
assessments and the interpretation of economic trends; volatility of economic or
customer-specific conditions affecting the identification and estimation of
losses for larger non-homogeneous credits; and the sensitivity of assumptions
utilized to establish allowances for homogenous groups of loans among other
factors. For each of these factors, the estimated inherent loss is recorded as
unallocated allowance. The Company estimates a range of inherent losses related
to the existence of these exposures and for the risk in concentrations to
specific borrowers, financings of highly leveraged transactions, products or
industries. The estimates are based upon the Company's
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    TABLE 16
         ELEMENTS OF ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

                                                   Allocation Amount At December 31
                                         ----------------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                      2000        1999        1998        1997      1996

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMMERCIAL
   Commercial........................    $  362.3    $284.4    $  190.7    $  215.1    $222.1
   Real estate
      Commercial mortgage............        35.9      43.3        25.8        29.7      42.4
      Construction...................        17.3      10.9        10.9        15.9      12.5
   Lease financing...................        16.1      12.2        15.2        11.1      10.8
                                         ----------------------------------------------------
      Total commercial...............       431.6     350.8       242.6       271.8     287.8
CONSUMER
   Credit card.......................       155.4     161.1       177.0       137.6     132.1
   Other.............................       280.8     280.4       283.0       206.5     164.9
                                         ----------------------------------------------------

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form 10-K405

28



      Subtotal.......................       436.2     441.5       460.0       344.1     297.0
   Residential mortgage..............         6.0       5.5        10.0         8.9       9.9
                                         ----------------------------------------------------
      Total consumer.................       442.2     447.0       470.0       353.0     306.9
                                         ----------------------------------------------------
      Total allocated................       873.8     797.8       712.6       624.8     594.7
      Unallocated portion............       193.0     197.6       288.3       383.9     397.8
                                         ----------------------------------------------------
      Total allowance................    $1,066.8    $995.4    $1,000.9    $1,008.7    $992.5
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                       Allocation as a Percent of Loans Outstanding
                                       --------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                  2000      1999      1998      1997      1996

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMMERCIAL
   Commercial........................  1.21%     1.07%      .80%     1.01%     1.14%
   Real estate
      Commercial mortgage............   .35       .44       .31       .37       .53
      Construction...................   .39       .25       .36       .67       .59
   Lease financing...................   .39       .51       .67       .55       .58
                                       --------------------------------------------
      Total commercial...............   .89       .82       .65       .80       .91
CONSUMER
   Credit card.......................  3.45      3.74      4.19      3.28      3.64
   Other.............................  2.09      2.17      1.95      1.65      1.34
                                       --------------------------------------------
      Subtotal.......................  2.43      2.56      2.46      2.06      1.87
   Residential mortgage..............   .24       .21       .32       .21       .20
                                       --------------------------------------------
      Total consumer.................  2.17      2.24      2.15      1.69      1.47
                                       --------------------------------------------
      Total allocated................  1.26      1.27      1.21      1.14      1.14
      Unallocated portion............   .28       .31       .49       .70       .76
                                       --------------------------------------------
      Total allowance................  1.54%     1.58%     1.69%     1.84%     1.90%
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

evaluation of imprecision risk associated with the commercial and consumer
allowance levels and the estimated impact of the current economic environment on
portfolio segments or concentrations. The unallocated allowance decreased
slightly to $193.0 million at year-end 2000 from $197.6 million and $288.3
million at December 31, 1999, and 1998, respectively. Although the Company
determines the amount of each element of the allowance separately and this
process is an important credit management tool, the entire allowance for credit
losses is available for the entire loan portfolio. The actual amount of losses
incurred can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. The Company's
methodology includes several factors intended to minimize the differences in
estimated and actual losses. These factors allow the Company to adjust its
estimate of losses based on the most recent information available. Refer to Note
A of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for accounting policies
related to the allowance for credit losses.

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT The Company's policy is to maintain a low interest
rate risk position. The Company limits the exposure of net interest income
associated with interest rate movements through asset/liability management
strategies. The Company's Asset and Liability Management Committee ("ALCO") uses
three methods for measuring and managing consolidated interest rate risk: Net
Interest Income Simulation Modeling, Market Value Simulation Modeling, and
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Repricing Mismatch Analysis.

NET INTEREST INCOME SIMULATION MODELING:  The Company uses a net interest income
simulation model to estimate near-term (next 24 months) risk due to changes in
interest rates. The model, which is updated monthly, incorporates substantially
all of the Company's assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments,
together with forecasted changes in the balance sheet and assumptions that
reflect the current interest rate environment. ALCO uses the model to simulate
the effect of immediate and sustained parallel shifts in the yield curve of 1
percent, 2 percent and 3 percent as well as the effect of immediate and
sustained flattening or steepening of the yield curve. ALCO also calculates the
sensitivity of the simulation results to changes in key assumptions, such as the
Prime/LIBOR spread or core deposit repricing. The results from the simulation
are reviewed by ALCO monthly and are used to guide ALCO's hedging strategies.
ALCO guidelines, approved by the Company's Board of Directors, limit the
estimated change in net interest income to 1.5 percent of forecasted net
interest income over the succeeding 12 months and 3 percent of forecasted net
interest income over the second 12 months given a 1 percent change in interest
rates. At December 31, 2000, forecasted net interest income for the next 12
months would decrease $12 million from an immediate 100 basis point upward
parallel shift in rates and increase $7 million from a downward shift of the
same magnitude. Forecasted net interest income for the second 12 months would
increase $1 million from an immediate 100 basis point upward parallel shift in
rates and decrease $25 million from a downward shift of the same magnitude.
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MARKET VALUE SIMULATION MODELING: The net interest income simulation model is
somewhat limited by its dependence upon accurate forecasts of future business
activity and the resulting effect on balance sheet assets and liabilities. As a
result, its usefulness is greatly diminished for periods beyond one or two
years. To better measure all interest rate risk, both short-term and long-term,
the Company uses a market value simulation model. This model estimates the
effect of 1 percent, 2 percent and 3 percent rate shocks on the present value of
substantially all future cash flows of the Company's outstanding assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments. ALCO also calculates the
sensitivity of the simulation results to changes in key assumptions, such as
core deposit repricing and core deposit life. The amount of market value risk is
subject to a limit, approved by the Company's Board of Directors, of .5 percent
of assets for an immediate 100 basis point rate shock. Historically, the
Company's market value risk position has been substantially lower than its
limits.

REPRICING MISMATCH ANALYSIS: A traditional gap analysis provides a static
measurement of the relationship between the amounts of interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities repricing in a given time period. While the analysis
provides a useful snapshot of interest rate risk, it does not capture all
aspects of interest rate risk. As a result, ALCO uses the repricing mismatch
analysis primarily for managing intermediate-term interest rate risk and has
established limits, approved by the Company's Board of Directors, for the 2 to 3
year gap position of 5 percent of assets.

USE OF DERIVATIVES TO MANAGE INTEREST RATE RISK: While each of the interest rate
risk measurements has limitations, taken together they represent a comprehensive
view of the magnitude of the Company's

    TABLE 17
         INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY GAP ANALYSIS

                                                           Repricing Maturities
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                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
At December 31, 2000                  Less Than          3-6         6-12          1-5      More Than
(dollars in millions)                  3 Months       Months       Months        Years        5 Years

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Assets
   Loans..........................     $38,948       $ 3,591      $ 4,105      $16,531       $ 5,894
   Available-for-sale
    securities....................         381           174          319        1,790         1,594
   Other earning assets...........       2,249            38           75          535           695
   Nonearning assets..............         622            19          324        1,490         2,230
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
      Total assets................     $42,200       $ 3,822      $ 4,823      $20,346       $10,413
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
Liabilities and Equity
   Deposits.......................     $23,842       $ 3,095      $ 3,188      $12,917       $10,215
   Other purchased funds..........       2,800            --            1            1             7
   Long-term debt.................      13,479           239          571        2,475         1,802
   Company-obligated mandatorily
      redeemable preferred
      securities of subsidiary
      trusts holding solely the
      junior subordinated
      debentures of the parent
      company.....................          --            --           --           --           950
   Other liabilities..............          39            --          383          192            --
   Equity.........................          --            --           --           --            --
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
      Total liabilities and
       equity.....................     $40,160       $ 3,334      $ 4,143      $15,585       $12,974
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
Effect of off-balance sheet
 hedging instruments
   Receiving fixed................     $   328       $   348      $   451      $ 4,116       $ 1,375
   Receiving floating.............       1,500            --           --           --            --
   Paying fixed...................          --            --         (500)          --            --
   Paying floating................      (7,618)           --           --           --            --
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
      Total effect of off-balance
         sheet hedging
         instruments..............     $(5,790)      $   348      $   (49)     $ 4,116       $ 1,375
                                      ---------------------------------------------------------------
Repricing gap.....................     $(3,750)      $   836      $   631      $ 8,877       $(1,186)
Cumulative repricing gap..........      (3,750)       (2,914)      (2,283)       6,594         5,408
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                     Repricing Maturities
                                    ----------------------
At December 31, 2000                 Non-Rate
(dollars in millions)               Sensitive        Total

----------------------------------
Assets
   Loans..........................   $    22       $69,091
   Available-for-sale
    securities....................        24         4,282
   Other earning assets...........        --         3,592
   Nonearning assets..............     5,686        10,371
                                    ----------------------
      Total assets................   $ 5,732       $87,336
                                    ----------------------
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Liabilities and Equity
   Deposits.......................   $    --       $53,257
   Other purchased funds..........        --         2,809
   Long-term debt.................        --        18,566
   Company-obligated mandatorily
      redeemable preferred
      securities of subsidiary
      trusts holding solely the
      junior subordinated
      debentures of the parent
      company.....................        --           950
   Other liabilities..............     2,500         3,114
   Equity.........................     8,640         8,640
                                    ----------------------
      Total liabilities and
       equity.....................   $11,140       $87,336
                                    ----------------------
Effect of off-balance sheet
 hedging instruments
   Receiving fixed................   $    --       $ 6,618
   Receiving floating.............        --         1,500
   Paying fixed...................        --          (500)
   Paying floating................        --        (7,618)
                                    ----------------------
      Total effect of off-balance
         sheet hedging
         instruments..............   $    --       $    --
                                    ----------------------
Repricing gap.....................   $(5,408)      $    --
Cumulative repricing gap..........        --            --
----------------------------------------------------------

This table estimates the repricing maturities of the Company's assets,
liabilities and hedging instruments based upon the Company's assessment of the
repricing characteristics of contractual and non-contractual instruments.
Non-contractual deposit liabilities are allocated among the various maturity
categories as follows: approximately 30 percent of regular savings, 20 percent
of interest-bearing checking, 40 percent of non-indexed money market checking
and 50 percent of money market savings balances are reflected in the Less Than 3
Months category, with 67 percent of the remainder placed in the 1-5 Years
category and 33 percent in the More Than 5 Years category. Approximately 57
percent of demand deposits and related nonearning asset accounts is allocated in
the More Than 5 Years category, 34 percent is allocated in the 1-5 Years
category with the remaining allocated in the Less Than 3 Months category.
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    TABLE 18
         INTEREST RATE SWAP HEDGING PORTFOLIO NOTIONAL BALANCES AND YIELDS BY
         MATURITY DATE

At December 31, 2000 (Dollars in Millions)
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                       Weighted            Weighted
                                                                                        Average             Average
                                                                   Notional       Interest Rate       Interest Rate
Maturity Date                                                        Amount            Received                Paid
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
2001........................................................        $  790            6.69%               6.88%
2002........................................................           544            6.22                6.74
2003........................................................         1,674            6.02                6.69
2004........................................................         1,475            6.60                6.72
2005........................................................           700            6.48                6.69
Thereafter..................................................         1,935            6.41                6.73
                                                                    ------
Total.......................................................        $7,118            6.38%               6.73%
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*At December 31, 2000, the Company received fixed-rate interest and paid
 variable-rate interest on substantially all swaps in its hedging portfolio. In
 addition, the Company had $1.0 billion in basis swaps maturing in 2002.

interest rate risk over various time intervals. The Company manages its interest
rate risk by entering into off-balance sheet transactions, primarily
receive-fixed interest rate swaps and, to a lesser degree, basis swaps and
interest rate caps and floors.

    In 2000, the Company executed $770.0 million of new interest rate swaps to
reduce its interest rate risk. This was largely offset by $674.0 million of swap
terminations and $55.0 million of interest rate swap maturities. Interest rate
swaps involve the exchange of fixed- and variable-rate payments without the
exchange of the underlying notional amount on which the interest payments are
calculated. As of December 31, 2000, the Company received and made payments on
$7.1 billion notional amount of interest rate swaps. These swaps had a weighted
average interest rate received of 6.38 percent and a weighted average interest
rate paid of 6.73 percent. The remaining maturity of these swaps ranges from 3
months to 14.6 years with an average remaining maturity of 4.3 years. In 2000,
swaps decreased net interest income by $17.1 million, and in 1999 and 1998,
swaps increased net income by $60.7 million and $37.9 million, respectively.

    The Company also purchases interest rate caps and floors and executes basis
swaps to minimize the impact of fluctuating interest rates on earnings. To hedge
against rising interest rates, the Company may use interest rate caps.
Counterparties to these interest rate cap agreements pay the Company based on
the notional amount and the difference between current rates and strike rates.
There were no caps outstanding at December 31, 2000. To hedge against falling
interest rates, the Company uses interest rate floors. Like caps, counterparties
to interest rate floor agreements pay the Company based on the notional amount
and the difference between current rates and strike rates. The total notional
amount of floor agreements purchased as of December 31, 2000, all of which were
LIBOR-indexed, was $500 million. Basis swaps help the Company manage the monthly
interest income at risk within each year. At December 31, 2000, the notional
amount of the Company's basis swaps totaled $1.0 billion. The impact of basis
swaps and interest rate caps and floors on net interest income was not
significant in 2000, 1999 and 1998. See Note A of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the Company's accounting policy related to these types
of transactions.

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT Market risk is subject to regular monitoring by
management. The Company uses a value-at-risk ("VaR") model to measure and manage
market risk in its broker/dealer activities. The VaR model uses an estimate of
volatility appropriate to each instrument and assumes a ninety-ninth percentile
adverse move in the underlying markets. Market risk limits are established
subject to approval by the Company's Board of Directors. The Company's VaR limit
was $40 million at December 31, 2000. The estimate of market risk in its
broker/dealer activities, including equities, fixed income, high yield
securities and foreign exchange, as estimated by the VaR analysis, was $15
million at December 31, 2000.
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    In addition to the VaR analysis, the Company imposes stop loss limits and
position limits. A stress-test model is used to provide management with
perspective on market events that a VaR model does not capture. In each case,
the historical worst performance of each asset class is observed and applied to
current trading positions.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT The objective of liquidity risk management is to
ensure the continuous availability of funds to meet the demands of depositors,
investors and borrowers. ALCO is responsible for structuring the balance sheet
to meet these needs. It regularly reviews current and forecasted funding needs
as well as market
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conditions for issuing debt to wholesale investors. Based on this information,
ALCO supervises wholesale funding activity as well as the maintenance of
contingent funding sources. A majority of the Company's funding comes from
customer deposits within its operating region.

    The Company's ability to raise negotiated funding at competitive prices is
influenced by rating agencies' views of the Company's credit quality, liquidity,
capital and earnings. As of December 31, 2000, Moody's Investors Services,
Standard & Poors, Inc. and Fitch rated the Company's senior debt as "A1," "A"
and "A+," respectively. The debt ratings reflect the agencies' recognition of
the strong, consistent financial performance of the Company and quality of the
balance sheet.

    At the parent company, funding primarily consists of long-term debt and
equity. At December 31, 2000, parent company long-term debt outstanding was $5.1
billion, compared with $3.8 billion at December 31, 1999. The parent company
issued $1.8 billion of medium-term notes during 2000, which was partially offset
by $518.2 million of debt maturities and other repayments.

    Total parent company debt maturing in 2001 is $870.0 million. These debt
obligations are expected to be met through medium-term note issuances, as well
as from the approximately $1.4 billion of parent company cash and cash
equivalents at December 31, 2000. It is the Company's practice to maintain
liquid assets at the parent company sufficient to fund its operating cash needs
and prefund debt maturities for the next twelve months.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to managing capital for maximum shareholder benefit and
maintaining strong protection for depositors and creditors. At December 31,
2000, tangible common equity (common equity less goodwill) was $5.9 billion, or
7.0 percent of assets, compared with 6.5 percent at year-end 1999 and 6.0
percent at year-end 1998. The tier 1 capital ratio was 7.1 percent at December
31, 2000, compared with 6.8 percent at December 31, 1999, and 6.4 percent at
December 31, 1998. The total risk-based capital ratio was 10.9 percent at
December 31, 2000, compared with 11.1 percent at December 31, 1999, and 10.9
percent at December 31, 1998. The leverage ratio was 7.6 percent at December 31,
2000, compared with 7.4 percent and 6.8 percent at December 31, 1999, and
December 31, 1998, respectively.

    The measures used to assess capital include the capital ratios established
by the bank regulatory agencies, including the specific ratios for the "well
capitalized" designation. The Company manages various capital ratios to maintain
appropriate capital levels in accordance with Board-approved capital guidelines,
ascribing the most significance to the tangible common equity ratio. The Company
intends to maintain sufficient capital in each of its bank subsidiaries to be
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"well capitalized" as defined by the regulatory agencies.

    On June 8, 1998, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase
of up to $2.5 billion of the Company's common stock through March 31, 2000. On
February 16, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors replaced the authorization
with a new authorization to repurchase up to $2.5 billion of the Company's stock
through March 31, 2002. The purpose of these share repurchase programs was to
ensure that appropriate capital levels are maintained. Shares acquired under the
programs may be used for: 1) dividend reinvestment programs; 2) employee stock
purchase and option programs; and 3) business acquisitions. The shares were
repurchased in the open market or through negotiated transactions. The Company
repurchased 20.2 million shares for $432.2 million in 2000 and 16.6 million
shares for $560.8 million in 1999. The share repurchase program was rescinded on
January 17, 2001, in anticipation of the Company's merger with Firstar
Corporation.

    TABLE 19
         CAPITAL RATIOS

At December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                             2000         1999        1998

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Tangible common equity*.....................................    $5,887      $5,134      $4,465
   As a percent of assets...................................       7.0%        6.5%        6.0%

Tier 1 capital..............................................    $6,322      $5,631      $4,917
   As a percent of risk-adjusted assets.....................       7.1%        6.8%        6.4%

Total risk-based capital....................................    $9,772      $9,281      $8,343
   As a percent of risk-adjusted assets.....................      10.9%       11.1%       10.9%

Leverage ratio..............................................       7.6         7.4         6.8
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Defined as common equity less goodwill.
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    TABLE 20
         SUBSIDIARY CAPITAL RATIOS

                                                                            At December 31, 2000
                                                                ---------------------------------------------
                                                                                 Total
                                                                  Tier 1    Risk-based                  Total
(Dollars in Millions)                                            Capital       Capital    Leverage     Assets

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Minimum.....................................................         4.0%         8.0%         3.0%
Well-Capitalized............................................         6.0         10.0          5.0

SIGNIFICANT BANK SUBSIDIARIES
U.S. Bank National Association..............................         7.3         11.2          7.9    $82,023
U.S. Bank National Association ND...........................        10.3         15.6         10.2      2,474
U.S. Bank National Association MT...........................        14.9         17.6         12.0      1,097
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Note: These balances and ratios were prepared in accordance with regulatory
accounting principles as disclosed in the subsidiaries' regulatory reports.

    On April 22, 1998, the Company's shareholders authorized an increase in the
Company's capital stock necessary to implement the three-for-one split of the
Company's common stock announced February 18, 1998. The number of common and
preferred shares that the Company has authority to issue was increased from 500
million shares and 10 million shares, respectively, to 1.5 billion shares and 50
million shares, respectively. The stock split was in the form of a 200 percent
dividend payable May 18, 1998, to shareholders of record on May 4, 1998. The
impact of the stock split has been reflected in the financial statements for all
periods presented and all share and per share data included herein.

DIVIDENDS During 2000, total dividends on common stock were $644.7 million
compared with $573.1 million in 1999 and $516.4 million in 1998. The Company has
raised its quarterly dividend rate in each of the past five years. On a per
share basis, dividends paid to common shareholders totaled $.86 in 2000, $.78 in
1999 and $.70 in 1998. On February 27, 2001, the Board of Directors set the
quarterly dividend rate for the common stock of the combined company resulting
from the merger of U.S. Bancorp with Firstar Corporation at $.1875 per share. In
the merger, holders of shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock received 1.265 shares
of the combined company common stock for each share of U.S. Bancorp common stock
they held.

    The Company's primary funding sources for common stock dividends are
dividends received from its bank and nonbank subsidiaries. Payment of dividends
to the Company by its depository subsidiaries is subject to ongoing review by
banking regulators and to various statutory limitations. For further
information, see Note U of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. ("SFAS") 133, "Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS 138, "Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- an Amendment to FASB
Statement No. 133," establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires that an entity
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of
financial position and measure those instruments at fair value. In certain
defined conditions, a derivative may be specifically designated as a hedge for a
particular exposure. The accounting for changes in the fair value of the
derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting
designation. The Company adopted SFAS 133 as of January 1, 2001. The balance
sheet impact for the adoption of SFAS 133 included: a $37.5 million increase to
other assets for the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as fair value
hedges of fixed-rate debt and certificates of deposit with a corresponding
increase to the related hedged liabilities, a $12.1 million increase to other
assets and a $4.1 million increase in other liabilities for the fair value of
interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges of floating rate commercial
loans and debt with a corresponding net increase of $8.0 million to other
comprehensive income and deferred tax liabilities. The cumulative-effect
adjustment recorded on the income statement was not material.

ACCOUNTING FOR TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND EXTINGUISHMENTS
OF LIABILITIES SFAS 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities," established accounting and reporting
standards for sales and servicing of financial assets, securitization
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transactions and the extinguishment of liabilities. The statement replaced SFAS
125 and provided clarification of issues related to qualified special purpose
entities and additional disclosures about securitizations and the residual
interests retained. SFAS 140 is effective for transfers and servicing of
financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities occurring after March 31,
2001. Disclosures required for financial statements were effective for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2000.
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    TABLE 21
         FOURTH QUARTER SUMMARY

                                                                   Three Months Ended
                                                                       December 31
                                                                  ---------------------
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)                       2000            1999

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)..............      $915.7         $841.0
Provision for credit losses.................................       180.0          146.0
                                                                  ---------------------
   Net interest income after provision for credit losses....       735.7          695.0
Available-for-sale securities gains.........................         6.0            2.1
Other noninterest income....................................       828.3          761.8
Merger-related charges......................................        17.5           27.7
Other noninterest expense...................................       888.2          843.4
                                                                  ---------------------
   Income before income taxes...............................       664.3          587.8
Taxable-equivalent adjustment...............................        17.6           10.3
Income taxes................................................       228.1          208.5
                                                                  ---------------------
   Net income...............................................      $418.6         $369.0
                                                                  ---------------------

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Return on average assets....................................        1.92%          1.86%
Return on average common equity.............................        19.8           20.4
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis)..............        4.73           4.80
Efficiency ratio............................................        51.9           54.3

PER COMMON SHARE
Earnings per share..........................................      $  .56         $  .50
Diluted earnings per share..................................         .56            .50
Dividends paid..............................................        .215           .195

SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS BEFORE MERGER-RELATED CHARGES
Return on average assets....................................        1.97%          1.94%
Return on average common equity.............................        20.3           21.4
Efficiency ratio............................................        50.9           52.6
Banking efficiency ratio*...................................        41.4           44.7
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Without investment banking and brokerage activity.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

The assets and liabilities of a financial institution are primarily monetary in
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nature. Therefore, future changes in prices do not affect the obligations to pay
or receive fixed and determinable amounts of money. During periods of inflation,
monetary assets lose value in terms of purchasing power while monetary
liabilities have corresponding purchasing power gains. Since banks generally
have an excess of monetary assets over monetary liabilities, inflation will, in
theory, cause a loss of purchasing power in the value of shareholders' equity.
However, the concept of purchasing power is not an adequate indicator of the
effect of inflation on banks because it does not take into account changes in
interest rates, which are a more important determinant of bank earnings.

    Other sections of the Management's Discussion and Analysis provide the
information necessary for an understanding of the Company's ability to react to
changing interest rates.

FOURTH QUARTER SUMMARY

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company had net income of $418.6 million
($.56 per diluted share), compared with $369.0 million ($.50 per diluted share)
in the fourth quarter of 1999, including merger-related charges. The Company
also reported operating earnings of $429.9 million ($.57 per diluted share) in
the fourth quarter of 2000, compared with operating net income of $386.4 million
($.52 per diluted share) in the fourth quarter of 1999. Fourth quarter net
interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis increased $74.7 million to $915.7
million, compared with fourth quarter of 1999, primarily reflecting increased
earning assets driven by core commercial, home equity and second mortgage loan
growth and bank acquisitions partially offset by a reduction in indirect auto
and residential mortgage loans. The net interest margin on a taxable-equivalent
basis decreased in the fourth quarter of 2000 to 4.73 percent, compared with
4.80 percent in the fourth quarter of 1999, as lagging deposit growth relative
to the growth in total earning assets has increased the Company's incremental
cost of funding.
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    The provision for credit losses increased to $180.0 million in the fourth
quarter of 2000, compared with $146.0 million in the fourth quarter of 1999.
Noninterest income increased $70.4 million from the same quarter a year ago, to
$834.3 million. Credit card fee revenue was higher quarter over quarter by $27.5
million, or 17 percent, reflecting continued growth in corporate and retail card
product fees, merchant and ATM processing-related revenue. Investment banking
revenue, investment products fees and commissions and trading account profits
and commissions in the fourth quarter of 2000 grew in total by $9.6 million, or
4 percent, over the same period of 1999 due primarily to market-related activity
at U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray. Other income increased by $34.7 million, or 28
percent, over the fourth quarter of 1999, primarily reflecting the impact of
acquisitions, U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray managed account fees, the timing of
loan sales, and a gain from the sale of an office building located in
Minneapolis.

    Fourth quarter noninterest expense, before merger-related charges, totaled
$888.2 million, an increase of $44.8 million, or 5 percent, from the fourth
quarter of 1999. Excluding the impact of acquisitions and divestitures,
noninterest expense, before merger-related charges, in the fourth quarter of
2000 would have been approximately 2 percent higher than the fourth quarter of
1999. The increase in expense over the fourth quarter of 1999 was primarily the
result of acquisitions and investment banking and brokerage activity. In
addition to ongoing investments in Internet-related products and services, the
fourth quarter of 2000 included approximately $2.3 million of incremental
spending on Internet infrastructure-related initiatives.
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CONSOLIDATED  BALANCE  SHEET

At December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                               2000          1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks.....................................    $ 4,142       $ 4,036
Federal funds sold..........................................        108           713
Securities purchased under agreements to resell.............        349           324
Trading account securities..................................        753           617
Available-for-sale securities...............................      4,282         4,871
Loans.......................................................     69,091        62,885
   Less allowance for credit losses.........................      1,067           995
                                                                ---------------------
   Net loans................................................     68,024        61,890
Premises and equipment......................................        857           862
Interest receivable.........................................        525           433
Customers' liability on acceptances.........................        163           152
Goodwill and other intangible assets........................      3,296         3,066
Other assets................................................      4,837         4,566
                                                                ---------------------
      Total assets..........................................    $87,336       $81,530
                                                                ---------------------
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits
   Noninterest-bearing......................................    $15,653       $16,050
   Interest-bearing.........................................     31,176        29,671
   Time certificates of deposit greater than $100,000.......      6,428         5,809
                                                                ---------------------
      Total deposits........................................     53,257        51,530
Federal funds purchased.....................................        978           297
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase..............        965         1,235
Other short-term funds borrowed.............................        866           724
Long-term debt..............................................     18,566        16,563
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
   securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior
   subordinated debentures of the parent company............        950           950
Acceptances outstanding.....................................        163           152
Other liabilities...........................................      2,951         2,441
                                                                ---------------------
      Total liabilities.....................................     78,696        73,892
Shareholders' equity
   Common stock, par value $1.25 a share -- authorized
     1,500,000,000 shares; issued: 2000 -- 758,194,161
     shares; 1999 -- 754,368,668 shares.....................        948           943
   Capital surplus..........................................      1,473         1,399
   Retained earnings........................................      6,336         5,389
   Accumulated other comprehensive income...................         15           (62)
   Less cost of common stock in treasury: 2000 -- 6,134,300
    shares; 1999 -- 1,038,456 shares........................       (132)          (31)
                                                                ---------------------
      Total shareholders' equity............................      8,640         7,638
                                                                ---------------------
      Total liabilities and shareholders' equity............    $87,336       $81,530
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)        2000        1999        1998
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INTEREST INCOME
Loans..........................................................        $6,162.0    $5,208.6    $4,921.8
Securities
   Taxable.....................................................           230.3       250.6       303.6
   Exempt from federal income taxes............................            54.4        57.3        62.8
Other interest income..........................................           260.4       160.2       119.2
                                                                       --------------------------------
      Total interest income....................................         6,707.1     5,676.7     5,407.4
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits.......................................................         1,667.9     1,291.2     1,391.0
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements..............           177.4       164.2       153.6
Other short-term funds borrowed................................            56.2        49.9        59.1
Long-term debt.................................................         1,257.0       833.4       672.7
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of
 subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior subordinated
 debentures of the parent company..............................            77.3        77.3        70.4
                                                                       --------------------------------
      Total interest expense...................................         3,235.8     2,416.0     2,346.8
                                                                       --------------------------------
Net interest income............................................         3,471.3     3,260.7     3,060.6
Provision for credit losses....................................           670.0       531.0       379.0
                                                                       --------------------------------
Net interest income after provision for credit losses..........         2,801.3     2,729.7     2,681.6
NONINTEREST INCOME
Credit card fee revenue........................................           723.2       603.1       574.8
Trust and investment management fees...........................           473.9       459.7       413.0
Service charges on deposit accounts............................           469.3       434.6       406.0
Investment products fees and commissions.......................           359.1       347.7       229.7
Investment banking revenue.....................................           356.3       245.4       100.4
Trading account profits and commissions........................           252.5       215.9       118.1
Available-for-sale securities gains (losses)...................             7.0        (1.3)       12.6
Other..........................................................           617.1       453.6       402.0
                                                                       --------------------------------
      Total noninterest income.................................         3,258.4     2,758.7     2,256.6
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries.......................................................         1,677.0     1,460.9     1,210.9
Employee benefits..............................................           279.0       248.4       222.3
Net occupancy..................................................           236.9       204.6       187.4
Furniture and equipment........................................           167.4       160.1       153.4
Goodwill and other intangible assets...........................           235.5       165.6       143.7
Merger-related charges.........................................            61.3        62.4       216.5
Other..........................................................           941.3       824.9       710.1
                                                                       --------------------------------
      Total noninterest expense................................         3,598.4     3,126.9     2,844.3
                                                                       --------------------------------
Income before income taxes.....................................         2,461.3     2,361.5     2,093.9
Applicable income taxes........................................           869.3       855.0       766.5
                                                                       --------------------------------
Net income.....................................................        $1,592.0    $1,506.5    $1,327.4
                                                                       --------------------------------
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Earnings per share.............................................        $   2.14    $   2.07    $   1.81
Diluted earnings per share.....................................        $   2.13    $   2.06    $   1.78
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT  OF SHAREHOLDERS'  EQUITY

                                                                                         Accumulated
                                                                                               Other
Year Ended December 31              Common Shares    Common     Capital    Retained    Comprehensive    Treasury
(Dollars in Millions)                Outstanding*     Stock     Surplus    Earnings           Income     Stock**       Total
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1997.......     739,933,014     $924.9    $1,261.1    $3,644.8        $ 59.3       $     --    $5,890.1
Common dividends declared.......                                             (516.4)                                  (516.4)
Purchase of treasury stock......     (24,658,162)                                                         (964.0)     (964.0)
Issuance of common stock
   Dividend reinvestment........         574,168         .3         8.9                                     12.7        21.9
   Stock option and stock
      purchase plans............       9,912,698        5.8       (22.8)                                   215.5       198.5
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                     725,761,718      931.0     1,247.2     3,128.4          59.3         (735.8)    4,630.1
Comprehensive income
Net income......................                                            1,327.4                                  1,327.4
Other comprehensive income
   Unrealized gains on
      securities of $23.6 (net
      of $14.0 tax expense) net
      of reclassification
      adjustment for gains
      included in net income of
      $11.1 (net of $6.4 tax
      expense)..................                                                             12.5                       12.5
                                                                                                                    --------
         Total comprehensive
          income................                                                                                     1,339.9
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1998.......     725,761,718     $931.0    $1,247.2    $4,455.8        $ 71.8       $ (735.8)   $5,970.0
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Common dividends declared.......                                             (573.1)                                  (573.1)
Purchase of treasury stock......     (16,644,892)                                                         (560.8)     (560.8)
Issuance of common stock
   Acquisitions.................      37,798,319       11.6       233.6                                  1,030.3     1,275.5
   Dividend reinvestment........         800,809                   (5.6)                                    29.1        23.5
   Stock option and stock
      purchase plans............       5,614,258         .4       (76.4)                                   205.7       129.7
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                     753,330,212      943.0     1,398.8     3,882.7          71.8          (31.5)    6,264.8
Comprehensive income
Net income......................                                            1,506.5                                  1,506.5
Other comprehensive income
   Unrealized losses on
      securities of $134.2 (net
      of $82.3 tax benefit) net
      of reclassification
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      adjustment for losses
      included in net income of
      $.6 (net of $.3 tax
      benefit)..................                                                           (133.6)                    (133.6)
                                                                                                                    --------
         Total comprehensive
          income................                                                                                     1,372.9
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1999.......     753,330,212     $943.0    $1,398.8    $5,389.2        $(61.8)      $  (31.5)   $7,637.7
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Common dividends declared.......                                             (644.7)                                  (644.7)
Purchase of treasury stock......     (20,248,002)                                                         (432.2)     (432.2)
Issuance of common stock
   Acquisitions.................      14,405,249        4.0        47.6                                    246.0       297.6
   Dividend reinvestment........         900,792                    (.3)                                    19.2        18.9
   Stock option and stock
      purchase plans............       3,671,610         .7        27.0                                     66.1        93.8
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                     752,059,861      947.7     1,473.1     4,744.5         (61.8)        (132.4)    6,971.1
Comprehensive income
Net income......................                                            1,592.0                                  1,592.0
Other comprehensive income
   Unrealized gains on
      securities of $101.9 (net
      of $62.6 tax expense) net
      of reclassification
      adjustment for gains
      included in net income of
      $25.1 (net of $15.4 tax
      expense)..................                                                             76.8                       76.8
   Foreign currency translation
      adjustments...............                                                              (.3)                       (.3)
                                                                                                                    --------
         Total comprehensive
          income................                                                                                     1,668.5
                                    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2000.......     752,059,861     $947.7    $1,473.1    $6,336.5        $ 14.7       $ (132.4)   $8,639.6
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 *Defined as total common shares less common stock held in treasury.
**Ending treasury shares were 6,134,300 at December 31, 2000; 1,038,456 at
  December 31, 1999; and 19,036,139 at December 31, 1998.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT  OF CASH  FLOWS

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                         2000         1999         1998
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income..................................................    $ 1,592.0    $ 1,506.5    $ 1,327.4
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
 operating activities:
   Provision for credit losses..............................        670.0        531.0        379.0
   Depreciation and amortization of premises and
    equipment...............................................        151.8        142.5        130.4
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   Provision for deferred income taxes......................         44.6         55.7         25.9
   Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets.....        235.5        165.6        143.7
   Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding
    the effects of purchase acquisitions:
      Increase in trading account securities................       (135.6)       (64.8)      (141.1)
      (Increase) decrease in loans held for sale............       (116.2)       294.8         13.4
      Decrease (increase) in accrued receivables............          2.9       (208.2)      (160.7)
      Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses...............        102.9         75.6        (59.7)
      Increase in accrued liabilities.......................        314.6        114.9         20.3
   Other -- net.............................................       (279.4)        72.7       (306.1)
                                                                -----------------------------------
         Net cash provided by operating activities..........      2,583.1      2,686.3      1,372.5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash (used) provided by:
   Loans outstanding........................................     (4,957.1)    (3,950.3)    (3,021.1)
   Securities purchased under agreements to resell..........        (25.3)       136.6        224.2
Available-for-sale securities
   Sales....................................................        624.2      1,000.7        226.4
   Maturities...............................................        690.8      1,403.6      1,755.4
   Purchases................................................       (324.9)    (1,773.0)      (603.5)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate....................         25.8         33.2         46.3
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment...............        193.9         40.0         44.1
Purchases of premises and equipment.........................       (221.0)      (134.0)      (155.8)
Sales of loans..............................................        616.9      1,720.9          4.9
Purchases of loans..........................................       (658.1)      (254.6)    (1,575.7)
Divestitures of branches....................................           --       (352.0)          --
Acquisitions, net of cash received..........................       (296.0)      (220.5)      (780.2)
Cash and cash equivalents of acquired subsidiaries..........         63.5        462.4           --
Other -- net................................................       (234.9)      (834.5)       (70.2)
                                                                -----------------------------------
         Net cash used by investing activities..............     (4,502.2)    (2,721.5)    (3,905.2)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided (used) by:
   Deposits.................................................        656.4       (736.6)       668.4
   Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
    agreements to repurchase................................       (157.5)    (1,150.2)       321.8
   Short-term borrowings....................................        137.2         33.9       (909.1)
Proceeds from long-term debt................................      5,563.9      5,815.1      6,427.5
Principal payments on long-term debt........................     (3,815.5)    (3,052.8)    (3,011.6)
Issuance of Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
   preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely
   the junior subordinated debentures of the parent
   company..................................................           --           --        350.0
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment, stock option and stock
 purchase plans.............................................        112.7        153.2        220.4
Repurchase of common stock..................................       (432.2)      (560.8)      (964.0)
Cash dividends..............................................       (644.7)      (573.1)      (516.4)
                                                                -----------------------------------
         Net cash provided (used) by financing activities...      1,420.3        (71.3)     2,587.0
                                                                -----------------------------------
         Change in cash and cash equivalents................       (498.8)      (106.5)        54.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..............      4,748.8      4,855.3      4,801.0
                                                                -----------------------------------
         Cash and cash equivalents at end of year...........    $ 4,250.0    $ 4,748.8    $ 4,855.3
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES  TO  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

             NOTE A
            SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

U.S. Bancorp (the "Company") is a financial services holding company offering a
full range of financial services through banking offices in 16 states including
Minnesota, Oregon, Washington, Colorado, California, Idaho, Nebraska, North
Dakota, Nevada, South Dakota, Montana, Iowa, Illinois, Utah, Wisconsin and
Wyoming. The Company also engages in credit card and merchant processing,
insurance, trust and investment management, brokerage, leasing and investment
banking activities principally in domestic markets.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The consolidation eliminates all
significant intercompany accounts and transactions. Certain items in prior
periods have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

USES OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual experience could differ
from those estimates.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Within the Company, financial performance is measured by major lines of business
based on the products and services provided to customers through its
distribution channels. The Company has four reportable operating segments:

    Wholesale Banking includes lending, treasury management, corporate trust,
and other financial services to middle-market, large corporate and public sector
clients.

    Consumer Banking delivers products and services to the broad consumer market
and small businesses through branch offices, telemarketing, online services,
direct mail and automated teller machines ("ATMs").

    Payment Systems includes consumer and business credit cards, corporate and
purchasing card services, consumer lines of credit, ATM processing and merchant
processing.

    Wealth Management and Capital Markets engages in equity and fixed income
trading activities, offers investment banking and underwriting services for
corporate and public sector customers and provides securities, mutual funds,
annuities and insurance products to consumers and regionally-based businesses
through a network of banking centers and brokerage offices. It also offers
institutional trust, investment management services, and private banking and
personal trust services.

SEGMENT RESULTS Accounting policies for the lines of business are the same as
those used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements with respect
to activities specifically attributable to each business line. However, the
preparation of business line results requires management to establish
methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits, expenses and other
financial elements to each line of business. For detail of these methodologies
see "Basis for Financial Presentation" on page 4. Table 2 "Line of Business
Financial Performance" on pages 4 through 7 provides details of segment results.
This information is incorporated by reference into these Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SECURITIES
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TRADING ACCOUNT SECURITIES Debt and equity securities held for resale are
classified as trading account securities and reported at fair value. Realized
and unrealized gains or losses are recorded in noninterest income.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES These securities are not trading account
securities but may be sold before maturity in response to changes in the
Company's interest rate risk profile or demand for collateralized deposits by
public entities. They are carried at fair value with unrealized net gains or
losses reported within comprehensive income in shareholders' equity. When sold,
the amortized cost of the specific securities is used to compute the gain or
loss.
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LOANS

Loans are reported net of unearned income. Interest income is accrued on the
unpaid principal balances as earned. Loan and commitment fees are deferred and
recognized over the life of the loan and/or commitment period as yield
adjustments.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES Management determines the adequacy of the allowance
based on evaluations of the loan portfolio and related off-balance sheet
commitments, recent loss experience, and other pertinent factors, including
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates, including amounts of future cash collections expected on nonaccrual
loans that may be susceptible to significant change. The allowance for credit
losses relating to impaired loans is based on the loans' observable market
price, the collateral for certain collateral-dependent loans, or the discounted
cash flows using the loans' effective interest rate.

    The Company determines the amount of the allowance required for certain
sectors based on relative risk characteristics of the loan portfolio and other
financial instruments with credit exposure. The allowance recorded for
commercial loans is based on quarterly reviews of individual loans outstanding
and binding commitments to lend and an analysis of the migration of commercial
loans and actual loss experience. The allowance recorded for consumer portfolios
is based on an analysis of product mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio,
fraud loss and bankruptcy experiences, and historical losses, adjusted for
current trends, for each homogenous category or group of loans. The allowance is
increased through provisions charged to operating earnings and reduced by net
charge-offs.

NONACCRUAL LOANS Generally commercial loans (including impaired loans) are
placed on nonaccrual status when the collection of interest or principal has
become 90 days past due or is otherwise considered doubtful. When a loan is
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest is reversed. Future interest
payments are generally applied against principal. Revolving consumer lines and
credit cards are charged-off by 180 days and closed-end consumer loans other
than residential mortgages are charged-off at 120 days past due and are,
therefore, not placed on non-accrual status.

LEASES The Company engages in both direct and leveraged lease financing. The net
investment in direct financing leases is the sum of all minimum lease payments
and estimated residual values less unearned income. Unearned income is added to
interest income over the terms of the leases to produce a level yield.

    The investment in leveraged leases is the sum of all lease payments (less
nonrecourse debt payments) plus estimated residual values, less unearned income.
Income from leveraged leases is recognized over the term of the leases based on
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the unrecovered equity investment.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE These loans are carried at the lower of cost or market value
as determined on an aggregate basis by type of loan.

OTHER REAL ESTATE Other real estate ("ORE"), which is included in other assets,
is property acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings. ORE is initially
recorded at fair value and carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less
estimated selling costs. The property is evaluated regularly and any decreases
in the carrying amount are included in noninterest expense.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

INTEREST RATE SWAPS AND CONTRACTS The Company uses interest rate swaps and
contracts (forwards, options, caps and floors) to manage its interest rate risk
and as a financial intermediary. The Company does not enter into these contracts
for speculative purposes. The Company utilizes simulation modeling and analysis
of repricing mismatches to identify exposure to changes in interest rates and
assess the effectiveness of interest rate swaps and contracts in reducing that
risk. Interest rate swaps and contracts are designated as hedges of assets or
liabilities and the Company evaluates hedge effectiveness of the derivative
instruments relative to the underlying hedged item on a regular basis. Income or
expense on swaps and contracts designated as hedges of assets or liabilities is
recorded as an adjustment to interest income or expense. If the swap or contract
is terminated, the gain or loss is deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the remaining life of the swap or the underlying asset or liability. If the
hedged instrument is disposed of, the swap or contract agreement is marked to
market with any resulting gain or loss included with the gain or loss from the
disposition.

    The initial bid/offer spread on intermediated swaps is deferred and
recognized in trading account profits and commissions over the life of the
agreement. Intermediated swaps and all other interest rate contracts are marked
to market and resulting gains or losses are recorded in trading account profits
and commissions. The Company's derivative trading activities are not material to
the consolidated financial statements; the cash flows from these activities are
included in operating activities.
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT POLICIES

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT Premises and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortized primarily on a straight-line method
basis.

    Capital leases, less accumulated amortization, are included in premises and
equipment. The lease obligations are included in long-term debt. Capitalized
leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term and the
amortization is included in depreciation expense.

CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE Certain costs incurred in connection with developing or
obtaining software for internal use are capitalized and amortized on a straight-
line basis over the estimated life of the software.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS Goodwill, the price paid over the net fair value of acquired
businesses, is included in other assets and is amortized over periods ranging up
to 25 years. Other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives, which range from seven to fifteen years, using straight-line and
accelerated methods. The recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets
is evaluated if events or circumstances indicate a possible inability to realize
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the carrying amount. Such evaluation is based on various analyses, including
undiscounted cash flow projections.

INCOME TAXES Deferred taxes are recorded to reflect the tax consequences on
future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
the financial reporting amounts at each year-end.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash
equivalents include cash and due from banks and federal funds sold.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION The Company grants stock options for a fixed number of
shares to employees with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the shares
at the date of grant. The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance
with APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and
accordingly recognizes no compensation expense for the stock option grants.

PER SHARE CALCULATIONS Earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income
(less preferred stock dividends) by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting income and outstanding shares, assuming conversion of all potentially
dilutive securities, using the treasury stock method.

             NOTE B
            ACCOUNTING CHANGES

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES SFAS 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS 138,
"Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities -- an Amendment to FASB Statement No. 133," establish accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. SFAS 133
requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities in the statement of financial position and measure those instruments
at fair value. In certain defined conditions, a derivative may be specifically
designated as a hedge for a particular exposure. The accounting for changes in
the fair value of the derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative
and the resulting designation. The Company adopted SFAS 133 as of January 1,
2001. The balance sheet impact for the adoption of SFAS 133 included: a $37.5
million increase to other assets for the fair value of interest rate swaps
designated as fair value hedges of fixed rate debt and certificates of deposit
with a corresponding increase to the related hedged liabilities, a $12.1 million
increase to other assets and a $4.1 million increase in other liabilities for
the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges of floating
rate commercial loans and debt with a corresponding net increase of $8.0 million
to other comprehensive income and deferred tax liabilities. The
cumulative-effect adjustment recorded on the income statement was not material.

ACCOUNTING FOR TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND EXTINGUISHMENTS
OF LIABILITIES SFAS 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities," established accounting and reporting
standards for sales and servicing of financial assets, securitization
transactions and the extinguishment of liabilities. The statement replaced SFAS
125 and provided clarification of issues related to qualified special purpose
entities and additional disclosures about securitizations and the residual
interests retained. SFAS 140 is effective for transfers and servicing of
financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities occurring after March 31,
2001. Disclosures required for financial statements were effective for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2000.
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     NOTE C
        BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND DIVESTITURES

FIRSTAR CORPORATION On October 4, 2000, the Company announced that it had signed
a definitive agreement to be acquired by Firstar Corporation of Milwaukee,
Wisconsin in a tax-free exchange of shares. U.S. Bancorp shareholders will
receive 1.265 shares of the combined company stock for every share of U.S.
Bancorp stock. The transaction closed on February 27, 2001 and was accounted for
as a pooling-of-interests.

Separate results of operations for the periods prior to the merger as originally
reported and on a combined proforma basis were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)                                                2000               1999           1998
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

NET INTEREST INCOME*
   Firstar Corporation......................................       $ 2,744.1       $ 2,697.4       $2,595.6
   U.S. Bancorp.............................................         3,540.8         3,302.7        3,111.9
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
      Proforma combined.....................................       $ 6,284.9       $ 6,000.1       $5,707.5
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
TOTAL REVENUE*
   Firstar Corporation......................................       $ 4,250.3       $ 4,100.0       $3,960.9
   U.S. Bancorp.............................................         6,799.2         6,061.4        5,368.5
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
      Proforma combined                                            $11,049.5       $10,161.4       $9,329.4
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
NET INCOME
   Firstar Corporation......................................       $ 1,283.6       $   875.3       $  805.5
   U.S. Bancorp.............................................         1,592.0         1,506.5        1,327.4
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
      Proforma combined                                            $ 2,875.6       $ 2,381.8       $2,132.9
                                                                   ----------------------------------------
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
   Firstar Corporation......................................       $    1.33       $     .89       $    .83
   U.S. Bancorp.............................................       $    2.14       $    2.07       $   1.81
      Proforma combined.....................................       $    1.51       $    1.25       $   1.12
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
   Firstar Corporation......................................       $    1.32       $     .87       $    .81
   U.S. Bancorp.............................................       $    2.13       $    2.06       $   1.78
      Proforma combined.....................................       $    1.50       $    1.23       $   1.10
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Net interest income and total revenue were stated on a taxable-equivalent
basis.

ACQUISITIONS During the past three years, the Company has completed several
strategic acquisitions to enhance its presence in certain growth markets and
businesses. The acquisitions of Scripps Financial Corporation, Peninsula Bank of
San Diego and Western Bancorp added 52 branches in southern California including
Los Angeles, Orange and San Diego counties. The acquisitions of Bank of
Commerce, Oliver-Allen Corporation and Lyon Financial Services, Inc., expanded
the Company's SBA lending and leasing capabilities. Additionally, the Payment
Systems business line completed strategic acquisitions of Voyager Fleet Systems
Inc. and the Mellon Network Services' Electronic Fund Transfer Processing unit
in 1999 intended to enhance its payment processing capabilities.

The following table summarizes acquisitions by the Company completed during the
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past three years:

                                                                                  Goodwill &
                                                                                 Intangibles                           Accounting
(Dollars in Millions)                     Date       Assets       Deposits          Recorded       Shares Issued           Method
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Scripps Financial Corporation.......  10/13/00       $  650       $   618          $   113           7,435,591          Purchase
Lyon Financial Services, Inc........   9/28/00        1,289            --              124                  --          Purchase
Oliver-Allen Corporation............    4/7/00          280            --               34           2,642,708          Purchase
Peninsula Bank......................   1/14/00          491           452               71           4,041,568          Purchase
Western Bancorp.....................  11/15/99        2,508         2,105              773          27,768,465          Purchase
Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc..........   9/13/99           43            --               25                  --          Purchase
Bank of Commerce....................   7/15/99          638           529              269           9,287,960          Purchase
Mellon Network Services' Electronic
   Funds Transfer Processing Unit...   6/30/99           --            --               78                  --          Purchase
Libra Investments, Inc..............    1/4/99           33            --                4           1,027,276          Purchase
Northwest Bancshares, Inc...........  12/15/98          377           344               90                  --          Purchase
Piper Jaffray Companies, Inc........    5/1/98        1,272            --              555                  --          Purchase
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DIVESTITURES On September 24, 1999, the Company completed the sale of 28
branches in Kansas and Iowa representing $364 million of deposits. On September
23, 1999, the Company sold $1.8 billion of indirect automobile loans and is in
the process of exiting this business.
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     NOTE D
         MERGER-RELATED CHARGES

The Company recorded merger-related charges of $61.3 million, $62.4 million and
$216.5 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Merger-related charges in
2000 and 1999 related to the Company's various acquisitions (see Note C) and
included primarily system conversion costs and integration costs associated with
consolidating redundant operations. Merger-related charges in 1998 were
primarily due to conversion costs related to the U.S. Bancorp ("USBC") and Piper
Jaffray Companies Inc. ("Piper") acquisitions. The components of the charges are
shown below:

                                                                                           Western
(Dollars in Millions)                                            USBC     Piper Jaffray    Bancorp    Other     Total
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2000
Severance...................................................    $   --        $  --         $  --     $  --    $   --
Premises and equipment writedowns...........................        --           --            --        --        --
Systems conversions.........................................        --         15.2          10.5      28.7      54.4
Benefit curtailment gains...................................        --           --            --        --        --
Other merger-related charges................................        --          1.9            --       5.0       6.9
                                                                -----------------------------------------------------
Total 2000..................................................    $   --        $17.1         $10.5     $33.7    $ 61.3
1999
Severance...................................................    $  8.0        $  --         $  --     $  --    $  8.0
Premises and equipment writedowns...........................       1.6           --            --        --       1.6
Systems conversions.........................................       4.4         12.5           3.3      14.0      34.2
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Benefit curtailment gains...................................        --           --            --        --        --
Other merger-related charges*...............................      18.6           --            --        --      18.6
                                                                -----------------------------------------------------
Total 1999..................................................    $ 32.6        $12.5         $ 3.3     $14.0    $ 62.4
1998
Severance...................................................    $   --        $  --         $  --     $  --    $   --
Premises and equipment writedowns...........................        --           --            --        --        --
Systems conversions.........................................     229.4          7.5            --        --     236.9
Benefit curtailment gains...................................     (25.6)          --            --        --     (25.6)
Other merger-related charges................................        --          4.2            --       1.0       5.2
                                                                -----------------------------------------------------
Total 1998..................................................    $203.8        $11.7         $  --     $ 1.0    $216.5
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Other merger-related charges for USBC in 1999 included $11.3 million of
consulting costs and $7.3 million of system contract and other asset writeoffs
associated with conversion of ATM deposit processing systems.

    The Company determines merger-related charges and related accruals based on
its integration strategy and formulated plans. These plans are established as of
the acquisition date and regularly evaluated during the integration process.
Severance charges include the cost of severance, other benefits and outplacement
costs associated with the termination of employees primarily in branch offices
and centralized corporate support and data processing functions. The severance
amounts are determined based on the Company's existing severance pay programs
and are paid out over a benefit period of up to two years from the time of
termination. The total number of employees included in severance amounts were
approximately 3,635 for USBC, 75 for Piper, 175 for Western Bancorp, and 270 for
other acquisitions. Premises and equipment writedowns represent lease
termination costs and impairment of assets for redundant office space, equipment
and branches that will be vacated and disposed of as part of the integration
plan. Systems conversions and other merger-related expenses are recorded as
incurred and are associated with the preparation and mailing of numerous
customer communications for the acquisitions and conversion of customer
accounts, printing and distribution of training materials and policy and
procedure manuals, outside consulting fees, and similar expenses relating to the
conversions and integration of acquired branches and operations. In 1999, the
Company recognized an $8.0 million charge to establish severance associated with
the consolidation of redundant functions and other displaced employees not
considered in the initial USBC integration plan but eligible for severance under
the change-in-control provisions triggered by the merger. Other merger-related
charges for USBC in 1999 included $11.3 million of consulting costs and $7.3
million of system contract and other asset writeoffs associated with Company's
conversion of ATM processing systems. These actions completed the integration
activities related to USBC. The merger-related severance accrual will be paid in
accordance with the terms of the severance

U.S. Bancorp                                                                  35
   38

programs through 2001. The following table presents a summary of activity with
respect to the Company's significant acquisitions:

                                                                            Piper    Western
(Dollars in Millions)                                             USBC    Jaffray    Bancorp    Other     Total
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance at December 31, 1997................................    $189.0    $   --     $   --     $15.6    $204.6
   Provision charged to operating expense...................     203.8      11.7         --       1.0     216.5

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form 10-K405

50



   Additions related to purchase acquisitions...............        --      30.5         --      24.8      55.3
   Cash outlays.............................................    (273.6)    (19.4)        --     (17.2)   (310.2)
   Noncash writedowns and other.............................     (37.9)     (1.4)        --       (.2)    (39.5)
                                                                -----------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 1998................................    $ 81.3    $ 21.4     $   --     $24.0    $126.7
   Provision charged to operating expense...................      32.6      12.5        3.3      14.0      62.4
   Additions related to purchase acquisitions...............        --       2.4       47.7      20.1      70.2
   Cash outlays.............................................     (36.0)    (17.9)     (16.3)    (28.2)    (98.4)
   Transfer to tax liability*...............................     (33.8)       --         --        --     (33.8)
   Noncash writedowns and other.............................     (28.2)      (.9)     (13.9)    (12.2)    (55.2)
                                                                -----------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 1999................................    $ 15.9    $ 17.5     $ 20.8     $17.7    $ 71.9
   Provision charged to operating expense...................        --      17.1       10.5      33.7      61.3
   Additions related to purchase acquisitions...............        --        --        7.6      38.5      46.1
   Cash outlays.............................................     (11.2)    (18.8)     (26.4)    (50.7)   (107.1)
   Noncash writedowns and other.............................      (4.7)      (.8)      (7.4)    (16.2)    (29.1)
                                                                -----------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 2000                                    $   --    $ 15.0     $  5.1     $23.0    $ 43.1
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*The liability relates to certain severance related items.

The following table provides a rollforward of the merger-related accrual for
USBC throughout the integration timeframe:

                                                Severance
                                              By Programs
                                          ---------------        Total     Investment      Lease Cancellations
(Dollars in millions)                       1997     1999    Severance    Banker Fees    and related Writeoffs    Other     Total
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance at December 31, 1997..........    $166.4    $  --    $  166.4      $    1.8             $   20.6          $0.2     $189.0
Provision charged to operating
 expense..............................        --       --          --          (1.8)                  --            --       (1.8)
Cash Outlays..........................     (85.1)      --       (85.1)           --                (10.6)           --      (95.7)
Noncash items.........................        --       --          --            --                (10.0)         (0.2)     (10.2)
                                          ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 1998..........      81.3       --        81.3            --                   --            --       81.3
Provision charged to operating
 expense..............................        --      8.0         8.0            --                   --            --        8.0
Cash Outlays..........................     (34.4)    (5.2)      (39.6)           --                   --            --      (39.6)
Transfer to tax liability.............     (33.8)      --       (33.8)           --                   --            --      (33.8)
                                          ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 1999..........      13.1      2.8        15.9            --                   --            --       15.9
Provision charged to operating
 expense..............................        --       --          --            --                   --            --         --
Cash Outlays..........................      (8.4)    (2.8)      (11.2)           --                   --            --      (11.2)
Noncash items.........................      (4.7)      --        (4.7)           --                   --            --       (4.7)
                                          ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Balance at December 31, 2000..........    $   --    $  --    $     --      $     --             $     --          $ --     $   --
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The components of the merger-related accrual were as follows:

                                                                    Year Ended
                                                                   December 31
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                                                                --------------
(Dollars in Millions)                                            2000     1999
------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Severance...................................................    $13.8    $34.6
Other employee-related costs*...............................      6.8     16.6
Lease termination and facility costs........................      8.4      9.5
Contracts and system writeoffs..............................      7.4      6.4
Other.......................................................      6.7      4.8
                                                                --------------
   Total....................................................    $43.1    $71.9
------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Other employee-related costs in 1999 included $9.3 million for non-compete
arrangements.
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The merger-related accrual by significant acquisition was as follows:

                                                                  Year Ended
                                                                 December 31
                                                                --------------
(Dollars in Millions)                                            2000     1999
------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Piper Jaffray...............................................    $15.0    $17.5
Western Bancorp.............................................      5.1     20.8
Scripps Bank................................................      4.6       --
Bank of Commerce............................................      4.1      7.5
Zappco, Inc.................................................      3.3      4.1
Peninsula Bank..............................................      3.0       --
Lyon Financial Services, Inc................................      2.7       --
Northwest Bancshares, Inc...................................      2.3      3.5
USBC........................................................       --     15.9
Other acquisitions..........................................      3.0      2.6
                                                                --------------
   Total....................................................    $43.1    $71.9
------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    The Company expects to incur an additional $30.6 million, pretax, of
merger-related expenses in 2001. This does not include estimated expense for the
merger with Firstar Corporation.

     NOTE E
         AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The detail of the amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and
fair value of available-for-sale securities at December 31 was as follows:

                                                                      2000                                         1999
                                              ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                  Gross           Gross                                      Gross
                                                             Unrealized      Unrealized                                 Unrealized
                                              Amortized         Holding         Holding        Fair      Amortized         Holding
(Dollars in Millions)                              Cost           Gains          Losses       Value           Cost           Gains

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form 10-K405

52



----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Treasury.............................     $  358           $ 3             $--          $  361       $  388           $--
Mortgage-backed...........................      2,495            14             (16)          2,493        2,971             9
Other U.S. agencies.......................        149             3              --             152          195             3
State and political.......................      1,020            20              (1)          1,039        1,132            11
Other.....................................        236            15             (14)            237          288             3
                                              ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
   Total..................................     $4,258           $55             $(31)        $4,282       $4,974           $26
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                     1999
                                            ----------------------
                                                 Gross
                                            Unrealized
                                               Holding        Fair
(Dollars in Millions)                           Losses       Value
------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Treasury.............................     $(7)         $  381
Mortgage-backed...........................     (74)          2,906
Other U.S. agencies.......................      (2)            196
State and political.......................      (8)          1,135
Other.....................................     (38)            253
                                            ----------------------
   Total..................................    ($129)        $4,871
------------------------------------------------------------------

    Securities carried at $3.7 billion at December 31, 2000, and $4.1 billion at
December 31, 1999, were pledged to secure public, private and trust deposits and
for other purposes required by law. Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, with an amortized cost of $1.0 billion and $1.2 billion at December
31, 2000, and 1999, respectively, were collateralized by securities and
securities purchased under agreements to resell.

Gross realized gains and losses on securities were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)                                            2000        1999        1998
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Gross realized gains........................................    $14.6       $14.7       $14.5
Gross realized losses.......................................     (7.6)      (16.0)       (1.9)
                                                                -----------------------------
   Net realized gains (losses)..............................    $ 7.0       $(1.3)      $12.6
                                                                -----------------------------
Income taxes on realized gains (losses).....................    $ 2.5       $ (.5)      $ 4.7
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    For amortized cost, fair value and yield by maturity date of
available-for-sale securities outstanding as of December 31, 2000, see Table 11
on page 14 from which such information is incorporated by reference into these
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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     NOTE F
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        RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Bank subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum average reserve balances with
the Federal Reserve Bank. The amount of those reserve balances was approximately
$118 million at December 31, 2000, with an average balance of $158 million
during the year ended December 31, 2000.

     NOTE G
        LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31 was as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)                                              2000          1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COMMERCIAL
   Commercial...............................................    $29,920       $26,491
   Real estate
      Commercial mortgage...................................     10,208         9,784
      Construction..........................................      4,443         4,322
   Lease financing..........................................      4,096         2,372
                                                                ---------------------
         Total commercial...................................     48,667        42,969
CONSUMER
   Home equity and second mortgage..........................      9,438         8,681
   Credit card..............................................      4,499         4,313
   Revolving credit.........................................      1,868         1,815
   Installment..............................................        896           999
   Automobile...............................................        564           884
   Student *................................................        674           563
                                                                ---------------------
      Subtotal..............................................     17,939        17,255
   Residential mortgage.....................................      2,485         2,661
                                                                ---------------------
         Total consumer.....................................     20,424        19,916
                                                                ---------------------
            Total loans.....................................    $69,091       $62,885
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*All or part of the student loan portfolio may be sold when the repayment period
 begins. Loans held for sale were $724 at December 31, 2000, and $608 at
 December 31, 1999.

    Loans of $6.5 billion at December 31, 2000, and $6.3 billion at December 31,
1999, were pledged at the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve.
Nonaccrual and renegotiated loans totaled $397 million, $310 million, and $279
million at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. At December 31, 2000,
and 1999, the Company had $359 million and $265 million, respectively, of loans
considered impaired under SFAS 114 included in its nonaccrual loans. The
carrying value of the impaired loans was less than or equal to the appraised
collateral value or the present value of expected future cash flows and,
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses was specifically allocated to
impaired loans. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, the
average recorded investment in impaired loans was approximately $327 million,
$255 million and $214 million, respectively. The effect of nonaccrual and
renegotiated loans on interest income was as follows:
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                                                                   Year ended December 31
                                                                -----------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                                            2000        1999        1998
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Interest income that would have been accrued at original
   contractual rates........................................    $44.0       $32.7       $22.5
Amount recognized as interest income........................     13.1        13.0         7.6
                                                                -----------------------------
Foregone revenue............................................    $30.9       $19.7       $14.9
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Commitments to lend additional funds to customers whose loans were
classified as nonaccrual or renegotiated at December 31, 2000, totaled $22.3
million. During 2000, there were no loans that were restructured at market
interest rates and returned to a fully performing status.
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Activity in the allowance for credit losses was as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)                                               2000           1999           1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Balance at beginning of year................................    $  995.4       $1,000.9       $1,008.7
Add:
   Provision charged to operating expense...................       670.0          531.0          379.0
Deduct:
   Loans charged off........................................       786.0          727.7          592.1
   Less recoveries of loans charged off.....................       116.1          160.0          157.9
                                                                --------------------------------------
   Net loans charged off....................................       669.9          567.7          434.2
Acquisitions and other changes..............................        71.3           31.2           47.4
                                                                --------------------------------------
Balance at end of year......................................    $1,066.8       $  995.4       $1,000.9
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     NOTE H
        TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

When the Company sells selected financial assets, it may retain interest-only
strips, servicing rights, assets and/or other retained interests in the
receivables. The gain or loss on sale of the receivables depends in part on the
previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer,
allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests based on their
relative fair values at the date of transfer. Market prices are used to
determine retained interest fair values when readily available. However, quotes
are generally not available for retained interests, so the Company estimates
fair value based on the present value of future expected cash flows using
management's best estimates of certain key assumptions including credit losses,
prepayment speeds, forward yield curves and discount rates commensurate with the
risks involved. Retained interests recorded to date have been valued using a
discounted cash flow methodology.

    At least quarterly, the Company revalues the retained interests by obtaining
market prices if available or by calculating the present value of estimated
remaining cash flows. When using a present value methodology, key assumptions
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from the most recent valuation, including asset specific characteristics, are
reviewed for appropriateness and updated as necessary.

    During 2000, the Company sold $255.7 million of the U.S. government
guaranteed portions of loans originated under Small Business Administration
(SBA) programs, recognizing a pre-tax gain on sale of $10.6 million. The SBA
covers losses occurring on these guaranteed portions. Although the Company has
no credit recourse relating to these sales, it does continue to own a portion of
the non-guaranteed elements of the loans.

    The Company continues to service the loans and is required under the SBA
programs to retain specified yield amounts. A portion of the yield is recognized
as servicing fee income as it occurs, the remainder is recorded as a servicing
asset and is included in the gain on sale calculation.

SERVICING ASSET POSITION

                                                              SBA
(Dollars in Millions)                                       Loans
-----------------------------------------------------------------

Servicing assets at December 31, 1999...................    $ 4.3
Servicing assets recognized during the period...........      4.0
Amortization............................................     (1.4)
                                                            -----
Servicing assets at December 31, 2000...................    $ 6.9
-----------------------------------------------------------------

No valuation allowances were required during 2000. Servicing assets are reported
in aggregate but measured on a transaction-specific basis. Market values were
determined using discounted cash flows, utilizing the assumptions noted in the
table below. Key economic assumptions used in valuing servicing assets at the
date of sale resulting from sales completed during 2000 were as follows:

                                                              2000
(Dollars in Millions)                                 SBA Loans(1)
------------------------------------------------------------------

Fair value of assets recognized.................              $7.9
Prepayment speed(2).............................            21 CPR
Weighted average life (years)...................               3.9
Expected credit losses..........................    Not Applicable
Discount rate...................................               12%
Variable returns to transferees.................    Not Applicable
------------------------------------------------------------------

1. All loans were adjustable based on the Wall Street Journal Prime rate.
2. The Company used a prepayment vector based on loan seasoning for valuation.
   The given speed was the effective prepayment speed that yields the same
   weighted average life calculated using the prepayment vector.
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RESIDUAL ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
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The Company has retained interests on the following asset sales: $1.8 billion
sale of indirect automobile loans on September 24, 1999, $420 million sale of
corporate and purchasing card receivables on February 27, 1997, and sales of SBA
loans since 1988.

At December 31, 2000, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the value
of the retained interest to immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes
in those assumptions were as follows:

                                                                  Indirect                     Corporate
                                                                Automobile         SBA              Card
At December 31, 2000 (Dollars in Millions)                           Loans    Loans(1)    Receivables(2)
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Carrying amount/fair value of retained interests............        $46.2        $4.2             $8.4
Weighted-average life (in years)............................          1.0         3.9               .1

PREPAYMENT SPEED ASSUMPTION (ANNUAL RATE)(3,4)..............      1.5 ABS      21 CPR               --
   Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change...............         $(.3)       $(.3)              --
   Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change...............         $(.7)       $(.6)              --

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CUMULATIVE).........................          1.6%         --               --
   Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change...............        $(1.2)         --               --
   Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change...............        $(2.4)         --               --

RESIDUAL CASH FLOWS DISCOUNT RATE (ANNUAL)..................         12.0%       12.0%              --
   Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change...............         $(.6)       $(.2)              --
   Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change...............        $(1.2)       $(.3)              --

INTEREST RATES ON VARIABLE AND ADJUSTABLE CONTRACTS.........           NA          NA               --
   Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change...............           NA          NA               --
   Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change...............           NA          NA               --
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. Credit losses are covered by the appropriate SBA loan program and are not
   included in retained interests. Principal reductions caused by defaults are
   included in the prepayment assumption.
2. Retained interest is effectively a single period receivable that is paid and
   renewed each month during the revolving period. Therefore, no assumptions are
   used in its estimate. Losses are recognized in the period they occur.
3. The Company uses prepayment vectors based on loan seasoning for valuation.
   The given speed is the effective prepayment speed that yields the same
   weighted average life calculated using the prepayment vector.
4. ABS is the absolute prepayment rate and is the auto industry's standard
   measure of prepayment speed. CPR is the constant prepayment rate.

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the
figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10 percent variation in
assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the
change in the assumptions to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also,
in this table the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair
value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other
assumption; however, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (for
example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and
increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

OTHER INFORMATION

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid to special
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purpose entities for the loan sales described above:

                                                                 Year Ended
                                                                December 31
(Dollars in Millions)                                                  2000
---------------------------------------------------------------------------

Proceeds from new sales.....................................     $   266.3
Proceeds from corporate card securitization(1)..............       7,433.4
Reinvestment in corporate card securitization
 receivables(2).............................................      (7,328.2)
Servicing fees received.....................................          16.9
Other cash flows received on retained interests(2)..........          34.2
Purchases of delinquent or foreclosed assets................            --
---------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. The corporate card securitization is a revolving transaction where proceeds
   are reinvested until its legal termination. The indirect automobile and SBA
   loan sales are amortizing transactions where the cash flow is used to pay off
   amounts due to investors.
2. This amount represents total cash flows received from retained interests by
   the Company other than servicing fees. Other cash flows include, for example,
   all cash flows from interest-only strips and cash above the minimum required
   level in cash collateral accounts.
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Quantitative information relating to loan sales and managed assets are given
below:

                                                                                      December 31, 2000
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                         Period Ended                            Year Ended
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                            Total Principal                                 Average    Net Credit
Asset Type (Dollars in Millions)                                    Balance    Delinquent Balance*          Balance        Losses
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Indirect automobile loans...............................       $1,242.4               $21.0                $1,638.4      $37.6
Guaranteed SBA loans....................................          827.8                10.6                   688.5         --
Corporate card receivables..............................          815.4                27.3                   958.2        8.6
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
Total loans managed.....................................       $2,885.6               $58.9                $3,285.1      $46.2
Less:
   Loans sold or securitized............................        1,850.8                                     1,992.6
                                                               --------                                    --------
   Loans held in portfolio..............................       $1,034.8                                    $1,292.5
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Principal amount 60 days or more past due.

     NOTE I
         PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following:
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(Dollars in Millions)                                             2000      1999
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Land........................................................    $  131    $  133
Buildings and improvements..................................       710       886
Furniture, fixtures and equipment...........................       957       824
Capitalized building and equipment leases...................       171       108
                                                                ----------------
                                                                 1,969     1,951
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization..............     1,112     1,089
                                                                ----------------
Total.......................................................    $  857    $  862
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     NOTE J
         DEPOSITS

The following is a summary of the Company's total deposits as of December 31:

(Dollars in Millions)                                              2000       1999
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Noninterest-bearing deposits................................    $15,653    $16,050
Savings accounts............................................      1,801      2,096
NOW accounts................................................      7,022      6,160
Money market deposit accounts...............................     13,032     12,487
Time deposits $100,000 and over.............................      5,784      5,595
Foreign deposits $100,000 and over..........................        644        214
All other time deposits.....................................      9,321      8,928
                                                                ------------------
   Total interest-bearing deposits..........................     37,604     35,480
                                                                ------------------
   Total deposits...........................................    $53,257    $51,530
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Bancorp                                                                  41
   44

     NOTE K
         LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt (debt with original maturities of more than one year) at December
31 consisted of the following:

(Dollars in Millions)                                          2000      1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. BANCORP (Parent Company)
Fixed-rate subordinated notes
   8.125% due May 15, 2002..................................  $   150   $   150
   7.00% due March 15, 2003.................................      150       150
   6.625% due May 15, 2003..................................      100       100
   8.00% due July 2, 2004...................................      125       125
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   7.625% due May 1, 2005...................................      150       150
   6.75% due October 15, 2005...............................      300       300
   6.875% due September 15, 2007............................      250       250
   7.50% due June 1, 2026...................................      200       200
Medium-term notes...........................................    3,577     2,310
Capitalized lease obligations, mortgage indebtedness and
 other......................................................      126        70
                                                              -----------------
                                                                5,128     3,805
SUBSIDIARIES
Fixed-rate subordinated notes
   6.00% due October 15, 2003...............................      100       100
   7.55% due June 15, 2004..................................      100       100
   8.35% due November 1, 2004...............................      100       100
   7.30% due August 15, 2005................................      100       100
   6.875% due April 1, 2006.................................      125       125
   6.50% due February 1, 2008...............................      300       300
   6.30% due July 15, 2008..................................      300       300
   5.70% due December 15, 2008..............................      400       400
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.............................    2,156     1,998
Bank notes..................................................    9,051     8,459
Euro medium-term notes due April 13, 2004...................      400       400
Floating-rate notes due February 27, 2000...................       --       250
Capitalized lease obligations, mortgage indebtedness and
 other......................................................      306       126
                                                              -----------------
     Total..................................................  $18,566   $16,563
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Medium-term notes outstanding at December 31, 2000, mature from January 2001
through December 2004. The notes bear fixed or floating interest rates ranging
from 6.00 percent to 7.50 percent. The weighted average interest rate at
December 31, 2000, was 6.84 percent. Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances
outstanding at December 31, 2000, mature from March 2001 through October 2026.
The advances bear fixed or floating interest rates ranging from 5.54 percent to
8.25 percent. The Company has an arrangement with the FHLB whereby based on the
collateral available (residential and commercial mortgages), the Company could
have borrowed an additional $6.7 billion at December 31, 2000. The weighted
average interest rate at December 31, 2000, was 6.64 percent. Bank notes
outstanding at December 31, 2000, mature from January 2001 through November
2005. The notes bear fixed or floating interest rates ranging from 5.25 percent
to 7.02 percent. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2000, was
6.73 percent. Euro medium-term notes outstanding at December 31, 2000, bear
floating rate interest at three-month LIBOR plus .15 percent. The interest rate
at December 31, 2000, was 6.95 percent.

 42                                                                 U.S. Bancorp
   45

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2000, were:

                                                                             Parent
                   (Dollars in Millions)                      Consolidated   Company
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2001........................................................    $ 6,977      $   877
2002........................................................      3,883        1,061
2003........................................................      2,663        1,408
2004........................................................      1,694          782
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2005........................................................      1,425          457
Thereafter..................................................      1,924          543
                                                              ----------------------
Total.......................................................    $18,566      $ 5,128
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

             NOTE L
            COMPANY-OBLIGATED MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SECURITIES OF
            SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS HOLDING SOLELY THE JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES
            OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The Company issued $950 million of preferred securities (the "Preferred
Securities") through three separate issuances by three wholly-owned subsidiary
grantor trusts, FBS Capital I, U.S. Bancorp Capital I and USB Capital II (the
"Trusts"). The Preferred Securities accrue and pay distributions periodically at
specified rates as provided in the indentures. The Trusts used the net proceeds
from the offerings to purchase a like amount of Junior Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Debentures (the "Debentures") of the Company. The Debentures are the
sole assets of the Trusts and are eliminated, along with the related income
statement effects, in the consolidated financial statements. The Company's
obligations under the Debentures and related documents, taken together,
constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the obligations
of the Trusts. The guarantee covers the distributions and payments on
liquidation or redemption of the Preferred Securities, but only to the extent of
funds held by the Trusts. The Preferred Securities are mandatorily redeemable
upon the maturity of the Debentures, or upon earlier redemption as provided in
the indentures. The Company has the right to redeem the Debentures in whole,
(but not in part), on or after specific dates, at a redemption price specified
in the indentures plus any accrued but unpaid interest to the redemption date.
The Company used the proceeds from the sales of the Debentures for general
corporate purposes.

    USB Capital II completed the sale of $350 million Preferred Securities in
March 1998. The sole asset of USB Capital II is $361 million principal amount
7.20 percent Debentures that mature in April 2028, and are redeemable prior to
maturity at the option of the Company on or after April 1, 2003.

    U.S. Bancorp Capital I completed the sale of $300 million Preferred
Securities in December 1996. The sole asset of U.S. Bancorp Capital I is $309
million principal amount 8.27 percent Debentures which mature in December 2026,
and are redeemable prior to maturity at the option of the Company on or after
December 15, 2006.

    FBS Capital I completed the sale of $300 million Preferred Securities in
November 1996. The sole asset of FBS Capital I is $309 million principal amount
8.09 percent Debentures which mature in November 2026, and are redeemable prior
to maturity at the option of the Company on or after November 15, 2006.

             NOTE M
            SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

COMMON STOCK At December 31, 2000, the Company had 95.6 million shares of common
stock reserved for future issuances (see Note O).

    The Company issued 14.4 million and 37.8 million shares of common stock with
an aggregate value of $.3 billion and $1.3 billion in connection with purchase
acquisitions during 2000 and 1999, respectively (see Note C).

    On April 22, 1998, the Company's shareholders authorized an increase in the
Company's capital stock necessary to implement the three-for-one split of the
Company's common stock announced on February 18, 1998. The number of common and
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preferred shares which the Company has authority to issue was increased from 500
million shares and 10 million shares, respectively, to 1.5 billion shares and 50
million shares, respectively. The stock split was in the form of a 200 percent
dividend payable May 18, 1998 to shareholders of record on May 4, 1998. The
impact of the stock split has been reflected in the financial statements for all
periods presented and all share and per share data included herein.

    On February 16, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the
repurchase of up to $2.5 billion of the Company's common stock over a two-year
period ending March 31, 2002. The new share
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repurchase program replaced a program which was scheduled to expire on March 31,
2000. The shares were repurchased in the open market or through negotiated
transactions. The Company repurchased 20.2 million shares for $432.2 million in
2000; 16.6 million shares for $560.8 million in 1999 and 24.7 million shares for
$964.0 million in 1998. On January 17, 2001, the stock repurchase program was
rescinded in connection with the proposed merger with Firstar Corporation.

    The Company's Dividend Reinvestment Plan providing for automatic
reinvestment of dividends and optional cash purchases was suspended on November
9, 2000, following the announcement of the definitive agreement to merge with
Firstar Corporation.

     NOTE N
        EARNINGS PER SHARE

The components of earnings per share were:

(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)                           2000           1999           1998
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income to common stockholders...........................       $1,592.0       $1,506.5       $1,327.4
                                                                -----------------------------------------
Average shares outstanding..................................    745,093,996    727,530,843    733,897,845
                                                                -----------------------------------------
Earnings per share..........................................        $  2.14        $  2.07        $  1.81
                                                                -----------------------------------------
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Net income to common stockholders...........................       $1,592.0       $1,506.5       $1,327.4
                                                                -----------------------------------------
Average shares outstanding..................................    745,093,996    727,530,843    733,897,845
Net effect of the assumed purchase of stock under the stock
   option and stock purchase plans -- based on the treasury
   stock method using average market price..................      2,761,628      5,459,968     10,280,298
                                                                -----------------------------------------
Dilutive common shares outstanding..........................    747,855,624    732,990,811    744,178,143
                                                                -----------------------------------------
Diluted earnings per share..................................        $  2.13        $  2.06        $  1.78
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     NOTE O
        EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLANS Pension benefits are provided to substantially all employees
based on years of service and employees' compensation while employed with the
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Company. Employees are fully vested after five years of service. The Company's
funding policy is to contribute amounts to its plans sufficient to meet the
minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, plus such additional amounts as the Company determines to be appropriate.
The actuarial cost method used to compute the pension liabilities and expense is
the projected unit credit method. Prior to their acquisition dates, employees of
certain acquired companies were covered by separate, noncontributory pension
plans that provided benefits based on years of service and compensation. During
1998, the Company merged all the acquired companies' plans into its own plan
with the exception of the FirsTier plan, which was merged in 1999. Prior to
their merger into the Company's plan, the former USBC and West One Bancorp
pension plans determined retirement benefits of participants based on their
years of service and final average compensation. Under the new plan,
participant's retirement benefits are based on a participant's average annual
compensation over his or her career with the Company. These changes resulted in
a reduction of the benefit obligation during 1998. The Company also maintains
several unfunded, nonqualified, supplemental executive retirement programs that
provide additional defined pension benefits for certain employees. The
assumptions used in computing the present value of the accumulated benefit
obligation, the projected benefit obligation and net pension expense are
substantially consistent with those assumptions used for the funded qualified
plans.

OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS In addition to providing pension benefits, the
Company provides certain health care and death benefits to retired employees.
Nearly all employees may become eligible for health care benefits at or after
age 55 if they have completed at least five years of service and their age plus
years of service is equal to or exceeds 65 while working for the Company. The
Company subsidizes the cost of coverage for employees who retire before age 65
with at least 10 years of service. The amount of the subsidy is based on the
employee's age and service at the time of retirement and remains fixed until the
retiree reaches
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age 65. After age 65 the retiree assumes responsibility for the full cost of the
coverage. The plan also contains other cost-sharing features such as deductibles
and coinsurance. The Company continues to subsidize the coverage for employees
over age 65 who retired before a plan change eliminated the subsidy. The
estimated cost of these retiree benefit payments is accrued during the
employees' active service.

Information presented in the tables below reflects a measurement date of
September 30. The following table sets forth the components of net periodic
benefit cost for the retirement plans.

                                                                      Pension Plans                 Other Postretirement Benefits
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions)                                          2000         1999         1998        2000        1999        1998
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Components of net periodic benefit cost
   Service cost                                             $  47.8       $ 46.3       $ 44.3       $ 1.8       $ 2.8       $ 2.2
   Interest cost                                               66.5         61.0         61.8        10.4        10.7        10.7
   Expected return on plan assets                            (102.9)       (98.3)       (90.7)        (.6)        (.5)        (.4)
   Amortization of transition (asset) obligation               (2.9)        (3.9)        (4.0)         .7          .8          .8
   Amortization of prior service cost                          (7.7)        (8.2)        (2.8)        (.7)        (.7)        (.8)
   Recognized actuarial loss                                     .7          1.9          1.9        (1.4)         .2          --
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
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Net periodic benefit cost                                       1.5         (1.2)        10.5        10.2        13.3        12.5
   Curtailment and settlement (gains)                         (11.1)        (2.0)       (22.6)         --          --        (4.3)
                                                            ---------------------------------------------------------------------
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailment and
 settlement (gains)                                         $  (9.6)      $ (3.2)      $(12.1)      $10.2       $13.3       $ 8.2
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The following tables summarize benefit obligation and plan asset activity for
the retirement plans.

                                                                ---------------------------------------------------------
                                                                     Pension Plans            Other Postretirement Plans
(Dollars in Millions)                                               2000           1999             2000             1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION
   Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement period        $  903.8       $  930.0        $ 149.2          $ 164.6
   Service cost                                                     47.8           46.3            1.8              2.8
   Interest cost                                                    66.5           61.0           10.4             10.7
   Plan participants' contributions                                   --             --            6.8              3.1
   Plan amendments                                                    --           (6.4)            --              (.9)
   Actuarial (gain) loss                                            16.8          (49.2)          12.9            (17.2)
   Acquisitions and special termination benefits                      --             --             --              2.9
   Benefit payments                                                (45.2)         (43.0)         (18.1)           (16.8)
   Settlements                                                     (51.6)         (34.9)            --               --
                                                                ---------------------------------------------------------
   Benefit obligation at end of measurement period              $  938.1       $  903.8        $ 163.0          $ 149.2
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
   Fair value at beginning of measurement period                $1,152.5       $1,065.0        $  13.4          $  11.2
   Actual return on plan assets                                    206.8          159.1             .9               .6
   Employer contributions                                           10.4            6.3           18.8             15.3
   Plan participants' contributions                                   --             --            6.8              3.1
   Settlements                                                     (51.6)         (34.9)            --               --
   Benefit payments                                                (45.2)         (43.0)         (18.1)           (16.8)
                                                                ---------------------------------------------------------
   Fair value at end of measurement period                      $1,272.9       $1,152.5        $  21.8          $  13.4
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
FUNDED STATUS
   Funded status at end of measurement period                   $  334.8       $  248.7        $(141.2)         $(135.8)
   Unrecognized transition (asset) obligation                         --           (3.1)           8.8              9.5
   Unrecognized prior service cost                                 (76.1)         (83.7)          (7.8)            (8.4)
   Unrecognized net (gain)                                        (143.7)         (68.6)          (9.3)           (23.4)
   Fourth quarter contribution                                       1.2             .7           14.2             11.4
                                                                ---------------------------------------------------------
   Net amount recognized                                        $  116.2       $   94.0        $(135.3)         $(146.7)
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
COMPONENTS OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
   Prepaid benefit cost                                         $  203.9       $  171.2        $    --          $    --
   Accrued benefit liability                                       (87.7)         (77.2)        (135.3)          (146.7)
                                                                ---------------------------------------------------------
   Net amount recognized                                        $  116.2       $   94.0        $(135.3)         $(146.7)
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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The following table sets forth the weighted average plan assumptions:
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                                                                  2000        1999        1998
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Pension Plan Actuarial Computations Discount rate in
 determining benefit obligations............................       7.8%        7.5%        6.5%
   Expected long-term return on plan assets.................       9.5         9.5         9.5
   Rate of increase in future compensation..................       5.6         5.6         5.6
Other Postretirement Plan Actuarial Computations
   Discount rate in determining benefit obligations.........       7.8%        7.5%        6.5%
   Expected long-term return on plan assets.................       5.0         5.0         5.0
   Health care cost trend rate(1)
      Prior to age 65.......................................       7.7         7.0         7.0
      After age 65..........................................       7.7         5.5         6.4
Effect of One Percent Increase in Health Care Cost Trend
 Rate
   Service and interest costs...............................    $  1.0       $ 1.3       $ 1.2
   Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation............      13.1        12.4        13.1
Effect of One Percent Decrease in Health Care Cost Trend
 Rate
   Service and interest costs...............................    $  (.9)      $(1.0)      $(1.0)
   Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation............     (11.6)      (10.9)      (11.8)
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(1) Both rates are assumed to decrease gradually to 5.5% by 2008 and remain at
    that level thereafter.

The following table provides information for pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

(Dollars in Millions)                               2000     1999
-----------------------------------------------------------------

Projected benefit obligation..................    $115.7    $95.5
Accumulated benefit obligation................      94.3     72.8
Fair value of plan assets.....................        --       --
-----------------------------------------------------------------

EMPLOYEE INVESTMENT PLAN The Company provides a 401(k) Savings Plan formerly
known as the Capital Accumulation Plan which allows qualified employees, at
their option, to make contributions up to certain percentages of pre-tax base
salary through salary deductions under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. A portion of these contributions is matched by the Company. All of the
Company's matching contributions are invested in USB common stock. Employee
contributions are invested, at the employees' direction, among a variety of
investment alternatives. Total expense was $39.4 million, $34.7 million and
$16.6 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

STOCK INCENTIVE AND PURCHASE PLANS The Company has elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees"
("APB 25") in accounting for its employee stock incentive and purchase plans.
Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the Company's employee stock options
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no
compensation expense is recognized. On the date exercised, if new shares are
issued, the option proceeds equal to the par value of the shares are credited to
common stock and additional proceeds are credited to capital surplus. If
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treasury shares are issued, the option proceeds equal to the average treasury
share price are credited to treasury stock and additional proceeds are credited
to capital surplus.

    The Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") permits all eligible employees
with at least one year of service and directors to purchase common stock. Plan
participants can purchase stock for 85 percent to 100 percent of the fair market
value, which is based on the price at the beginning or the end of the purchase
period, whichever is lower. Any discount is determined by a committee of the
Board of Directors. In 2000 and 1999, the purchase price was 85 percent of fair
market value. The plan results in no compensation expense to the Company. Due to
the merger with Firstar Corporation, the ESPP was terminated effective October
13, 2000.

    In April 1999, the shareholders approved the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan
("1999 Plan") whereby all former stock incentive plans of U.S. Bancorp and Piper
Jaffray ("Prior Plans") were incorporated into the 1999 plan. All outstanding
options, restricted stock and other awards subject to the terms of the Prior
Plans will remain outstanding and subject to the terms and conditions of those
plans, but are counted as part of the total number of common shares awarded
under the 1999 Plan. An additional 45 million shares were approved for issuance
by the shareholders under the
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1999 Plan. The 1999 Plan allows for the granting of nonqualified stock options,
incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), restricted stock or
stock units ("RSUs"), performance awards, and other stock-based awards at or
above 100 percent of the market price at the date of grant. The 1999 Plan also
provides automatic grants of stock options to nonemployee directors. The rights
of restricted stock and RSU holders to transfer shares are generally limited
during the restriction period. At December 31, 2000, there were 14.0 million
shares (subject to adjustment for forfeitures) available for grant under the
1999 Plan.

    Options granted are generally exercisable up to 10 years from the date of
grant and vest over three to five years. Restricted shares vest over three to
seven years. The vesting of certain options and restricted shares accelerate
based on growth in diluted operating earnings per share and on the performance
of the Company in comparison to the performance of a predetermined group of
regional banks. Compensation expense for restricted stock is based on the market
price of the Company stock at the time of the grant and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. For the performance-based
restricted shares, compensation expense is amortized using the estimated vesting
period. Compensation expense related to the restricted stock was $39.4 million,
$36.6 million and $27.8 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

    Stock incentive plans of acquired companies are terminated at the merger
closing dates. Option holders under such plans receive the Company's common
stock, or options to buy the Company's stock, based on the conversion terms of
the various merger agreements. The historical option information presented below
has been restated to reflect the options originally granted under acquired
companies' plans.

                                                                                          Weighted        Restricted
                                                                       Options       Average Price            Shares
                                                                   Outstanding           Per Share       Outstanding

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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DECEMBER 31, 1997...........................................        40,866,960          $23.62            2,614,182
Granted:
   Stock options............................................         8,844,793           40.37                   --
   Restricted stock.........................................                --                            1,605,649
Piper Jaffray options converted.............................         1,155,054           16.28                   --
Exercised...................................................       (15,083,962)          21.88                   --
Canceled/vested.............................................        (1,315,908)          29.62             (984,907)
                                                                   -------------------------------------------------
DECEMBER 31, 1998...........................................        34,466,937           28.18            3,234,924
Granted:
   Stock options............................................        46,614,828           35.86                   --
   Restricted stock.........................................                --                              742,932
1999 Acquisitions converted.................................           957,105           20.97                   --
Exercised...................................................        (7,168,493)          21.42                   --
Canceled/vested.............................................        (3,334,629)          35.76             (978,931)
                                                                   -------------------------------------------------
DECEMBER 31, 1999...........................................        71,535,748           33.41            2,998,925
Granted:
   Stock options............................................         7,800,805           21.46
   Restricted stock.........................................                --                            3,191,721
2000 Acquisitions converted.................................           353,629            8.67
Exercised...................................................        (1,339,645)          15.05
Canceled/vested.............................................        (5,464,350)          21.82           (1,289,565)
                                                                   -------------------------------------------------
DECEMBER 31, 2000...........................................        72,886,187          $32.29            4,901,081
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Additional information regarding options outstanding as of December 31, 2000 is
as follows:

                                                                             Options Outstanding              Exercisable Options
                                                   ---------------------------------------------       --------------------------
                                                                       Weighted-
                                                                         Average       Weighted-                        Weighted-
                                                                       Remaining         Average                          Average
Range of                                                             Contractual        Exercise                         Exercise
Exercise Prices                                        Shares       Life (Years)           Price           Shares           Price

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
$1.82 -- $9.99..............................          930,829             3.0           $ 7.73            917,022        $ 7.73
$10.00 -- $19.99............................        4,458,787             6.7            16.15          2,276,553         13.59
$20.00 -- $29.99............................       13,558,828             7.6            23.75          7,458,898         24.34
$30.00 -- $39.99............................       49,942,857             8.0            35.64         13,580,941         33.84
$40.00 -- $47.06............................        3,994,886             7.5            43.00          3,826,381         43.01
                                                   ------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                   72,886,187             7.8           $32.29         28,059,795        $30.07
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is
required by SFAS 123, "Accounting and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation"
and has been determined as if the
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Company had accounted for its employee stock option and stock purchase plans
(options) under the fair value method of SFAS 123. The fair value of the options
was estimated at the grant date using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.
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Option valuation models require the use of highly subjective assumptions.
Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

    The pro forma disclosures include options granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998 and
are not likely to be representative of the pro forma disclosures for future
years. The estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options' vesting period.

                                                          Year Ended December 31
                                                --------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data)        2000        1999        1998
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Pro forma net income.................           $1,521.7    $1,418.8    $1,254.0
Pro forma earnings per share:
   Earnings per share................           $   2.04    $   1.95    $   1.71
   Diluted earnings per share........               2.03        1.94        1.69
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Weighted average assumptions in option
 valuation
Risk-free interest rates.............                6.1%        5.4%        5.4%
Dividend yields......................                3.0         3.5         2.3
Stock volatility factor..............                .37         .27         .25
Expected life of options (in years)...               4.7         6.1         2.3
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     NOTE P
        INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense were:

(Dollars in Millions)                                             2000         1999         1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

FEDERAL
Current tax.................................................    $701.1       $681.5       $612.9
Deferred tax provision......................................      37.4         46.7         28.2
                                                                --------------------------------
   Federal income tax.......................................     738.5        728.2        641.1
STATE
Current tax.................................................     123.6        117.8        127.7
Deferred tax provision (credit).............................       7.2          9.0         (2.3)
                                                                --------------------------------
   State income tax.........................................     130.8        126.8        125.4
                                                                --------------------------------
   Total income tax provision...............................    $869.3       $855.0       $766.5
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The reconciliation between income tax expense and the amount computed by
applying the statutory federal income tax rate was as follows:
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(Dollars in Millions)                                             2000         1999         1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Tax at statutory rate (35%).................................    $861.5       $826.5       $732.9
State income tax, at statutory rates, net of federal tax
 benefit....................................................      85.0         82.4         81.5
Tax effect of:
   Tax-exempt interest:
      Loans.................................................      (8.3)        (8.7)       (10.9)
      Securities............................................     (23.3)       (22.7)       (23.2)
   Amortization of nondeductible goodwill...................      61.1         43.9         32.5
   Tax credits and other items..............................    (106.7)       (66.4)       (46.3)
                                                                --------------------------------
Applicable income taxes.....................................    $869.3       $855.0       $766.5
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    At December 31, 2000, for income tax purposes, the Company had federal net
operating loss carryforwards of $2.8 million available, which expire in years
2001 through 2009.

    Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax effect of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for the same items for income
tax reporting purposes.
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Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as
of December 31 were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)                                              2000       1999
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Loan loss reserves..........................................    $ 377.7    $ 382.8
Deferred fees...............................................       75.0       60.3
Postretirement liability....................................       73.9       69.9
Real estate and other asset basis differences...............       31.9       29.0
Federal operating loss carryforward.........................        1.0         .9
Other deferred tax assets...................................      164.7      168.2
                                                                ------------------
   Gross deferred tax assets................................      724.2      711.1
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Leasing activities..........................................     (525.7)    (504.8)
Accelerated depreciation....................................      (57.0)     (32.5)
Other investment basis differences..........................      (26.2)     (16.8)
Unrealized (gain) loss on available-for-sale securities.....       (9.2)      38.0
Accrued severance, pension and retirement benefits..........       (5.9)      44.4
Other deferred tax liabilities..............................      (87.0)     (81.0)
                                                                ------------------
   Gross deferred tax liabilities                                (711.0)    (552.7)
                                                                ------------------
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS.....................................    $  13.2    $ 158.4
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Realization of the deferred tax assets over time is dependent upon the

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form 10-K405

69



existence of taxable income in carryback periods or the Company generating
sufficient taxable earnings in future periods. In determining that realization
of the deferred tax assets was more likely than not, the Company gave
consideration to a number of factors, including its taxable income during
carryback periods, its recent earnings history, its expectations for earnings in
the future and, where applicable, the expiration dates associated with tax
carrybacks and carryforwards.

     NOTE Q
        FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK AND CREDIT
        CONCENTRATIONS

In the normal course of business, the Company uses various off-balance sheet
financial instruments to manage its interest rate and market risk and to meet
the needs of its customers. These instruments carry varying degrees of credit,
interest rate or liquidity risk. The contract or notional amounts of these
financial instruments at December 31 were as follows:

(Dollars In Millions)                                               2000            1999
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Commitments to extend credit
   Commercial...............................................       $28,193       $28,222
   Corporate and purchasing cards...........................        21,236        18,503
   Consumer credit cards....................................        14,622        14,991
   Other consumer...........................................         6,049         6,388
Letters of credit
   Standby..................................................         3,631         3,222
   Commercial...............................................           379           317
Swap contracts
   Interest rate hedges.....................................         7,118         7,743
   Basis swap hedges........................................         1,000            --
   Intermediated............................................         2,412           556
Options contracts
   Hedge interest rate floors purchased.....................           500           500
   Intermediated interest rate and foreign exchange caps and
    floors purchased........................................           405           453
   Intermediated interest rate and foreign exchange caps and
    floors written..........................................           405           453
Futures and forward contracts...............................            25            34
Recourse on assets sold.....................................            76           117
Foreign currency commitments
   Commitments to purchase..................................         1,412         1,137
   Commitments to sell......................................         1,407         1,141
Commitments from securities lending.........................         1,037           717
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT Commitments to extend credit are legally binding
and generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses. The
contractual amount represents the Company's exposure to credit loss, in the
event of default by the borrower. The Company manages this credit risk by using
the same credit policies it applies to loans. Collateral is obtained to secure
commitments based on management's credit assessment of the borrower. The
collateral may include marketable securities, receivables, inventory, equipment
and real estate. Since the Company expects many of the commitments to expire
without being drawn, total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent the
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Company's future liquidity requirements. In addition, the commitments include
consumer credit lines that are cancelable upon notification to the consumer.

LETTERS OF CREDIT Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments the
Company issues to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The
guarantees frequently support public and private borrowing arrangements,
including commercial paper issuances, bond financings and other similar
transactions. The Company issues commercial letters of credit on behalf of
customers to ensure payment or collection in connection with trade transactions.
In the event of a customer's nonperformance, the Company's credit loss exposure
is the same as in any extension of credit, up to the letter's contractual
amount. Management assesses the borrower's credit to determine the necessary
collateral, which may include marketable securities, real estate, accounts
receivable and inventory. Since the conditions requiring the Company to fund
letters of credit may not occur, the Company expects its liquidity requirements
to be less than the total outstanding commitments.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS AND OPTIONS Interest rate swaps are contracts to exchange
fixed- and variable-rate interest payment obligations based on a notional
principal amount. The Company enters into swaps to hedge its balance sheet
against fluctuations in interest rates and as an intermediary for customers. At
December 31, 2000, and 1999, interest rate swaps totaling $7.1 billion and $7.7
billion, respectively, hedged loans, deposits and long-term debt.

The Company received fixed-rate interest and paid floating-rate interest on
substantially all swaps in its hedging portfolio as of December 31, 2000.
Activity with respect to interest rate swap hedges was as follows:

(Dollars In Millions)                    2000       1999       1998
-------------------------------------------------------------------

Notional amount outstanding at
 beginning of year.................    $7,743    $ 7,239    $ 5,315
Additions..........................       770      4,382      3,140
Maturities.........................       (55)    (2,142)    (1,213)
Amortization.......................      (666)      (143)        --
Terminations.......................      (674)    (1,593)        (3)
                                       ----------------------------
Notional amount outstanding at end
 of year...........................    $7,118    $ 7,743    $ 7,239
-------------------------------------------------------------------
At December 31:
Weighted average interest rate
 paid..............................      6.73%      6.45%      5.53%
Weighted average interest rate
 received..........................      6.38       6.22       6.17
-------------------------------------------------------------------

    For the hedging portfolio's notional balances and yields by maturity date as
of year-end 2000, see Table 18 on page 22. For a description of the Company's
objectives for using derivative financial instruments, refer to Use of
Derivatives to Manage Interest Rate Risk on pages 21 and 22. Such information is
incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

    At December 31, 2000, and 1999, LIBOR-based interest rate floors totaling
$500 million with an average remaining maturity of .7 years and $500 million
with an average remaining maturity of 1.7 years, respectively, hedged floating
rate commercial loans. The strike rate on these LIBOR-based floors was 4.625
percent at December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999. The premium on floors is
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amortized over the life of the contract. The impact of the floors on net
interest income was not significant in 2000, 1999 and 1998.

    For swaps and options used as hedges, the Company recognizes interest income
or expense as it is accrued over the terms of the hedge. The gain or loss on a
terminated hedge is amortized over the remaining life of the original swap or
remaining life of the hedged item, whichever is shorter. The impact of the
amortization of deferred gains and losses on hedges on net interest income was
not significant in 2000, 1999 and 1998. Net unamortized deferred losses were
$22.7 million at December 31, 2000.

    In addition to utilizing swaps and options as part of its asset/liability
management strategy, the Company acts as an intermediary for swap and option
agreements on behalf of its customers. To reduce its market risk exposure, the
Company generally enters into offsetting positions. The total notional amount of
customer and trading swap agreements, including the offsetting positions, was
$2.4 billion and $556 million at December 31, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The
total notional amount of customer option agreements,
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including the offsetting positions, was $810 million and $906 million at
December 31, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Market value changes on intermediated
swaps, options and futures contracts are recognized in income in the period of
change. Realized gains or losses on intermediated transactions were not
significant in 2000, 1999 and 1998.

    The credit risk related to interest rate swap and option agreements is that
counterparties may be unable to meet the contractual terms. The Company
estimates this risk by calculating the present value of the cost to replace all
outstanding contracts in a gain position at current market rates, reported on a
net basis by each counterparty. At December 31, 2000, and 1999, the gain
position of these contracts, in the aggregate, was approximately $87 million and
$19 million, respectively.

    The Company manages the credit risk of its interest rate swap and option
contracts through bilateral collateral agreements, credit approvals, limits and
monitoring procedures. Commercial lending officers perform credit analyses and
establish counterparty limits. Senior Credit Administration periodically reviews
positions to monitor compliance with the limits. In addition, the Company
reduces the assumed counterparty credit risk through master netting agreements
that permit the Company to settle multiple interest rate contracts with a given
counterparty on a net basis.

FUTURES AND FORWARD CONTRACTS Futures and forward contracts are agreements for
the delayed delivery of securities or cash settlement money market instruments.
The Company enters into futures contracts to hedge the market risk on its fixed
income inventory positions. The Company enters into forward contracts to hedge
the interest rate risk of its mortgage loans held for sale. At December 31,
2000, and 1999, futures contracts outstanding were $25 million and $15 million,
respectively. There were no forward contracts outstanding at December 31, 2000.
Forward contracts outstanding at December 31, 1999 were $19 million. At December
31, 2000, net unamortized deferred gains on the forward agreements were not
significant. The Company manages its credit risk on forward contracts, which
arises from nonperformance by counterparties, through credit approval and limit
procedures.

RECOURSE ON ASSETS SOLD The Company is obligated under recourse provisions
related to the sale of certain loans. The contract amount of these loans was
$1.4 billion at December 31, 2000, and $2.0 billion at December 31, 1999. The
maximum contractual amount of recourse on these loans was $76 million at
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December 31, 2000, and $117 million at December 31, 1999.

FOREIGN CURRENCY COMMITMENTS The Company uses foreign currency commitments to
help customers reduce the risks associated with changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Through these contracts, the Company exchanges currencies at
specified rates on specified dates with various counterparties. The Company
minimizes the market and liquidity risks by taking offsetting positions. In
addition, the Company controls the market risks by limiting the net exposure
through policies, procedures, and monitoring. The Company manages its credit
risk, or potential risk of loss from default by a counterparty, through credit
limit approval and monitoring procedures. The aggregate replacement cost of
contracts in a gain position at December 31, 2000, was not significant.

COMMITMENTS FROM SECURITIES LENDING The Company participates in securities
lending activities by acting as a customer's agent involving the loan or sale of
securities. The Company indemnifies customers for the difference between the
market value of the securities lent and the market value of the collateral
received. These transactions are collateralized by cash.

CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS The Company primarily lends to borrowers in the 16 states
where it has banking offices. Approximately 85 percent of the Company's
commercial loans were made to borrowers, representing a diverse range of
industries, in this operating region. Collateral may include marketable
securities, accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. For detail of the
Company's commercial portfolio by industry type and geography as of December 31,
2000, and 1999, see Table 8 on page 12.

    For detail of the Company's real estate portfolio by property type and
geography as of December 31, 2000, and 1999, see Table 9 on page 13. This
information is incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Such loans are collateralized by the related property.

    Approximately 84 percent of the total consumer portfolio consists of loans
to customers in the Company's operating region. Residential mortgages, home
equity and auto loans are secured, but other consumer loans are generally not
secured. For detail of the Company's consumer loan portfolio referenced here,
see Table 7 on page 11 under the category "Consumer" as of December 31, 2000,
and 1999, which is incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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             NOTE R
            FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Due to the nature of its business and its customers' needs, the Company offers a
large number of financial instruments, most of which are not actively traded.
When market quotes are unavailable, valuation techniques including discounted
cash flow calculations and pricing models or services are used. The Company also
uses various aggregation methods and assumptions, such as the discount rate and
cash flow timing and amounts. As a result, the fair value estimates can neither
be substantiated by independent market comparisons, nor realized by the
immediate sale or settlement of the financial instrument. Also, the estimates
reflect a point in time and could change significantly based on changes in
economic factors such as interest rates. Furthermore, the disclosure of certain
financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities are not required. Finally, the
fair value disclosure is not intended to estimate a market value of the Company
as a whole. A summary of the Company's valuation techniques and assumptions
follows.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS The carrying value of cash, federal funds sold and
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securities purchased under resale agreements was assumed to approximate fair
value.

SECURITIES Generally, trading account securities and available-for-sale
securities were valued using available market quotes. In some instances, such as
for securities that are not widely traded, market quotes for comparable
securities were used.

LOANS The loan portfolio consists of both floating and fixed-rate loans, the
fair value of which was estimated using discounted cash flow analyses and other
valuation techniques. To calculate discounted cash flows, the loans were
aggregated into pools of similar types and expected repayment terms. The
expected cash flows were reduced for estimated historical prepayment experience.
Projected cash flows on nonaccrual loans were further reduced by the amount of
the estimated losses on the portfolio and discounted over an assumed average
remaining life of less than one year.

COMMERCIAL The fixed-rate loans in the commercial portfolio (excluding
nonaccrual loans) had a weighted average interest rate of 8.1 percent in 2000
and 7.7 percent in 1999. The duration was 1.8 years in 2000 and 1.9 years in
1999. The floating-rate loans had a weighted average interest rate of 9.2
percent in 2000 and 8.5 percent in 1999. The high-grade corporate bond yield
curve was used to arrive at the discount rates applied to these loans.

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE AND CONSTRUCTION The fixed-rate portion of this portfolio
(excluding nonaccrual loans) had a weighted average interest rate of 8.3
percent, with a duration of 3.4 years in 2000; and a weighted average interest
rate of 8.2 percent, with a duration of 3.4 years in 1999. The floating-rate
loans (excluding nonaccrual loans) had a weighted average interest rate of 9.1
percent in 2000 and 8.6 percent in 1999. The high-grade corporate bond yield
curve was used to arrive at the discount rates applied to these loans.

LEASE FINANCING The fixed-rate portion of this portfolio (excluding nonaccrual
loans) had a weighted average interest rate of 9.1 percent, with a duration of
2.7 years in 2000; and a weighted average interest rate of 7.3 percent, with a
duration of 3.1 years in 1999. The high-grade corporate bond yield curve was
used to arrive at the discount rates applied to these loans.

RESIDENTIAL FIRST MORTGAGES These loans were segregated into pools of similar
coupons and maturities. The pools were matched to similar mortgage-backed
securities, and market quotes were obtained. The fixed-rate portion of this
portfolio had a weighted average interest rate of 7.6 percent in 2000 and 7.4
percent in 1999. The duration was 2.2 years in 2000 and 3.1 years in 1999. The
floating rate loans (excluding nonaccrual loans) had a weighted average interest
rate of 7.6 percent in 2000 and 7.1 percent in 1999.

HOME EQUITY LINES AND LOANS, SECOND MORTGAGES AND CONSUMER LINES The home equity
lines had a weighted average interest rate of 10.0 percent in 2000 and 9.3
percent in 1999. Fixed-rate home equity loans and second mortgages had a
weighted average interest rate of 9.9 percent in 2000 and 10.0 percent in 1999.
The duration was 1.1 years in 2000 and 1.4 years in 1999. Retail credit cards
had a weighted average interest rate of 12.6 percent in 2000 and 1999, with a
duration of 1.2 years in 2000 and 1.5 years in 1999. Other revolving lines had a
weighted average interest rate of 13.7 percent in 2000 and 11.9 percent in 1999.
Estimated cash flows net of funding and operational costs were discounted using
an estimated cost of capital

CONSUMER INSTALLMENT Prepayment assumptions ranging from 15 to 23 percent were
applied to scheduled cash flows, based on the Company's experience. On the
fixed-rate portion, the weighted average rate was 9.4 percent in 2000 and 1999.
The duration was 1.5 years in 2000 and 1.4 years in 1999. The floating-rate
portion of the consumer installment portfolio had a weighted average interest
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rate of 8.8 percent in 2000 and 7.5 percent in 1999.
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CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE Core deposits provide a stable, low-cost source of funds
that can be invested to earn a return that exceeds their cost. The fair value of
the Company's core deposit intangible was calculated using a discounted cash
flow model that estimates the present value of net cash flows including the
difference between the ongoing funding cost of the core deposits and alternative
funds at current market rates.

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and
certain money market deposits is equal to the amount payable on demand at
year-end. The fair value of fixed-rate certificates of deposit was estimated by
discounting the contractual cash flow using the discount rates implied by the
high-grade corporate bond yield curve.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS Federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements
to repurchase and other short-term funds borrowed are at floating rates or have
short-term maturities. Their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair
value.

LONG-TERM DEBT AND COMPANY-OBLIGATED MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SECURITIES
OF SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS HOLDING SOLELY THE JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES OF THE
PARENT COMPANY Medium-term notes, Euro medium-term notes, bank notes, Federal
Home Loan Bank Advances, capital lease obligations and mortgage note obligations
totaled $15,251 million in 2000 and $13,237 million in 1999.

    Their estimated fair value was determined using a discounted cash flow
analysis based on current market rates of similar maturity debt securities.
Other long-term debt instruments and company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the junior subordinated
debentures of the parent company were valued using available market quotes.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS, BASIS SWAPS AND OPTIONS The interest rate options and swap
cash flows were estimated using a third party pricing model and discounted based
on appropriate LIBOR, Eurodollar futures, swap and Treasury Note yield curves.

LOAN COMMITMENTS, LETTERS OF CREDIT AND GUARANTEES The Company's commitments
have floating rates and do not expose the Company to interest rate risk. No
premium or discount was ascribed to the loan commitments because virtually all
funding would be at current market rates.
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The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are shown in
the table below.

                                                                       2000                   1999
                                                                ------------------------------------------
                                                                Carrying       Fair    Carrying       Fair
(Dollars in Millions)                                             Amount      Value      Amount      Value
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

FINANCIAL ASSETS
   Cash and due from banks..................................    $ 4,142     $ 4,142    $ 4,036     $ 4,036
   Federal funds sold and resale agreements.................        457         457      1,037       1,037
   Trading account securities...............................        753         753        617         617
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   Available-for-sale securities............................      4,282       4,282      4,871       4,871
   Loans
      Commercial
         Commercial.........................................     29,920      31,072     26,491      27,286
         Commercial real estate and construction............     14,651      15,290     14,106      14,717
         Lease financing....................................      4,096       4,190      2,372       2,300
      Consumer
         Residential mortgage...............................      2,485       2,566      2,661       2,672
         Home equity and second mortgage....................      9,438       9,886      8,681       8,918
         Credit card and revolving credit...................      6,367       7,448      6,128       6,865
         Other consumer installment.........................      2,134       2,240      2,446       2,484
      Allowance for credit losses...........................     (1,067)         --       (995)         --
                                                                ------------------------------------------
         Net loans..........................................     68,024      72,692     61,890      65,242
                                                                ------------------------------------------
         Total financial assets.............................     77,658      82,326     72,451      75,803
NONFINANCIAL ASSETS
   Core deposit intangible..................................        172       5,053        176       4,837
                                                                ------------------------------------------
         Total..............................................     77,830     $87,379     72,627     $80,640
                                                                            -------                -------
   Other assets.............................................      9,506                  8,903
                                                                 ------                --------
         Total assets.......................................    $87,336                $81,530
                                                                  ------               --------
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
   Deposits
      Noninterest-bearing...................................    $15,653     $15,653    $16,050     $16,050
      Interest-bearing checking and other savings...........     31,176      31,176     29,671      29,671
      Time deposits . $100,000..............................      6,428       6,495      5,809       5,869
                                                                ------------------------------------------
         Total deposits.....................................     53,257      53,324     51,530      51,590
      Federal funds purchased...............................        978         978        297         297
      Securities sold under agreements to repurchase........        965         965      1,235       1,235
      Other short-term funds borrowed.......................        866         866        724         724
      Long-term debt........................................     18,566      18,658     16,563      16,602
      Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
      securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the
      junior subordinated debentures of the parent
      company...............................................        950         905        950         844
                                                                ------------------------------------------
         Total financial liabilities........................     75,582     $75,696     71,299     $71,292
                                                                            -------                -------
NONFINANCIAL LIABILITIES....................................      3,114                  2,593
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY........................................      8,640                  7,638
                                                                 ------                --------
         Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.........    $87,336                $81,530
                                                                 ------                --------
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
      Unrecognized gain on interest rate swaps, basis swaps
      and options...........................................        N/A     $    79        N/A     $     6
      Unrecognized loss on interest rate swaps, basis swaps
      and options...........................................        N/A          56        N/A         240
      Loan commitments......................................        N/A          --        N/A          --
      Letters of credit.....................................        N/A          --        N/A          --
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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     NOTE S

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form 10-K405

76



         COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Rental expense for operating leases amounted to $130.4 million in 2000, $111.2
million in 1999, and $121.0 million in 1998. Future minimum payments, net of
sublease rentals, under capitalized leases and noncancelable operating leases
with initial or remaining terms of one year or more, consisted of the following
at December 31, 2000:

                                                                Capitalized    Operating
(Dollars in Millions)                                             Leases          Leases
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2001........................................................      $ 11.4       $  149.5
2002........................................................        10.3          137.1
2003........................................................         8.7          117.3
2004........................................................         7.9           90.9
2005........................................................         6.6           77.5
Thereafter..................................................        56.5          470.6
                                                                ------------------------
Total minimum lease payments................................      $101.4       $1,042.9
                                                                               --------
Less amount representing interest...........................        42.3
                                                                  ------
Present value of net minimum lease payments.................      $ 59.1
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Various legal proceedings are currently pending against the Company. Due to
their complex nature, it may be years before some matters are resolved. In the
opinion of management, the aggregate liability, if any, will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position, liquidity or results of
operations.

     NOTE T
         SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Listed below are supplemental disclosures
to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                      2000          1999         1998
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Income taxes paid...........................................    $  746.9    $  701.7    $   552.8
Interest paid...............................................     3,018.4     2,342.9      2,324.1
Net noncash transfers to foreclosed property................        42.5        31.6         25.0
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
 securities, net of taxes of $47.2 in 2000, $82.0 in 1999
 and $7.6 in 1998...........................................        76.8      (133.6)        12.5
                                                                ---------------------------------
Cash acquisitions of businesses:
   Fair value of noncash assets acquired....................    $  945.1    $  250.3    $ 2,249.7
   Liabilities assumed......................................      (649.1)      (29.8)    (1,469.5)
                                                                ---------------------------------
      Net...................................................    $  296.0    $  220.5    $   780.2
                                                                ---------------------------------
Stock acquisitions of businesses:
   Fair value of noncash assets acquired....................    $1,561.2    $3,521.2    $      --
   Net cash acquired........................................        63.5       462.4           --
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   Liabilities assumed......................................    (1,327.1)   (2,708.1)          --
                                                                ---------------------------------
      Net value of common stock issued......................    $  297.6    $1,275.5    $      --
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

REGULATORY CAPITAL The measures used to assess capital include the capital
ratios established by bank regulatory agencies, including the specific ratios
for the "well capitalized" designation. For a description of the regulatory
capital requirements and the actual ratios as of December 31, 2000, for the
Company and its significant bank subsidiaries, see Tables 19 and 20 from which
such information is incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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     NOTE U
         U.S. BANCORP (PARENT COMPANY)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                                2000            1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ASSETS
Deposits with subsidiary banks, principally
 interest-bearing...........................................    $ 1,408       $   469
Available-for-sale securities...............................        288           309
Investments in:
   Bank affiliates..........................................      9,120         8,128
   Nonbank affiliates.......................................        880           669
Advances to:
   Bank affiliates..........................................      1,071         1,016
   Nonbank affiliates.......................................      1,361         1,357
Other assets................................................      1,368         1,236
                                                                ---------------------
      Total assets..........................................    $15,496       $13,184
                                                                ---------------------
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Short-term funds borrowed...................................    $    --       $    31
Advances from subsidiaries..................................         97           111
Long-term debt..............................................      5,128         3,805
Junior subordinated debentures issued to subsidiary
 trusts.....................................................        979           979
Other liabilities...........................................        652           620
Shareholders' equity........................................      8,640         7,638
                                                                ---------------------
      Total liabilities and shareholders' equity............    $15,496       $13,184
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                        2000           1999         1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INCOME
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Dividends from subsidiaries (including $915.0, $995.0 and
   $1,290.0 from bank subsidiaries).........................    $  923.5       $1,026.3       $1,387.1
Interest from subsidiaries..................................       234.8          177.2          159.3
Service and management fees from subsidiaries...............       213.8          191.5          240.4
Other income................................................       152.1          110.8          119.7
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Total income..........................................     1,524.2        1,505.8        1,906.5
EXPENSES
Interest on short-term funds borrowed.......................         5.0           15.5           16.9
Interest on long-term debt..................................       341.0          217.9          187.2
Interest on junior subordinated debentures issued to
 subsidiary trusts..........................................        76.6           76.6           70.1
Operating expenses paid to subsidiaries.....................        15.5            9.6           78.9
Merger-related charges......................................        20.8           13.9           25.6
Other expenses..............................................       153.8          166.5          197.9
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Total expenses........................................       612.7          500.0          576.6
                                                                --------------------------------------
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed
   income of subsidiaries...................................       911.5        1,005.8        1,329.9
Income tax credit...........................................        (8.3)         (17.1)         (71.0)
                                                                --------------------------------------
Income of parent company....................................       919.8        1,022.9        1,400.9
Equity (deficiency) in undistributed income of subsidiaries:
   Bank affiliates..........................................       640.1          438.1         (101.6)
   Nonbank affiliates.......................................        32.1           45.5           28.1
                                                                --------------------------------------
                                                                   672.2          483.6          (73.5)
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Net income............................................    $1,592.0       $1,506.5       $1,327.4
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                        2000           1999           1998
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income..................................................    $1,592.0       $1,506.5       $1,327.4
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
 operating activities:
   (Equity) deficiency in undistributed income of
    subsidiaries............................................      (672.2)        (483.6)          73.5
   Losses (gains) on available-for-sale securities..........         4.1           (8.6)         (12.5)
   Depreciation and amortization of premises and
    equipment...............................................        11.2           12.5           12.9
   Provision for deferred income taxes......................        36.3           17.0            4.4
   Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets.....        11.7           11.5           11.0
   Decrease (increase) in accrued receivables...............        19.9          (19.4)          (3.9)
   Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities...............        41.7           86.7         (124.0)
   Other -- net.............................................      (204.7)         (30.8)         (67.0)
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Net cash provided by operating activities.............       840.0        1,091.8        1,221.8
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Available-for-sale securities
   Sales and maturities.....................................        88.6          127.5           83.0
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   Purchases................................................       (49.4)        (323.5)         (59.9)
Investments in subsidiaries.................................        (4.6)         (26.0)      (1,114.6)
Equity distributions from subsidiaries......................          --          145.0          325.0
Net decrease (increase) in short-term advances to
 affiliates.................................................        97.2          (79.4)        (496.5)
Long-term advances made to affiliates.......................      (200.0)        (595.0)        (330.0)
Principal collected on long-term advances made to
 affiliates.................................................        40.0          285.0          295.0
Other -- net................................................      (127.0)        (157.0)          (6.8)
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Net cash used by investing activities.................      (155.2)        (623.4)      (1,304.8)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease) increase in short-term advances from
 subsidiaries...............................................       (15.6)          62.6           21.4
Net (decrease) increase in short-term funds borrowed........       (31.0)         (16.8)          47.7
Proceeds from long-term debt................................     1,792.5        1,068.5        1,218.3
Principal payments on long-term debt........................      (526.9)        (737.7)        (190.5)
Issuance of junior subordinated debentures to subsidiary
 trusts.....................................................          --             --          360.8
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment, stock option and stock
 purchase plans.............................................       112.7          153.2          220.4
Repurchase of common stock..................................      (432.2)        (560.8)        (964.0)
Cash dividends..............................................      (644.7)        (573.1)        (516.4)
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Net cash provided (used) by financing activities......       254.8         (604.1)         197.7
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Change in cash and cash equivalents...................       939.6         (135.7)         114.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..............       468.5          604.2          489.5
                                                                --------------------------------------
      Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..............    $1,408.1       $  468.5       $  604.2
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

    Transfer of funds (dividends, loans or advances) from bank subsidiaries to
the Company is restricted. Federal law prohibits loans unless they are secured
and generally limits any loan to the Company or individual affiliate to 10
percent of the bank's equity. In aggregate, loans to the Company and all
affiliates cannot exceed 20 percent of the bank's equity.

    Dividend payments to the Company by its subsidiary banks are subject to
regulatory review and statutory limitations and, in some instances, regulatory
approval. The approval of the Comptroller of the Currency is required if total
dividends by a national bank in any calendar year exceed the bank's net income
for that year combined with its retained net income for the preceding two
calendar years or if the bank's retained earnings are less than zero.
Furthermore, dividends are restricted by the Comptroller of the Currency's
minimum capital constraints for all national banks. Within these guidelines, all
bank subsidiaries have the ability to pay dividends without prior regulatory
approval.
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REPORT  OF  MANAGEMENT

The financial statements of U.S. Bancorp were prepared by management, which is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States appropriate in the circumstances and include amounts that are
based on management's best estimates and judgment. All financial information
throughout the Annual Report on Form 10-K is consistent with that in the
financial statements.
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    The Company maintains accounting and internal control systems that are
believed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and
transactions are properly authorized and recorded. To test compliance, the
Company carries out an extensive audit program. This program includes a review
for compliance with written policies and procedures and a comprehensive review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems. However, there
are limits inherent in all systems of internal accounting control and management
recognizes that errors or irregularities may occur. Based on the recognition
that the costs of such systems should not exceed the benefits to be derived,
management believes the Company's system provides an appropriate cost/benefit
balance.

    The Company's independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have been engaged to
render an opinion on the financial statements and to assist in carrying out the
audit program described above. Their opinion on the financial statements is
based on procedures performed in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States, including tests of the accounting records to the
extent necessary to allow them to report on the fairness of the financial
statements. Ernst & Young LLP has full access to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors.

    The management of the Company is committed to and has always maintained and
enforced a philosophy of high ethical standards in the conduct of its business.
Written policies covering conflicts of interest and other subjects are
formulated in a Code of Ethics which is uniformly applicable to all officers and
employees of the Company.

/s/ John F. Grundhofer               /s/ Jerry A. Grundhofer

JOHN F. GRUNDHOFER                   JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER
Chairman                             President and
                                     Chief Executive Officer

/s/ David M. Moffett                 /s/ Terrance R. Dolan

DAVID M. MOFFETT                     TERRANCE R. DOLAN
Vice Chairman and                    Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer              Controller

REPORT  OF  INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

U.S. Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Bancorp and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

    We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
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audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

    In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of U.S. Bancorp
and subsidiaries at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota

January 18, 2001,
except for Note C, as to which
the date is February 27, 2001
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET --

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

                                                                                                                         % Change
December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                                2000       1999       1998       1997       1996       1999-2000
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks...................................    $ 4,142    $ 4,036    $ 4,772    $ 4,739    $ 4,813           2.6%
Federal funds sold and resale agreements..................        457      1,037        544        692        898         (55.9)
Trading account securities................................        753        617        537        195        231          22.0
Held-to-maturity securities...............................         --         --         --         --        797            --
Available-for-sale securities
   U.S. Treasury..........................................        361        381        500        628      1,028          (5.2)
   Mortgage-backed........................................      2,493      2,906      3,438      4,366      4,104         (14.2)
   State and political....................................      1,039      1,135      1,255      1,331        573          (8.5)
   U.S. agencies and other................................        389        449        384        560        768         (13.4)
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Total available-for-sale securities.................      4,282      4,871      5,577      6,885      6,473         (12.1)
Loans.....................................................     69,091     62,885     59,122     54,708     52,355           9.9
   Less allowance for credit losses.......................      1,067        995      1,001      1,009        993           7.2
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Net loans...........................................     68,024     61,890     58,121     53,699     51,362           9.9
Other assets..............................................      9,678      9,079      6,887      5,085      5,175           6.6
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Total assets........................................    $87,336    $81,530    $76,438    $71,295    $69,749           7.1%
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits
   Noninterest-bearing....................................    $15,653    $16,050    $16,377    $14,544    $14,344          (2.5)%
   Interest-bearing.......................................     37,604     35,480     33,657     34,483     35,012           6.0
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Total deposits......................................     53,257     51,530     50,034     49,027     49,356           3.4
Short-term borrowings.....................................      2,809      2,256      3,365      3,292      6,592          24.5
Long-term debt............................................     18,566     16,563     13,781     10,247      5,369          12.1
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
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   securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the
   junior subordinated debentures of the parent company...        950        950        950        600        600            --
Other liabilities.........................................      3,114      2,593      2,338      2,239      2,069          20.1
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Total liabilities...................................     78,696     73,892     70,468     65,405     63,986           6.5
Shareholders' equity......................................      8,640      7,638      5,970      5,890      5,763          13.1
                                                              ---------------------------------------------------
      Total liabilities and shareholders' equity..........    $87,336    $81,530    $76,438    $71,295    $69,749           7.1%
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Bancorp                                                                  59
   62

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME -- FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

                                                                                                                         % Change
Year Ended December 31 (Dollars in Millions)                 2000        1999        1998        1997        1996       1999-2000
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INTEREST INCOME
Loans................................................    $6,162.0    $5,208.6    $4,921.8    $4,784.5    $4,537.7         18.3%
Securities
   Taxable...........................................       230.3       250.6       303.6       371.5       420.5         (8.1)
   Exempt from federal income taxes..................        54.4        57.3        62.8        68.1        71.0         (5.1)
Other interest income................................       260.4       160.2       119.2        69.5        85.2         62.5
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
      Total interest income..........................     6,707.1     5,676.7     5,407.4     5,293.6     5,114.4         18.2
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits.............................................     1,667.9     1,291.2     1,391.0     1,436.8     1,441.3         29.2
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements....       177.4       164.2       153.6       183.0       197.9          8.0
Other short-term funds borrowed......................        56.2        49.9        59.1       117.6       198.0         12.6
Long-term debt.......................................     1,257.0       833.4       672.7       459.0       303.8         50.8
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred
   securities of subsidiary trusts holding solely the
   junior subordinated debentures of the parent
   company...........................................        77.3        77.3        70.4        49.1         2.8           --
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
      Total interest expense.........................     3,235.8     2,416.0     2,346.8     2,245.5     2,143.8         33.9
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
Net interest income..................................     3,471.3     3,260.7     3,060.6     3,048.1     2,970.6          6.5
Provision for credit losses..........................       670.0       531.0       379.0       460.3       271.2         26.2
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
Net interest income after provision for credit
   losses............................................     2,801.3     2,729.7     2,681.6     2,587.8     2,699.4          2.6
NONINTEREST INCOME
Credit card fee revenue..............................       723.2       603.1       574.8       418.8       351.5         19.9
Trust and investment management fees.................       473.9       459.7       413.0       348.0       302.3          3.1
Service charges on deposit accounts..................       469.3       434.6       406.0       396.2       377.2          8.0
Investment products fees and commissions.............       359.1       347.7       229.7        65.7        59.7          3.3
Investment banking revenue...........................       356.3       245.4       100.4          --          --         45.2
Trading account profits and commissions..............       252.5       215.9       118.1        30.9        29.0         17.0
Available-for-sale securities gains (losses).........         7.0        (1.3)       12.6         3.6        20.8            *
Gain on sale of mortgage banking operations..........          --          --          --          --        45.8           --
Termination fee......................................          --          --          --          --       190.0           --
Other................................................       617.1       453.6       402.0       352.0       406.8         36.0
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
      Total noninterest income.......................     3,258.4     2,758.7     2,256.6     1,615.2     1,783.1         18.1
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries.............................................     1,677.0     1,460.9     1,210.9       969.3       964.5         14.8
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Employee benefits....................................       279.0       248.4       222.3       217.4       220.3         12.3
Net occupancy........................................       236.9       204.6       187.4       182.0       179.4         15.8
Furniture and equipment..............................       167.4       160.1       153.4       165.4       175.2          4.6
Goodwill and other intangible assets.................       235.5       165.6       143.7       113.3       130.1         42.2
Merger-related charges...............................        61.3        62.4       216.5       511.6        88.1         (1.8)
Other................................................       941.3       824.9       710.1       653.3       780.5         14.1
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
      Total noninterest expense......................     3,598.4     3,126.9     2,844.3     2,812.3     2,538.1         15.1
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
Income before income taxes...........................     2,461.3     2,361.5     2,093.9     1,390.7     1,944.4          4.2
Applicable income taxes..............................       869.3       855.0       766.5       552.2       725.7          1.7
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
Net income...........................................    $1,592.0    $1,506.5    $1,327.4    $  838.5    $1,218.7          5.7
                                                         --------------------------------------------------------
Net income applicable to common equity...............    $1,592.0    $1,506.5    $1,327.4    $  827.9    $1,200.3          5.7%
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

* Not meaningful
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QUARTERLY  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  DATA

                                                       2000                                              1999
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(Dollars in Millions, Except         Fourth       Third      Second       First        Fourth       Third      Second       First
Per Share Data)                     Quarter     Quarter     Quarter     Quarter       Quarter     Quarter     Quarter     Quarter
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INTEREST INCOME
Loans..........................    $1,634.7    $1,582.9    $1,517.5    $1,426.9      $1,364.6    $1,333.3    $1,272.2    $1,238.5
Securities
   Taxable.....................        54.8        56.7        58.5        60.3          62.0        64.2        59.8        64.6
   Exempt from federal income
    taxes......................        13.1        13.5        13.8        14.0          14.1        14.2        14.3        14.7
Other interest income..........        65.9        67.2        64.9        62.4          47.3        40.1        38.6        34.2
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Total interest income....     1,768.5     1,720.3     1,654.7     1,563.6       1,488.0     1,451.8     1,384.9     1,352.0
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits.......................       450.8       442.0       402.2       372.9         352.1       318.7       308.8       311.6
Federal funds purchased and
   repurchase agreements.......        50.9        37.0        45.7        43.8          32.8        48.4        43.6        39.4
Other short-term funds
 borrowed......................        14.7        12.9        15.0        13.6          12.0        12.9        12.1        12.9
Long-term debt.................       334.7       343.5       310.2       268.6         241.1       217.8       188.4       186.1
Company-obligated mandatorily
   redeemable preferred
   securities of subsidiary
   trusts holding solely the
   junior subordinated
   debentures of the parent
   company.....................        19.3        19.4        19.3        19.3          19.3        19.3        19.4        19.3
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Total interest expense...       870.4       854.8       792.4       718.2         657.3       617.1       572.3       569.3
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net interest income............       898.1       865.5       862.3       845.4         830.7       834.7       812.6       782.7
Provision for credit losses....       180.0       173.0       163.0       154.0         146.0       142.0       126.0       117.0
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Net interest income after
 provision for credit losses...       718.1       692.5       699.3       691.4         684.7       692.7       686.6       665.7
NONINTEREST INCOME
Credit card fee revenue........       193.8       192.8       177.1       159.5         166.3       161.3       148.7       126.8
Trust and investment management
 fees..........................       119.9       119.9       117.0       117.1         116.5       113.8       112.2       117.2
Service charges on deposit
 accounts......................       122.0       120.8       117.5       109.0         111.5       112.2       107.5       103.4
Investment products fees and
 commissions...................        79.8        81.3        81.8       116.2          88.0        79.5        91.6        88.6
Investment banking revenue.....        92.2        97.3        72.8        94.0          88.8        60.1        60.3        36.2
Trading account profits and
 commissions...................        60.7        50.0        58.2        83.6          65.5        48.4        50.5        51.5
Available-for-sale securities
 gains (losses)................         6.0         1.0          .3         (.3)          2.1        (3.4)         --          --
Other..........................       159.9       163.9       177.0       116.3         125.2       140.7        85.1       102.6
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Total noninterest
       income..................       834.3       827.0       801.7       795.4         763.9       712.6       655.9       626.3
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries.......................       413.3       417.5       414.1       432.1         397.7       352.4       356.7       354.1
Employee benefits..............        70.6        63.0        69.3        76.1          65.0        59.8        53.6        70.0
Net occupancy..................        65.1        59.5        55.2        57.1          52.8        51.9        49.9        50.0
Furniture and equipment........        42.1        43.7        40.5        41.1          42.1        40.9        39.0        38.1
Goodwill and other intangible
 assets........................        61.6        58.9        58.4        56.6          49.6        41.6        36.6        37.8
Merger-related charges.........        17.5        15.7        15.0        13.1          27.7        16.8        15.0         2.9
Other..........................       235.5       241.8       239.1       224.9         236.2       220.8       202.0       165.9
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      Total noninterest
       expense.................       905.7       900.1       891.6       901.0         871.1       784.2       752.8       718.8
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Income before income taxes.....       646.7       619.4       609.4       585.8         577.5       621.1       589.7       573.2
Applicable income taxes........       228.1       218.1       216.3       206.8         208.5       224.7       215.4       206.4
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Net income.....................    $  418.6    $  401.3    $  393.1    $  379.0      $  369.0    $  396.4    $  374.3    $  366.8
                                   ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Earnings per share.............    $    .56    $    .54    $    .53    $    .51      $    .50    $    .55    $    .52    $    .51
Diluted earnings per share.....    $    .56    $    .54    $    .52    $    .51      $    .50    $    .54    $    .51    $    .50
SELECTED AVERAGE BALANCES
Loans..........................    $ 68,782    $ 67,233    $ 65,998    $ 63,709      $ 61,523    $ 61,349    $ 60,321    $ 59,081
Earning assets.................      77,015      75,713      74,545      72,144        69,540      69,271      67,979      66,738
Total assets...................      86,755      85,108      84,085      81,771        78,859      77,700      76,072      75,107
Deposits.......................      51,696      50,912      50,399      49,703        49,071      47,716      47,979      47,620
Long-term debt.................      18,967      19,592      18,627      17,082        16,161      15,733      14,416      13,967
Common equity..................       8,417       8,032       7,884       7,697         7,159       6,588       6,312       6,088
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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CONSOLIDATED DAILY AVERAGE BALANCE

Year Ended December 31                             2000                                    1999
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                              Yields                                  Yields
(Dollars in Millions)                Balance    Interest   and Rates         Balance    Interest   and Rates
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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ASSETS
Available-for-sale securities
   U.S. Treasury.................    $   378    $   21.4        5.66%        $   425    $   24.1        5.67%
   Mortgage-backed...............      2,755       186.8        6.78           3,138       206.9        6.59
   State and political...........      1,088        81.4        7.48           1,140        86.2        7.56
   U.S. agencies and other.......        445        21.1        4.74             450        18.5        4.11
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
      Total available-for-sale
         securities..............      4,666       310.7        6.66           5,153       335.7        6.51
      Unrealized (loss) gain on
         available-for-sale
         securities..............        (99)                                     18
                                      ------                                 -------
      Net available-for-sale
         securities..............      4,567                                   5,171
Held-to-maturity securities......         --          --          --              --          --          --
Trading account securities.......        779        57.6        7.39             630        41.3        6.56
Federal funds sold and resale
   agreements....................        604        32.1        5.31             535        23.0        4.30
Loans
   Commercial
      Commercial.................     29,074     2,518.1        8.66          25,030     1,920.1        7.67
      Real estate
         Commercial mortgage.....     10,123       894.9        8.84           8,645       730.9        8.45
         Construction............      4,440       427.1        9.62           3,661       324.9        8.87
      Lease financing............      2,890       227.8        7.88           2,251       160.8        7.14
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total commercial........     46,527     4,067.9        8.74          39,587     3,136.7        7.92
   Consumer
      Home equity and second
         mortgage................      9,051       876.1        9.68           8,039       758.4        9.43
      Credit card................      4,173       580.0       13.90           4,029       528.7       13.12
      Other......................      4,114       446.9       10.86           6,134       581.4        9.48
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Subtotal................     17,338     1,903.0       10.98          18,202     1,868.5       10.27
      Residential mortgage.......      2,574       201.5        7.83           2,789       214.8        7.70
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total consumer..........     19,912     2,104.5       10.57          20,991     2,083.3        9.92
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total loans.............     66,439     6,172.4        9.29          60,578     5,220.0        8.62
   Allowance for credit losses...      1,062                                     998
                                      ------                                 -------
         Net loans...............     65,377                                  59,580
Other earning assets.............      2,375       203.8        8.58           1,496        98.7        6.60
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total earning assets*...     74,863     6,776.6        9.05          68,392     5,718.7        8.36
Other assets.....................     10,736                                   9,535
                                      ------                                 -------
         Total assets............    $84,438                                 $76,947
                                      ------                                 -------
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
   EQUITY
Noninterest-bearing deposits.....    $14,196                                 $13,760
Interest-bearing deposits
   Interest checking.............      6,427       150.0        2.33           6,044       110.3        1.82
   Money market accounts.........     12,679       547.6        4.32          12,141       428.5        3.53
   Other savings accounts........      1,941        33.5        1.73           2,223        40.1        1.80
   Savings certificates..........      9,378       552.0        5.89           9,575       479.0        5.00
   Certificates over $100,000....      6,060       384.8        6.35           4,356       233.3        5.36
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total interest-bearing
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          deposits...............     36,485     1,667.9        4.57          34,339     1,291.2        3.76
Short-term borrowings............      3,321       233.6        7.03           3,887       214.1        5.51
Long-term debt...................     18,571     1,257.0        6.77          15,077       833.4        5.53
Company-obligated mandatorily
   redeemable preferred
   securities....................        950        77.3        8.14             950        77.3        8.14
                                       -----------------                     -------------------
         Total interest-bearing
          liabilities............     59,327     3,235.8        5.45          54,253     2,416.0        4.45
Other liabilities................      2,906                                   2,394
Preferred equity.................         --                                      --
Common equity....................      8,067                                   6,528
Accumulated other comprehensive
   income........................        (58)                                     12
                                      ------                                 -------
         Total liabilities and
          shareholders' equity...    $84,438                                 $76,947
                                      ------                                 -------
Net interest income..............               $3,540.8                                $3,302.7
                                                 -------                                 -------
Gross interest margin............                               3.60%                                   3.91%
                                                              --------                                --------
Gross interest margin without
   taxable-equivalent
   increments....................                               3.51%                                   3.85%
                                                              --------                                --------
PERCENT OF EARNING ASSETS
Interest income..................                               9.05%                                   8.36%
Interest expense.................                               4.32                                    3.53
                                                              --------                                --------
Net interest margin..............                               4.73                                    4.83
                                                              --------                                --------
Net interest margin without
   taxable-equivalent
   increments....................                               4.64%                                   4.77%
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Interest and rates are presented on a fully taxable-equivalent basis under a tax
rate of 35 percent.
Interest income and rates on loans include loan fees. Nonaccrual loans are
included in average loan balances.
 *Before deducting the allowance for credit losses and excluding the unrealized
  (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities.
**Not meaningful.
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SHEET AND RELATED YIELDS AND RATES

               1998                                 1997                                 1996                  1999-2000
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                                                                       %
                                                                                                                  Change
                         Yields                               Yields                               Yields        Average
  Balance   Interest  and Rates        Balance   Interest  and Rates        Balance   Interest  and Rates        Balance
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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  $   565   $   32.8      5.81%        $   734   $   42.7      5.82%        $ 1,255   $   74.3      5.92%        (11.1)%
    3,667      247.1      6.74           4,239      290.5      6.85           4,158      279.7      6.73         (12.2)
    1,260       98.2      7.79             889       69.8      7.85             555       47.0      8.47          (4.6)
      403       21.9      5.43             595       36.1      6.07             978       65.7      6.72          (1.1)
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------

    5,895      400.0      6.79           6,457      439.1      6.80           6,946      466.7      6.72          (9.5)

       97                                    3                                  (21)                                **
---------                              -------                              -------

    5,992                                6,460                                6,925                              (11.7)
       --         --        --             449       35.5      7.91             834       64.0      7.67           --
      290       18.7      6.45             168        9.7      5.77             233       13.2      5.67          23.7

      667       35.0      5.25             577       31.6      5.48             872       46.5      5.33          12.9

   22,608    1,794.6      7.94          20,578    1,690.0      8.21          19,211    1,583.0      8.24          16.2

    8,129      712.8      8.77           8,037      728.5      9.06           7,630      687.5      9.01          17.1
    2,652      240.1      9.05           2,255      216.9      9.62           1,707      165.4      9.69          21.3
    2,000      151.1      7.56           1,888      139.8      7.40           1,699      125.0      7.36          28.4
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------
   35,389    2,898.6      8.19          32,758    2,775.2      8.47          30,247    2,560.9      8.47          17.5

    6,130      585.0      9.54           5,555      532.6      9.59           4,708      441.4      9.38          12.6
    4,021      508.3     12.64           3,702      462.9     12.50           3,452      444.0     12.86           3.6
    6,803      656.0      9.64           6,894      673.2      9.77           7,037      680.6      9.67         (32.9)
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------
   16,954    1,749.3     10.32          16,151    1,668.7     10.33          15,197    1,566.0     10.30          (4.7)
    3,636      289.6      7.96           4,604      363.3      7.89           5,411      435.7      8.05          (7.7)
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------
   20,590    2,038.9      9.90          20,755    2,032.0      9.79          20,608    2,001.7      9.71          (5.1)
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------
   55,979    4,937.5      8.82          53,513    4,807.2      8.98          50,855    4,562.6      8.97           9.7
      997                                  998                                  973                                6.4
---------                              ------------------                   -------
   54,982                               52,515                               49,882                                9.7
    1,037       67.5      6.51             511       28.4      5.56             461       25.5      5.53          58.8
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------
   63,868    5,458.7      8.55          61,675    5,351.5      8.68          60,201    5,178.5      8.60           9.5
    8,823                                8,091                                8,195                               12.6
---------                              -------                              -------
  $71,791                              $68,771                              $67,402                                9.7%
---------                              -------                              -------

  $13,497                              $12,680                              $11,970                                3.2%

    5,754      104.2      1.81           5,561       92.2      1.66           5,678       90.1      1.59           6.3
   11,201      437.9      3.91          10,440      401.9      3.85          10,068      379.4      3.77           4.4
    2,465       51.2      2.08           2,799       61.2      2.19           3,157       70.7      2.24         (12.7)
   11,309      616.8      5.45          12,278      668.9      5.45          12,985      703.2      5.42          (2.1)
    3,101      180.9      5.83           3,578      212.6      5.94           3,394      197.9      5.83          39.1
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------

   33,830    1,391.0      4.11          34,656    1,436.8      4.15          35,282    1,441.3      4.09           6.2
    3,733      212.7      5.70           5,314      300.6      5.66           7,187      395.9      5.51         (14.6)
   11,481      672.7      5.86           7,527      459.0      6.10           4,908      303.8      6.19          23.2
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      864       70.4      8.15             600       49.1      8.18              36        2.8      8.18            --
--------------------                   ------------------                   ------------------

   49,908    2,346.8      4.70          48,097    2,245.5      4.67          47,413    2,143.8      4.52           9.4
    2,337                                2,196                                2,100                               21.4
       --                                  131                                  240                                 --
    5,989                                5,665                                5,693                               23.6

       60                                    2                                  (14)                                **
---------                              -------                              -------

  $71,791                              $68,771                              $67,402                                9.7%
---------                              -------                              -------                              -----
            $3,111.9                             $3,106.0                             $3,034.7
            --------                             --------                             --------
                          3.85%                                4.01%                                4.08%
                        --------                             --------                             --------

                          3.77%                                3.91%                                3.98%
                        --------                             --------                             --------

                          8.55%                                8.68%                                8.60%
                          3.68                                 3.64                                 3.56
                        --------                             --------                             --------
                          4.87                                 5.04                                 5.04
                        --------                             --------                             --------

                          4.79%                                4.94%                                4.93%
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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SUPPLEMENTAL  FINANCIAL  DATA

EARNINGS PER SHARE SUMMARY                                       2000           1999           1998           1997           1996
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Earnings per share....................................          $2.14          $2.07          $1.81          $1.13          $1.60
Diluted earnings per share............................           2.13           2.06           1.78           1.11           1.57
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
RATIOS
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Return on average assets..............................           1.89%          1.96%          1.85%          1.22%          1.81%
Return on average common equity.......................           19.9           23.0           21.9           14.6           21.1
Average total equity to average assets................            9.5            8.5            8.4            8.4            8.8
Dividends per share to net income per share...........           40.2           37.7           38.7           54.9           34.4
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
OTHER STATISTICS
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Common shares outstanding -- year-end *...............    752,059,861    753,330,212    725,761,718    739,933,014    738,017,970
Average common shares outstanding and common stock
   equivalents
      Earnings per share..............................    745,093,996    727,530,843    733,897,845    733,550,892    749,178,474
      Diluted earnings per share......................    747,855,624    732,990,811    744,178,143    742,913,736    766,172,004
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Number of shareholders -- year-end**..................         47,094         38,104         38,069         41,657         43,353
Average number of employees (full-time equivalents)...         28,949         26,891         26,526         25,858         27,157
Common dividends paid (millions)......................         $644.7         $573.1         $516.4         $445.7         $406.9
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

*Defined as total common shares less common stock held in treasury.
**Based on number of common stock shareholders of record.

STOCK PRICE RANGE AND DIVIDENDS

                                                         2000                                             1999
                                      -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                                             Sales Price                                      Sales Price
                                      --------------------------       Dividends       --------------------------       Dividends
                                        High                 Low            Paid         High                 Low            Paid
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

First quarter.....................    $24.00              $16.88       $   .215        $37.94              $30.13       $   .195
Second quarter....................     27.38               19.13           .215         37.81               30.50           .195
Third quarter.....................     23.25               18.00           .215         34.81               28.06           .195
Fourth quarter....................     30.44               19.38           .215         38.06               21.88           .195
Closing price -- December 31......               29.19                                            23.81
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The common stock of U.S. Bancorp is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, under
the ticker symbol "USB."
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COMMERCIAL LOAN MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

                                                                              December 31, 2000
                                                                ---------------------------------------------
                                                                In 1 Year       After 1 Year
(Dollars in Millions)                                             or Less    Through 5 Years    After 5 Years
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Commercial..................................................      $26,200            $ 3,387          $   333
Real estate
   Commercial mortgage......................................        4,788              3,818            1,602
   Construction.............................................        4,114                245               84
Lease financing.............................................          956              2,403              737
                                                                ---------------------------------------------
      Total.................................................      $36,058            $ 9,853          $ 2,756
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

                                                                   Due in          Due After
                                                                 One Year           One Year            Total
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Loans at fixed interest rates...............................      $ 4,384            $ 9,453          $13,837
Loans at variable interest rates............................       31,674              3,156           34,830
                                                                ---------------------------------------------
      Total.................................................      $36,058            $12,609          $48,667
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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TIME CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT AND OTHER TIME DEPOSITS IN DENOMINATIONS OF
$100,000 OR MORE AT DECEMBER 31

                                                                                            Maturing
                                                               ------------------------------------------------------------------
                                                                Under          Three         Six to           Over
                                                                Three         to Six         Twelve         Twelve
(Dollars in Millions)                                          Months         Months         Months         Months          Total
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2000....................................................       $3,615         $ 929          $1,038          $846          $6,428
1999....................................................        3,474         1,193             566           576           5,809
1998....................................................        1,541           365             439           478           2,823
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SHORT-TERM FUNDS BORROWED

                                                                Average           Maximum             Average            Weighted
                                                                  Daily       Outstanding       Interest Rate             Average
                                          Outstanding            Amount         Month End         Paid During       Interest Rate
(Dollars in Millions)                     at Year End       Outstanding           Balance            the Year         at Year End
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2000
Federal funds purchased and
   securities sold under agreements
   to repurchase...................          $ 1,943           $ 2,386        $    3,748                7.44%               5.93%
Other..............................              866               935             1,109                6.01                5.63
                                             --------------------------
         Total.....................          $ 2,809           $ 3,321             4,857                7.03                5.83
                                             --------------------------
1999
Federal funds purchased and
   securities sold under agreements
   to repurchase...................          $ 1,532           $ 2,877        $    3,701                5.71%               4.74%
Other..............................              724             1,010             1,254                4.94                4.95
                                             --------------------------
         Total.....................          $ 2,256           $ 3,887             4,752                5.51                4.80
                                             --------------------------
1998
Federal funds purchased and
   securities sold under agreements
   to repurchase...................          $ 2,682           $ 2,582        $    2,775                5.95%               4.60%
Other..............................              683             1,151             1,500                5.13                4.54
                                             --------------------------
         Total.....................          $ 3,365           $ 3,733             3,909                5.70                4.59
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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BUSINESS

GENERAL U.S. Bancorp (the "Company") is a multi-state bank holding company
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headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota. The Company was incorporated in
Delaware in 1929. In February 2001, the Company completed a merger with Firstar
Corporation of Milwaukee, Wisconsin. Following the merger, the Company owns 100
percent of the capital stock of each of seven banks and eleven trust companies
having approximately 2,200 banking offices in 24 Midwestern and Western states.
The Company offers full-service brokerage services at approximately 100 offices
through a wholly owned subsidiary. The Company also has various nonbank
subsidiaries engaged in financial services.

    The banks are engaged in general commercial banking business, principally in
domestic markets. They range in size from less than $1.0 million to $53.5
billion in deposits and provide a wide variety of services to individuals,
businesses, industry, institutional organizations, governmental entities and
other financial institutions. Depository services include checking accounts,
savings accounts and time certificate contracts. Ancillary services such as
treasury management and receivable lockbox collection are provided for corporate
customers. The Company's bank and trust subsidiaries provide a full range of
fiduciary activities for individuals, estates, foundations, business
corporations and charitable organizations.

    The Company provides banking services through its subsidiary banks to both
domestic and foreign customers and correspondent banks. These services include
consumer banking, commercial lending, financing of import/export trade, foreign
exchange and investment services.

    The Company, through its subsidiaries, also provides services in trust,
commercial and agricultural finance, data processing, leasing and brokerage
services.

    On a full-time equivalent basis during 2000, employment of the Company prior
to the merger with Firstar Corporation averaged a total of 28,949 employees.

COMPETITION The commercial banking business is highly competitive. Subsidiary
banks compete with other commercial banks and with other financial institutions,
including savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, finance
companies, mortgage banking companies, credit unions and investment companies.
In recent years, competition has increased from institutions not subject to the
same regulatory restrictions as domestic banks and bank holding companies.

GOVERNMENT POLICIES The operations of the Company's various operating units are
affected by state and federal legislative changes and by policies of various
regulatory authorities, including those of the several states in which they
operate, the United States and foreign governments. These policies include, for
example, statutory maximum legal lending rates, domestic monetary policies of
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, United States fiscal
policy, international currency regulations and monetary policies, and capital
adequacy and liquidity constraints imposed by bank regulatory agencies.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION The Company is a registered bank holding company
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "Act") and is subject to the
supervision of, and regulation by, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (the "Board").

    Under the Act, a bank holding company may engage in banking, managing or
controlling banks, furnishing or performing services for banks it controls, and
conducting activities that the Board has determined to be closely related to
banking. The Company must obtain the prior approval of the Board before
acquiring more than five percent of the outstanding shares of another bank or
bank holding company, and must provide notice to, and in some situations obtain
the prior approval of, the Board in connection with the acquisition of more than
five percent of the outstanding shares of a company engaged in a "bank-related"
business.
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    Under the Act, as amended by the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and
Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the "Interstate Act"), the Company may acquire
banks throughout the United States, subject only to state or federal deposit
caps and state minimum-age requirements. The Interstate Act authorized
interstate branching by acquisition and consolidation in those states that had
not opted out of interstate branching.

    The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 eliminates many of the restrictions
placed on the activities of certain qualified bank holding companies. Effective
March 11, 2000, a bank holding company can qualify as a "financial holding
company" and expand into a wide variety of financial services, including
securities activities, insurance and merchant banking without the prior approval
of the Board. The Company qualified as a financial holding company on March 13,
2000.

    National banks are subject to the supervision of, and are examined by, the
Comptroller of the Currency. All subsidiary banks of the Company are members of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") and are subject to
examination by the FDIC. In practice, the primary federal regulator makes
regular examinations of each subsidiary bank subject to its regulatory review or
participates in joint examinations with other federal regulators. Areas subject
to regulation by federal authorities include the allowance for credit losses,
investments, loans, mergers, issuance of securities, payment of dividends,
establishment of branches and other aspects of operations.

PROPERTIES

The Company and its significant subsidiaries occupy their headquarter offices
through both ownership and under long-term leases. The Company leases seven
freestanding operations centers in St. Paul, Milwaukee, Nashville and Denver,
and owns operations centers in Cincinnati, Kansas City, St. Louis, Fargo and
Portland. At December 31, 2000, the subsidiaries of the Company prior to the
merger with Firstar Corporation owned and operated a total of 599 facilities and
leased an additional 780 facilities, all of which are well maintained.
Additional information with respect to premises and equipment is presented in
Notes I and S to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EXHIBITS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FILED                                  Page
----------------------------------------------------------------

U.S. Bancorp and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial
 Statements                                                  27
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements                   31
Report of Independent Auditors                               58

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements required by Article 9 of
Regulation S-X are omitted since the required information is included in the
footnotes or is not applicable.

    During the three months ended December 31, 2000, the Company filed the
following Current Reports on Form 8-K:

    Form 8-K filed October 4, 2000 announcing entry into an Agreement and Plan
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of Merger with Firstar Corporation; and

    Form 8-K filed October 12, 2000 attaching copy of Agreement and Plan of
Merger with Firstar Corporation.

    The following Exhibit Index lists the Exhibits to the Annual Report on Form
10-K.

 (1)2.1   Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 3,
          2000, as amended, between U.S. Bancorp and Firstar
          Corporation. Filed as Exhibits 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 to
          Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No.
          333-48532.
 (1)2.2   Stock Option Agreement, dated October 3, 2000, between
          Firstar Corporation and U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit
          2.4 to Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No.
          333-48532.
 (1)2.3   Stock Option Agreement, dated October 3, 2000, between
          U.S. Bancorp and Firstar Corporation. Filed as Exhibit
          2.5 to Registration Statement on Form S-4, File No.
          333-48532.
    3.1   Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended.
    3.2   Restated Bylaws.
    4.1   [Pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K,
          copies of instruments defining the rights of holders
          of long-term debt are not filed. U.S. Bancorp agrees
          to furnish a copy thereof to the Securities and
          Exchange Commission upon request.]
 (1)4.2   Warrant Agreement, dated as of October 2, 1995,
          between U.S. Bancorp and First Chicago Trust Company
          of New York, as Warrant Agent and Form of Warrant.
          Filed as Exhibits 4.18 and 4.19 to Registration
          Statement on Form S-3, File No. 33-61667.
 (1)4.3   Certificate of Designation and Terms of Term
          Participating Preferred Stock of U.S. Bancorp. Filed
          as Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4,
          File No. 333-75603.
 (1)4.4   Forms of Warrant Agreements, dated as of November 5,
          1996, between Monarch Bancorp (predecessor of Western
          Bancorp) and certain Warrantholders, and accompanying
          Forms of Warrants, assumed by U.S. Bancorp upon its
          acquisition of Western Bancorp on November 15, 1999.
          Filed as Exhibit 4.5 to report on Form 10-K for the
          year ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.1 U.S. Bancorp 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended.
          Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to report on Form 10-K for the
          year ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.2 Description of U.S. Bancorp Stock Option Loan Policy.
          Filed as Exhibit 10M to report on Form 10-K for the
          year ended December 31, 1996.
(1)(2)10.3 U.S. Bancorp 1995 Executive Incentive Plan, as
          amended. Filed as Exhibit 10A to report on Form 10-Q
          for the quarter ended March 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.4 U.S. Bancorp Annual Incentive Plan, as amended. Filed
          as Exhibit 10E to report on Form 10-K for the year
          ended December 31, 1996.
(1)(2)10.5 U.S. Bancorp Executive Deferral Plan, as amended.
          Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to report on Form 10-K for the
          year ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.6 U.S. Bancorp Nonqualified Supplemental Executive
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          Retirement Plan, as amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.8 to
          report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
          1999.
(1)(2)10.7 U.S. Bancorp Special Executive Deferral Plan, as
          amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.9 to report on Form 10-K
          for the year ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.8 Amended and Restated Supplemental Benefits Plan of the
          former U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.10 to report
          on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.9 1991 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended,
          of the former U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.11 to
          report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
          1997.
(1)(2)10.10 Deferred Compensation Trust Agreement of the former
          U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to report on Form
          10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.11 1991 Performance and Equity Incentive Plan of the
          former U.S. Bancorp. Filed as Exhibit 10.13 to report
          on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.12 Description of Retirement Benefits of Joshua Green
          III. Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to report on Form 10-K for
          the year ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.13 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement entered
          into with former Directors of the former U.S. Bancorp.
          Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to report on Form 10-K for the
          year ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.14 Description of health insurance premium reimbursement
          plan for former Directors of West One Bancorp. Filed
          as Exhibit 10.16 to report on Form 10-K for the year
          ended December 31, 1997.
(1)(2)10.15 U.S. Bancorp Independent Director Retirement and Death
          Benefit Plan, as amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.17 to
          report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
          1999.
(1)(2)10.16 U.S. Bancorp Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors,
          as amended. Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to report on Form
          10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.17 Form of Change-in-Control Agreement between U.S.
          Bancorp and certain officers of the Company. Filed as
          Exhibit 10.19 to report on Form 10-K for the year
          ended December 31, 1999.
(1)(2)10.18 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John F.
          Grundhofer. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to report on Form
          10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000.
(1)(2)10.19 Employment Agreement with Andrew S. Duff. Filed as
          Exhibit 10.24 to report on Form 10-K for the year
          ended December 31, 1999.
(2)10.20  Separation Agreement and General Release with Philip
          G. Heasley.
   12     Statement re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to
          Fixed Charges.
   21     Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
   23     Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

(1) Exhibit has heretofore been filed with the Securities and Exchange
    Commission and is incorporated herein as an exhibit by reference.

(2) Items that are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements
    required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 14(c) of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on February
27, 2001, on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

U.S. Bancorp

By: John F. Grundhofer

Chairman

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report
has been signed below on February 27, 2001, by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

JERRY A. GRUNDHOFER
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

DAVID M. MOFFETT
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)

TERRANCE R. DOLAN
Senior Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)

JOHN F. GRUNDHOFER
Chairman and Director

LINDA L. AHLERS
Director

ARTHUR D. COLLINS, JR.
Director

PETER H. COORS
Director

JOHN C. DANNEMILLER
Director

VICTORIA BUYNISKI GLUCKMAN
Director

JOSHUA GREEN III
Director

J.P. HAYDEN, JR.
Director

ROGER L. HOWE
Director

THOMAS H. JACOBSEN
Director

DELBERT W. JOHNSON
Director
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JOEL W. JOHNSON
Director

JERRY W. LEVIN
Director

SHELDON B. LUBAR
Director

FRANK LYON, JR.
Director

DANIEL F. MCKEITHAN, JR.
Director

DAVID B. O'MALEY
Director

O'DELL M. OWENS, M.D., M.P.H.
Director

THOMAS E. PETRY
Director

RICHARD G. REITEN
Director

S. WALTER RICHEY
Director

WARREN R. STALEY
Director

JOHN J. STOLLENWERK
Director

PATRICK T. STOKES
Director
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